Central Ohio
Rural Planning
Organization

corpo

NOTICE OF A MEETING

CORPO COMMITTEE MEETING
Hosted by: THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION
Virtual Meeting — MS Teams

Join Microsoft Teams Meeting

May 3rd, 2021
2:00 — 3:30 P.M.

AGENDA

1. Welcome and Introductions — CORPO Chair, Commissioner Mark Forrest
(Roster Enclosed)

2. Approval of November 2020 CORPO Meeting Minutes (Enclosed)
3. CORPO Administrative Iltems

a. Resolution to adopt FY2022 Planning Work Program (Enclosed)
b. Next Round of County Subcommittee Meetings September / October
c. Newsletter

4. Short Range Planning, Active Transportation, Safety, Transit & Data and Analysis

a. Ewing Street / Lancaster Truck Traffic Analysis
b. Mobility Manager / Regional Coordinated Plan
c. Transit Related Updates (COTA Connection, Union County Transit, Rickenbacker)

5. Transportation Improvement Program (TIP), Project Funding & Implementation

a. SFY 21-24 TIP Changes
b. Madison County Transportation Improvement District
c. Federal and State Funding Overview, Thea Ewing

6. Long Range Planning

CORPO Transportation Plan Timeline

Public Involvement Plan

Knox / Morrow Freeway Access Study

Madison County Access Management / Thoroughfare Plan
US 33 Corridor Plan

P20 TD

Mark Forrest

Jeff Stauch


https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NDNkNjNiYjEtZDBkNC00NzE3LWI4OGItODYwZDhkYzM2M2M1%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22d225c0aa-f4a0-4925-bc81-eaff87943970%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%220b6c534f-b0dd-45df-b722-bea357e8490b%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NDNkNjNiYjEtZDBkNC00NzE3LWI4OGItODYwZDhkYzM2M2M1%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22d225c0aa-f4a0-4925-bc81-eaff87943970%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%220b6c534f-b0dd-45df-b722-bea357e8490b%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NDNkNjNiYjEtZDBkNC00NzE3LWI4OGItODYwZDhkYzM2M2M1%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22d225c0aa-f4a0-4925-bc81-eaff87943970%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%220b6c534f-b0dd-45df-b722-bea357e8490b%22%7d

CORPO Meeting Agenda
05/3/2021
Page 2

7. CORPO Member / Stakeholder Roundtable Discussion

Knox County
Fairfield County
Union County
Pickaway County
Morrow County
Marion County
Madison County

@™ a0 T

8. Other Business — Mike Borger
a. Member Services Update
b. LUC/CORPO Annual Meeting

9. Adjourn

PLEASE NOTIFY MIKE BORGER AT 804-525-0071 OR MBORGER@MORPC.ORG TO
CONFIRM YOUR ATTENDANCE FOR THIS MEETING OR IF YOU REQUIRE SPECIAL
ASSISTANCE.

The next CORPO Committee Meeting is
November 1, 2021 2:00 - 3:30 P.M
111 Liberty Street, Suite 100
Columbus, Ohio 43215




CORPO Meeting Roster — May 3, 2021

CORPO Officers

Mark Forest , Madison County Commissioner - CORPO Chair
Jeff Stauch, Union County Engineer - Vice Chair
Vacant — Secretary

Confirmed CORPO Committee Members

Terry Emery, City of Marysville City Manager

Jeff Stauch, Union County Engineer

Thom Collier, Knox County Commissioner

Cameron Keaton, Knox County Engineer

Brian Ball, City of Mount Vernon Engineer

Bryan Dhume, Madison County Engineer

Mark Forest, Madison County Commissioner

Joe Mosier, Madison County Safety Service Director
Chris Mullins, Pickaway County Engineer

Andy Ware, Morrow County Development Director
Bart Dennison, Morrow County Engineer

Tom Whiston, Morrow County Commissioner

Steve Davis, Fairfield County Commissioner

Dave Levacy, Fairfield County Commissioner
James Mako, Fairfield County Planning

Ira Weiss, Fairfield Heritage Trail Association and Fairfield County Planning
Commission

Brad Irons, Marion County Engineer

Scott Schertzer, Mayor, City of Marion

Jim Bishoff, Director, Marion County Public Works

Identified Alternates

Bill Narducci, Union County Assistant Engineer

Roger Reed, Knox County Commissioner

Pat Closser, Mayor, City of London

Jay Wippel, Pickaway County Commissioner

Anthony Neff, Pickaway County Deputy County Engineer

Phil Wright, Marion County Deputy Engineer

Rick Szabrak, Fairfield County Economic Development Director
Teresa Bemiller, Knox County Commissioner

Ryan Scribner, Pickaway Progress



***This page intentionally left blank.***



Minutes

CORPO COMMITTEE MEETING

Hosted by: THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION
Virtual Meeting — MS Teams

November 2nd, 2020

2:00 — 3:30 P.M.

1. Welcome & Introductions - Mark Forrest, Madison County Commissioner & CORPO Chair, called
the meeting to order at 2:05 PM.

2. May 2020 Meeting Minutes ~-CORPO Chair Mark Forrest asked the CORPO Committee to vote on
the minutes from the previous CORPO meeting (held May 13, 2020). Commissioner Stolte moved,
and Ira Weiss of Fairfield County seconded the motion. The motion carried.

3. Special Activities Update -

a. Mobility Manager / Regional Coordinated Plan - Lexi Petrella of MORPC updated the
Committee on the MORPC Mobility Manager initiative. Lexi shared a map that outlines the
overlap between MORPC’s mobility management efforts and those of other regional partners.
She also explained the mobility search tool and the regional coordinated plan, which are both
under development. Ira Weiss asked if there would be a way to see a demo of the Mobility
Management Search tool. Lexi mentioned that may be something we could put together in
the future.

b. US 33 Corridor Plan - Jeff Stauch of Union Co. went on to update the committee on the US 33
Corridor Plan and that there would be a related meeting on November 19t and that the plan
would be wrapped up soon. Jeff Stauch mentioned that level of service on 33 would be a
focus.

¢c. Knox/ Morrow Freeway Access Study - Mike Borger stated that he would be in touch with
Knox County stakeholders on the Knox-Morrow Freeway Access Study soon. He also
mentioned that preliminary data had been pulled for the project and that data would be
discussed at a meeting (date tbd.)

d. Madison County Access Management / Thoroughfare Plan - Mike Borger went on to update
the committee on the progress of both the Madison County Thoroughfare Plan. He stated that
after a previously held joint meeting between the Franklin County Engineer’s office, MORPC
and Madison County stakeholders, they decided to use the Franklin County Thoroughfare
Plan as a guide. CORPO staff had already begun the preparation of an early draft plan and
elements of that document were sent to the Madison County Engineer, Bryan Dhume for
initial review.

e. Centerburg Trailhead Design - Mike Borger and Lauren Cardoni of MORPC informed the
committee that staff had recently completed a trailhead design prep project for the Village of
Centerburg. Because MORPC does not typically conduct trail design work, the completed
work was intended to act as preliminary work for a potential design project that the Village of
Centerburg may enlist the assistance of a consulting firm to complete. Lauren Cardoni
mentioned that this project could be replicated for other CORPO members and that others



had reached out to staff for just such work, including stakeholders from Danville in Knox
County.

4. Informational Items -

a. Cota Initiatives - Aslyne Rodriguez and Jason Yanni updated the committee on COTA’s
Contiguous County Initiative. The point of the initiative is to identify and address near-term
mobility needs between COTA and rural county neighbors. Aslyne mentioned that she wants
to hear from rural partners.

Jason Yanni of COTA explained the IMI/WAYCARE project details and how it could benefit the
region as a whole by using a platform that will improve traffic management and connectivity
in the region. Aslyne added that a recording of their presentations is available. Lexi Petrella
suggested that Mike Borger and herself connect with COTA to see how this could assist with
mobility management in the region. Mike Borger assured the committee that this would be a
potentially beneficially conversation to have with COTA when COTA reaches out.
Commissioner Stolte of Union Co. explained that to him, this is a great program because it is
dynamic. Mike Borger mentioned that this could be a great way to monitor funding
allocations.

b. Regional Housing Strategy - Jennifer Noll of MORPC updated the committee on the Regional
Housing Strategy. Commissioner Stolte asked Jennifer Noll about a map that shows if there
is an old red-lining map overlay on the newer housing strategy map to show a historical
reference of inequality. Jennifer explained that map is something that needs to be developed.

¢. Funding Program Deadlines - Nate Vogt of MORPC updated the committee on current funding
deadlines:

e ODOT Safety Programs that are due April 30th, 2021. He reminded the committee
that these need to be coordinated with ODOT districts in advance and at the district
level.

e TRAC, ODOT’s program for major new capacity projects will possibly have a 2021
cycle based on funding. Nate mentioned the Safe Routes to School applications open
in January through March.

e Community Connect Grants due 12/23 which are funds to provide rural broadband
service.

e Human Services Interoperability Innovations was another program to keep an eye out
for, applications would be due May 2021 and it aims to improve data sharing efforts
by human services orgs.

e H1B Rural Healthcare Grant due on November 13th, to help with healthcare workforce
through training programs.

Commissioner Steve Stolte asked Mike Borger and Nate Vogt if there was any news on
whether ODOT had shared any news on capitalizing RTPO’s in the state. Nick Gill spoke up
and mentioned that as of that moment we had not heard anything from ODOT on that topic.
ODQT has not ruled it out but more work is to be done.

5. CORPO Member Roundtable Discussion - Commissioner Forrest asked the COPRPO
members to Provide updates:

a. Commissioner Forrest asked if anyone from Marion County was on the line and if
they’d like to provide an update. There was nobody present.



Madison County Commissioner Mark Forrest mentioned that Madison County had
been working with CORPO on the previously discussed Thoroughfare/Access
Management plan. Engineer Bryan Dhume did not have any additional updates.

Knox County Commissioner Teresa Bemiller acknowledged that Knox County received
CARES Act funding. She stated that sales tax revenue was up 8.2% in the county. She
attributed that to more online shopping. Knox used CARES money, $300,000 for
business loans, given out to 32 business. Sadly, 16 area businesses had closed due
to the pandemic and closures. Mt. Vernon had previously allocated $100,000 in funds
to save businesses before they received cares act funds. Jeff Goetke of Knox Area
Foundation explained that the Knox County land bank took possession of 47 acres of
land that belonged to siemens. The city will own soon and will be used for
development potential. The land has existing buildings on the land. Commissioner
Bemiller let the committee know that all transit system operations have come under
the prevue of the county commissioners and that the transit service has been
doubling as a food delivery service for those in need.

James Mako of Fairfield County shared state residential subdivision growth is still
occurring and he did not foresee that changing anytime soon. James also mentioned
that Fairfield County had been working with ODOT on a project to replace the
signalized intersection at 33 and Pickerington Rd. with and interchange which would
help with issues in that corridor. Rick Szabrak of Fairfield County has opened a 72k
sqft. Building between OU and Hoicking College that focuses on skilled trades to get
people back to work. The site is located off rt. 33 bypass and will be a great way to get
adults and teens back to work. In-person courses will be contingent on what happens
with Covid-19 going forward.

Commissioner Stolte of Union County asked Jeff Stauch to update the committee on
the Industrial Parkway project. He mentioned that a new FedEx facility just opened
and will be at full capacity in a few years. He said traffic in that corridor has increased.
Union County partnered with ODOT and MORPC on an interchange further down along
the corridor. Gas tax revenue will possibly be increasing going forward. Commissioner
Stolte asked Terry Emery to update the committee on City of Marysville. Terry Emery
said development is very busy and that their revenues are up by a half million dollars.
He stated that their major employers are seeing record years in terms of profit (Scotts
was an example. He also mentioned that the city’s new water plan, a $50 million
dollar project, will soon be able to serve Union County for a long time. Chelcie
Beadnell of Union County Health Department stated that their mobility feasibility study
would be wrapping up soon and that they would be presenting that to various groups
going forward. Commissioner Forrest stated that it seems like our region is doing well
financially given the recent circumstances.

Franklin Christman of the Village of Ashville spoke for Pickaway County and stated
that their financials are stable as well. Income tax and other JEDD funds are stable as
well. They have seen an increase in development queries. He also mentioned that
Ashville is involved in a joint project with ODOT on SR 316 that is progressing.
Pickaway County has a transportation TPA that Ryan Scribner was working on that.
Mike Borger of MORPC gave an update from Bruce Rickerd...PICCA received OTP2
funds that cannot be used until summer 2021. They plan to use those funds to move
workers to a marathon gas station in the Rickenbacker area to connect to COTA buses
in phase 1. Phase 2 would get people from that point to warehouses in southern
Franklin County. Franklin Christman explained that PICCA had been working on that
for some time.

Morrow County Commissioner Tom Whiston stated that Morrow is working with EPA to
expand their sanitary sewer system. Area transit agency is growing a bit as people



continue to move north in the county. Sales tax revenue is projected to be up which is
a good sign for the county. Gas tax revenue is up in the county which is a surprise.
Working on redevelopment sites throughout the county to be announced in early
2021. Solid waste district continues to improve the recycling and efficiency of
disposing of solid waste. CARES money is being spend in a judicious way.

6. Other Business -

a. Filling Vacant Secretary Position - Mike Borger mentioned that CORPO had a vacancy in the
Secretary position and that position would be selected during the first meeting of 2021..

b. FY 2020 Planning Work Program (PWP) Completion Report - Mike Borger informed the
committee that staff had completed a required Planning Work Program Completion Report
and that it had been submitted to ODOT. The Committee was reminded that the completion
report is a record of which of the agreed upon work activities from the previous fiscal year
had been completed.

c. FY 2022 -In February / March 2022 PWP will be available to review. Nick Gill added that in
May the committee will be adopting the PWP and that Mike will submit a PWP for review in
February / March.

d. Next Round of County Subcommittee Meetings February / March — Mike Borger informed
the committee that the next round of CORPO Committee meetings would take place in March
to April of 2021 an that next CORPO Committee meeting was scheduled for May 3, 2021.

Mike also mentioned that he would be reaching out to Knox / Morrow County Officials to
discuss the freeway access study. Lexi Petrella asked if she could do demos of the search
tool during the subcommittee meetings. Commissioner Stolte announced that he would be
retiring in a month and expressed his gratitude to the group. Other members of the
committee and staff thanked Commissioner Stolte for his involvement in many projects over
the years.

7. Meeting was adjourned at 3:15 p.m.

The next meeting is scheduled for May 3, 2021.

Submitted by:

Michael Borger
CORPO Committee



***This page intentionally left blank.***



Central Ohio
Rural Planning
Organization

corpo

Memorandum

TO: Central Ohio Rural Planning Organization
CORPO Committee

FROM: Mike Borger, Principal Planner
Transportation & Infrastructure Development

DATE: 05/1/2021

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution 1-21: Approving the Planning Work Program (PWP) for
SFY 2022

The Planning Work Program (PWP) documents CORPO’s transportation planning program scope
of work, products, and budgets, which utilize federal and state planning funds. The PWP is
prepared annually and submitted to ODOT for approval. The SFY 2022 Planning Work Programs
(PWP) for RTPOs are due to ODOT by May 7th. Resolution 1-21 approves the SFY 2022 CORPO
Planning Work Program to receive federal and state planning funds.

During the November 2020 CORPO meeting the SFY 2022 was discussed including the December
151, 2020 memo from ODOT initiating the development of the SFY22 PWP. Staff presented on the
work items in the SFY 2022 PWP and discussed more specific locally specific products to be
included in the SFY 2022 PWP. A draft of the PWP was circulated for comment and the draft was
discussed during each of the county subcommittee meetings.

The SFY 2022 Planning Work Program has been developed to reflect the subcommittee meeting
discussions and other member communication and reflect the needs and goals of our members as
well as ODOT.

Attachment: Resolution 1-21

Mark Forrest
Chair

Jeff Stauch
Vice Chair



RESOLUTION 1-21

A RESOLUTION OF THE CENTRAL OHIO RURAL PLANNING ORGANIZATION'S
(CORPO) COMMITTEE APPROVING THE PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (PWP)
FOR FY2022.

WHEREAS, surface transportation systems serve economic activities and provide the necessary
and highly valued opportunity for people to travel freely wherever and whenever they want; and

WHEREAS, inevitably travel in Central Ohio involves frequent crossings of municipal, township
and county boundaries on facilities that are under the control of various local jurisdictions,
special-purpose agencies, and the State of Ohio; and

WHEREAS, usually transportation systems that function best and are most cost-effective
include regular cooperative and coordinated planning and decision-making across geographic
and administrative boundaries; and

WHEREAS, it is the role of the Central Ohio Rural Planning Organization (CORPO) to help
encourage, facilitate and provide a forum for this cooperation so as to help spend regional
transportation funds most effectively; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Work Program (PWP) is the document that outlines the work of the
CORPO, the use of regional transportation planning funds, and the regional planning activities
that will be undertaken in the coming year; and

WHEREAS, approval of this work program by the CORPO is necessary for MORPC to receive
federal and state grants to accomplish the scope of work within it for CORPO; now therefore

BE IT RESOLVED BYTHE CENTRAL OHIO RURAL PLANNING ORGANIZATION COMMITTEE:

Section 1. That it hereby approves the attached CORPO Planning Work Program for Fiscal
Year 2022 as a document to receive federal and state planning funds.

Section 2.  That this resolution be forwarded to ODOT as evidence of acceptance of this
program by CORPO.

Section3.  That this committee finds and determines that all formal deliberations and actions

of this committee concerning and relation to the adoption of this resolution were
taken in open meetings of this committee.

Commissioner Mark Forrest Chair
CENTRAL OHIO RURAL PLANNING COMMISISON

Date

Prepared by: CORPO Staff

Attachment: = CORPO FY 2022 Planning Work Program



PLANNING WORK PROGRAM
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022

PROSPECTUS
WORK
ELEMENTS
APPENDICES

Prepared by

corpo

CENTRAL OHIO RURAL PLANNING ORGANIZATION
111 Liberty Street, Suite 100
Columbus, Ohio 43215

May 1, 2021
Approved by CORPO Committee

The preparation of this document was financed with planning monies from the Federal Highway Administration
(FHWA), the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) and the Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT).

May 2021



Contents

PROSPECTUS FOR SFY 2022.........eeiiiiiiiiiiie ettt ettt e et e et e e e e e st e e e e e e e e anneeeas 3
CATEGORY 600: TRANSPORTATION. ...ttt e e e e e e 8
WORK ELEMENTS ...ttt ettt e e ettt e e ettt e e e e s bt e e e e am sttt e e e ennbe e e e e e nbeeee e e nsseeeeannnaneens 10
60109 - Short RANGE PIanNiNg ..ot e e e e e e e 10
60209 - Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) and Implementation....................................... 12
60509 - Dat@ @Nd ANGIYSIS ....coeieiiiiiiiie ettt e e et e e e e e e et a e e e e e e e a e nnnanaees 13
61009 - Long Range Transportation Planning..........c.ou i 14
APPENDICES

APPENDIX A: CORPO STRUCTURE

APPENDIX B: FINANCIAL DOCUMENTATION

APPENDIX C: FINANCIAL INFORMATION

APPENDIX D: MANAGEMENT TOOLS

APPENDIX E: RESOLUTIONS ACCEPTING THE PLANNING WORK PROGRAM FOR SFY 2021
APPENDIX F: TITLE IV PROGRAM — ODOT COMPLIANCE REVIEW RESPONSE

May 2021



PROSPECTUS FOR SFY 2022

DESCRIPTION OF CORPO

In summer of 2019 the Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT) formally designated the Central Ohio Rural
Planning Organization (CORPO) as Ohio’s sixth Regional Transportation Planning Organization (RTPO). CORPO
continues to build upon the coordinated transportation planning activities completed over the last three years.
Since the summer of 2016, the CORPO Committee and its member counties have successfully developed a Long-
Range Transportation Plan (CTP) with a list of prioritized projects, numerous committee meetings, the
development of special projects and grant related work, and developed a Transportation Improvement Program
(TIP) in coordination with ODOT’s Statewide TIP.

CORPO, is a committee within the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC), a public planning agency
operating under state and federal law and governed by an independent commission composed of appointed officials
from member jurisdictions. CORPO conducts the "3-C" (continuing, cooperative and comprehensive) transportation
planning activities for its member counties which includes: Fairfield, Knox, Madison, Marion, Morrow, Pickaway and
Union. MORPC provides the staff for CORPO.

CORPO'’s focus for Fiscal Year 2022 will be working with members to complete the following objectives:

Short-range planning activities such as focused area studies, transit / mobility and active transportation.
Data & Analyses as needed to support short- and long-range planning activities

Maintain the 2021 — 2024 CORPO Transportation Improvement Program: Amend as needed

Maintain the 2018 — 2040 CORPO Transportation Plan: Amend as needed, and begin development of the
2023-2050 CORPO Transportation Plan

e Perform additional local long-range planning activities

May 2021



Central Ohio Rural Planning Organization
Transportation
Planning Area

MORROW,

UNION DELAWARE

MADISON FRANKLIN
FAIREIELD,

B corpPO

| MORPC MPO
B LcATS MPO

May 2021



THE 3-C PLANNING PROCESS

COORDINATED PLANNING

Numerous public and private agencies and citizens representing varied interests participate in the transportation
planning process. CORPO must integrate the work and views of each participant into the planning process. In some
cases, formal agreements may be executed between CORPO and major participant agencies. Described below are
the primary responsibilities of the major participants:

1. Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT)

ODOT is the major implementing agency for transportation projects in Ohio and the CORPO region. Districts 5 and
6 cover the CORPO planning area. ODOT assigns staff liaisons to CORPO and other RTPOs and MPOs to oversee
their planning and programming activities and to ensure compliance with applicable state and federal regulations.
ODOT provides oversight, approval and technical assistance for the travel demand modeling processes. ODOT also
has a significant role in the planning studies that are done prior to major transportation investments.

2. Federal Highway Administration (FHWA)/Federal Transit Administration (FTA)

FHWA and FTA are the major funding agencies for highway and transit planning activities, respectively. Close
coordination is maintained among FHWA, FTA, ODOT, MORPC and CORPO

3. Local Governments in CORPO Member Counties

To varying degrees, local governments participate in technical activities, development of the rural transportation plan,
the transportation improvement program, and major development issues associated with transportation.
Representatives of these jurisdictions can communicate with ODOT and FHWA through CORPO.

4, Ohio Rail Development Commission, Public Utilities Commission of Ohio

These entities may participate in the rail-related technical activities of the transportation program to coordinate their
plans and programs with those under development by CORPO.

5. Agreements

CORPO (via MORPC) has used intergovernmental reviews to obtain comments from interested parties and to
provide information and recommendations concerning proposed projects. The complexity of coordination done
necessitates defined roles and responsibilities for the various participants. The following agreements have been
established to guide MORPC's interactions with other major players in transportation planning:

MORPC /ODOT Contract - This contract between MORPC and ODOT identifies the statement of work and
authorizes regional transportation planning organization processes.

Two-Party RTPO Agreements — Seven counties have signed agreements to participate in CORPO, which is hosted
by MORPC. These counties are: Fairfield, Knox, Madison, Marion, Morrow, Pickaway and Union.

Planning Work Program - This document (also referred to as a Unified Planning Work Program) is an annual
statement to FHWA, FTA and ODOT of CORPQ’s use of planning funds for member counties.

CONTINUING PLANNING
Transportation planning is an ongoing process. CORPO’s main transportation planning activities will be completed

and updated on a repeating cycle. The long-range transportation plan will be completed or updated at least every
five years, and a Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) will be developed on a two-year cycle.

As soon as one of these documents is completed, work begins on the next one in a continuing cycle.

One standing committee for each county provides ongoing assistance and advice on transportation planning matters
to CORPO.

May 2021



COMPREHENSIVE PLANNING

Rural transportation planning is intended to examine and integrate a variety of issues related to transportation. One
of CORPO'’s roles is to better understand these issues and their inter-relationships and to try to avoid or reduce
potential negative consequences of transportation plans and decisions.

Older Adults and People with Disabilities Special Planning
CORPO maintains a list of public transit-human services transportation coordination plans for its member
counties. CORPO may offer assistance with Coordinated Plan Development in the future.

Air Quality, Climate Change and Energy

On April 15, 2004 the U.S. EPA designated Delaware, Fairfield, Franklin, Knox, Licking, and Madison counties in
Central Ohio as being in basic non-attainment of the 8-hour NAAQS (National Ambient Air Quality Standard) for
ozone. These counties were re-designated to attainment on June 12, 2009. The U.S. EPA promulgated a new 8-
hour ozone standard in 2008 and on July 20, 2012, the 6-county region was re-designated marginal non-
attainment. On December 21, 2016, U.S. EPA approved of re-designating the Columbus area to attainment of the
2008 ozone. In 2015, the U.S. EPA promulgated a new primary and secondary ozone NAAQS. The U.S. EPA
designated the region of Delaware, Fairfield, Franklin, and Licking counties for non-attainment under the 2015
NAAQS. In 2019 The Ohio EPA submitted a re-designation request to U.S. EPA. The re-designation to attainment
with approved MVEB via Federal Register notices on July 3, 2019 and August 21, 2019. MORPC, ODOT, and
LCATS play a role through the interagency consultation process with regard to futurechanges.

On April 14, 2005 the U.S. EPA designated Delaware, Fairfield, Franklin, and Licking and a portion of Coshocton
counties as non-attainment of the PM 2.5 standard. On November 7, 2013, these areas were re-designated as in
attainment for the PM 2.5 standard. A new annual PM 2.5 standard was promulgated by U.S. EPA in 2012.
Regional attainment statuses were established in 2014 and Central Ohio was in attainment.

Development Patterns
As of 2015 there were approximately 474,884 people and 150,500 jobs within the CORPO Transportation Study
Area. Year 2050 forecasts for this same area project over 550,000 people and nearly 258,000 jobs.

Transportation Funding

Many transportation improvements are identified as being needed throughout the area, but funding is insufficient to
address all the needs. While funds may not be available for many major improvements, small- scale improvements,
such as coordination of traffic signals and construction of turn lanes can provide much- needed temporary relief and
improve operations. Part of the solution may be in helping to raise awareness of the transportation needs in the
region and the lack of funds. Also, alternative techniques and/or revenue sources for financing local transportation
improvements need to continue to be explored, along with innovative uses of the local and federal shares of project
funding to speed construction of parts of some projects. With pressures for cutbacks for federal funding, highlighting
the needs across all modes will continue to be important.

Planning Data Technology

Planning data technology includes equipment and systems for collecting, analyzing and reporting data necessary for
transportation planning, predicting travel demand, and providing information for policy development. Data include
demographic, land use, environmental, economic, and physical conditions of the transportation system. CORPO will
continue to use tools such as Geographic Information System (GIS) technology to share information, as well as
perform analyses. This will make it easier for its member counties to share data with them. This collaborative data
collection and sharing process not only produces better data, but also allows communities to provide more current
and accurate information. This system also allows the potential for expanding the collection of other attributes
associated with transportation infrastructure.

MORPC maintains a state-of-the-art activity-based travel demand model that covers the Columbus and Newark

May 2021



urbanized areas and portions of the CORPO area. In addition, the statewide model is used in areas not covered by the
MORPC area model. These are used as the basis for Transportation Plan and Transportation Improvement Program
development. It also can be used for small- and large-scale special studies and ODOT’s development of certified
traffic for its project development needs.

Transit

CORPO may play a role in seeking funds for new transit services, and in addition, CORPO may have a role in helping
to coordinate transit services. In addition to traditional transit activities, public transit-human services transportation
coordination plans have been developed for Franklin, Delaware, Licking, Fairfield, Madison, and Pickaway and Union
counties. CORPO may continue to play a role in updating and implementing these plans.

Also, CORPO, through the transportation planning process, intends to work with transit providers in the counties to
identify and coordinate inter-county transportation needs and strategies.

Freight
Intermodal freight is continually touted as the fastest growing market for the freight industry and a critical component

of the Central Ohio economy. Currently, over 1 in 20 private sector jobs in Central Ohio is attributed to the freight
industry. However, challenges exist to maintain the region’s competitive advantage. Correcting the bottlenecks that
threaten the efficiency and productivity of this sector of the economy, new rail structures, special consideration of
truck traffic needs, and coordination with air cargo facilities are all needed to ensure that the region continues to play
an important role in national and international goods movement.

MORPC, CORPO and other stakeholders are currently involved in a number of important regional projects to
address these challenges.

Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS)
In order to foster transportation system integration and agency cooperation, ITS is incorporated into CORPO planning
through coordination with the MORPC Central Ohio ITS architecture and the state ITS architecture.

The US 33 Smart Mobility corridor project is underway in Union County from Dublin to the Transportation
Research Center in East Liberty. This will be a testing area for Connected Vehicle (CV) and Autonomous Vehicle
(AV) technology. The study also includes all traffic signals in Marysville having vehicle-to-infrastructure (V2I)
technology to test these applications in a small city environment. In 2016 the City of Columbus won the U.S DOT
Smart City Challenge and is working to implement several strategies in different parts of the region.

CORPO is monitoring the development of both of these activities for applicability throughout the CORPO region.

Safety

Safety is a critical aspect in transportation planning. Building upon information included in the transportation plan,
CORPO will assist its members in addressing high-crash locations. Crash data will continue to be analyzed to
identify safety needs. In the future, CORPO anticipates working with MORPC, stakeholders and member
governments to continue to provide needed education to the public and local governments about the rules of the
road, such as safely navigating modern roundabouts, driving without distractions, or yielding to pedestrians in
crosswalks.

May 2021



CATEGORY 600: TRANSPORTATION
A Key Issues

The CORPO Prospectus identifies the following key issues in transportation planning:

Special planning for the elderly and people with disabilities
Consideration of existing private transportation services and their role in public transportation
Asset Management

Air Quality, Climate Change and Energy

Water Quality/Greenways

Development Patterns

Transportation Funding

Access Management

Corridor Studies and Thoroughfare Plans

Planning Data Technology

Data Collection and Sharing

Transit

Freight

Intelligent Transportation Systems

Safety

Active Transportation Systems

Utilities and Broadband Deployment

B. Goals & Objectives

Goals and objectives for the 2018-2040 Long-Range Transportation Plan were adopted in January
2017. These guided the development of the 2018-2040 Long-Range Transportation Plan, which was
adopted in May 2018 with an executive summary completed and adopted in December 2018.

Goals and Objectives:

e Preserve and Maintain the Existing Transportation System in a State of Good Repair
- Minimize the number of bridges structurally deficient or functionally obsolete
- Maximize the miles of pavement in acceptable condition
- Maximize resources dedicated to maintain and improve the condition of the
transportation system

e A Safe Transportation System for All Users
- Minimize crashes including pedestrian- and bicycle-related crashes
- Promote system user education to minimize unsafe driving behaviors such as a lack of
seatbelt use, distracted driving, impaired driving and others

e Accessibility and Mobility Options for all Users
- Build facilities that accommodate all users such as those using transit, walkingand
bicycling
- Expand public transportation within and between communities

May 2021



May 2021

- Expand the bicycle and pedestrian networks
- Expand options that assist those living in poverty or in areas with lower accessibilityin
reaching employment, healthcare or services

An Integrated, Connected and Coordinated Transportation System

- Increase outreach to advocacy and community groups including area residents, local
governments, agencies and organizations

- Improve connections between regions by utilizing various modes of transportation,
including passenger rail

- Increase local community collaboration and coordination efforts to achieve mutually
beneficial outcomes

A Transportation System that Promotes a Collaborative and Focused Approach to support

Economic Vitality

- Improve strategic freight-related facilities (e.g., highway, rail, intermodal, etc.)

- Develop priority multipurpose corridors (e.g., utilities, water, broadband, fiber, etc.)

- Maximize return on investment to position the region to compete globally and efficiently

- Provide transportation facilities that enhance the transition between rural andurban
areas

- Enhance engagement with regional partners and voices

Preserve and Enhance Environmental Resources and Sustainability through the

Transportation System

- Increase use of non-single-occupant vehicles (local transit, intercity transit, ridesharing,
biking, walking)

- Provide transportation facilities consistent with local land use, environmentaland
sustainability plans

The status and proposed future actions for the work expressed in these key issues and goals are
outlined in the following work element descriptions.



FY 2022 PLANNING WORK PROGRAM

WORK ELEMENTS

No. 60192-3000
Short Range Planning

Short-range planning services help members make progress on the objectives established in the
CORPO Transportation Plan(CTP). The FAST Act encourages areas to be innovative in the way they
manage and operate the system to ensure people and goods move efficiently, safely, and in the most
secure way possible. CORPO will support the management and operation of the transportation system
by reporting on its conditions and identifying resources to meet established performance measures.

MAP-21 established a core Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) that is structured and
funded to make significant progress in reducing highway fatalities. This law requires state
Departments of Transportation (DOTs) to implement a State Highway Safety Plan (SHSP) and to
address safety issues in their regions. CORPQO’s safety planning work will help the state meet this
requirement.

Active transportation planning ensures that non-motorized transportation facilities are constructed as part
of a multi-modal transportation system and that performance measures are in place to guide engineering,
education, and enforcement practices that enhance their usage and the safety of non- motorists.

Product: Method Agencylies Schedule

Condition report of highway system and funding: Assess
current condition of highway system by collecting pavement

condition summaries from ODOT and local agencies. Assist CORPO/Local As needed
members in Identifying resources needed to bring it to an Governments for TIP and
acceptable standard and in applying for funding. CTP

Coordinate effort with the ODOT Asset Management System

Safety planning and safety funding applications: Encourage
members to address safety concerns through engineering and

enforcement measures. Assist them with their applications for CORPO/Local Onaoin
safety funding. Conduct special studies and projects related to Governments/Others going
transportation safety such as intersection modifications as

requested by members or ODOT.

Active transportation planning: Assist local agencies and entities

in planning for and implementing active transportation

infrastructure that includes both bike and pedestrian facility. CORPO/ODOT/Local Ongoing
Assist members with trail planning development and Governments

complete streets.

Transit Planning: Coordinate with both public and private

transit and mobility providers on public transit and human CORPO & Local

services planning. Assist members with related grant governments and transit| Ongoing
applications (5310, 5307, OTP2, Etc), planning documents Agencies

and meeting planning.

Budget:

Total Work Element $40,000 $32,000 FHWA, $4,000 ODOT, $4,000 MORPC
PID#: 114263

May 2021



No. 60292-3000
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) and Implementation

This element is to prepare and continue to maintain an updated Transportation Improvement Program
(TIP) through this element. CORPO will identify federal, state and other resources to make local
improvements and coordinate them with traditional federal resources.

This element also involves the monitoring and coordination of progress for projects in the TIP. As-
needed amendments to the TIP are completed. Periodic reports concerning the status of federal
funds are made to the CORPO committees. CORPO also participates in public involvement
opportunities conducted as part of the development of regionally significant transportation
improvements including transit projects.

Product: Method Agencylies Schedule

2021-2024 TIP: Coordinate with ODOT Districts 5 and 6, MORPC,
transit providers and local agencies on project information for
amendments to the TIP. Coordinate with ODOT Central Office on
TIP update and amendment schedules.

CORPO Ongoing

Collaboration on project delivery and financing options for projects:
As needed, work with local jurisdictions to identify project funding
mechanisms and coordinate them with the use of federal, state and
other locally available resources, including coordination with
OPWC’s SCIP-/LTIP-funded projects. Assist with special funding
opportunities such as BUILD, CARES, CRRSAA, OTP2, Transit
Related funding and INFRA. Work with our public and private
partners to bring projects that are extremely time-sensitive online as
quickly as possible.

CORPO & Local

Agencies Ongoing

Budget:

Total Work Element $30,000 $24,000 FHWA, $3,000 ODOT, $3,000 MORPC
PID#: 114263

May 2021



Data and Analysis

No. 60592-3000

Many transportation programs and projects require GIS and database analytical methods. This element
includes using information and tools to develop and prepare final products associated with the various
projects and programs of the Regional Transportation Planning Organization. In addition, CORPO
intends to function as a resource for requests for information regarding transportation, demographic,

development, and various other community needs.

Product: Method

Agencylies

Schedule

Provide GIS and technical assistance to members:
Coordinate with the modeling team to be responsive to
new data needs associated with the travel demand model.
Prepare land use forecasts for traffic studies.

Provide demographic and economic data for studies as
needed.

CORPO

As Needed

Transform raw data into useful information, suggest
conclusions, and support decision-making: Create data
visualizations to make finding and retrieving information
easy for users for transportation planning purposes:
Produce data-driven reports for a quick view of facts and
figures about communities and the region.

CORPO/MORPC

As Needed

Respond to and document requests: Answer questions from
government, residents, academia and businesses for
transportation and demographic data.

CORPO/MORPC

As Needed

2050 Population and Employment Projections: Working with
local agencies, look at trends and future land use and

economic development plans to develop projections.

CORPO & local agencies

July 2022

Budget:
Total Work Element $38,609 $30,887 FHWA, $3,861 ODOT, $3,861 MORPC
PID#: 114263

May 2021




Long Range Transportation Planning

No. 61092-3000

This work element is the creation and maintenance of the Long-Range Rural Transportation Plan and
related activities. The plan examines the region's transportation needs at least 20 years into the future
and proposes a multimodal network to meet the region's needs. Work includes maintenance activities for
the current 2018-2040 long-range rural transportation plan completed in 2018. This activity also includes
coordination with local governments and other transportation agencies, participating in special long-range
planning efforts, monitoring and reporting on federal and state transportation legislation, regulations, and
policies, and integrating transportation into other regional planning efforts.

Product: Method

Agencylies

Schedule

The 2018 — 2040 Long- Range Transportation Plan: Amend
as needed.

CORPO

As Needed

2023 — 2050 Long Range Transportation Plan: Review and
update Public Involvement Plan. Through stakeholder and
public involvement, review and update CTP goals and
objectives.

CORPO

PIP update:
Dec 2021;
Goals &
objectives
June 2022;
full plan May
2023

Knox and Morrow County Freeway/Expressway Access Study:
Building upon work done in FY21 continued coordination with
the working group, document travel and other mobility issues in
southern Knox and Morrow counties. Develop future population
and employment forecasts, analyze future travel conditions and
develop strategies and concepts to address travel and mobility
issues. Additional funding outside the PWP may be obtained to
go into more detail and/or development implementation plan of
proposed. Strategies and concepts.

CORPO/Knox
County/Morrow County

June 2022

Madison County Thoroughfare Plan: Assist Madison County
in continuing work completed in FY 21 in developing a
thoroughfare plan and access management regulations for the
county. Assist with plan implementation where appropriate.

CORPO/Madison County,

June 2021

Industrial Parkway Study Support: provide information on
existing and future travel information on the industrial Parkway
Corridor from Dublin to Marysville to support the Union County
Engineer’s study of the corridor.

CORPO/Union County

December
2021

Coordinate with ODOT planning activities: Coordinate with
special studies and projects that are in the early steps of
development. Coordinate with ODOT on implementing
strategies in A045 within CORPO.

CORPO/MORPC

As Needed

Complete other long-range system studies: Use regional data
and resources and technical expertise in highway,
thoroughfare, transit, pedestrian, access management, freight
and bikeway planning to analyze specific long-range
transportation needs to assist members.

CORPO, Local
Governments

Ongoing

Budget:
Total Work Element $70,000 $56,000 FHWA, $7,000 ODOT, $7,000 MORPC
PID#: 114263

May 2021




APPENDIX A

MORPC STRUCTURE




PREFACE

The Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission is a voluntary association of over 70 local
governmental entities in and around the following counties: Franklin, Delaware, Fairfield,
Fayette, Hocking, Knox, Licking, Logan, Madison, Marion, Morrow, Perry, Pickaway, Ross and
Union. The member governments designate an elected or other official to represent their units,
of which at least one person must have a high degree of decision-making authority for the entity.

The mission consists of the following:

e Improve the ability of local governments or other entities to deal with local or regional
issues.

e Assist local governments in making best use of local tax dollars and other resources
through planning, capital improvements programming, shared services and
collaboration, policy advocacy, and management best practices.

¢ Increase the amount of federal and state funds flowing into the region for use in meeting
needs recognized by local governments.

e Manage federal, state and in-house rules and regulations associated with grant
programs and operation of local activities.

The COMMISSION shall have all powers, duties and responsibilities pertaining to regional

planning commissions, specified in Section 713.21 to 713.270f the Ohio Revised Code and as
otherwise permitted by federal, state or local law.

BOARD MEMBER ROLES

The primary responsibilities of a MORPC board member are to effectively represent his or her
governmental unit at the board meetings and to share pertinent information with his or her
organization. Board members can serve on committees, task forces and working groups as
seats are available.



MORPC'S OVERALL ROLE AS A REGIONAL COUNCIL

A Voluntary Association of Local Governments

For over 60 years, the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC) has been addressing
challenges associated with growth and development in Central Ohio as well as aiding its
members to improve the quality of life within the region.

Organizations such as this are created to help local governments implement good planning and
development practices in the fields of energy, infrastructure development, transportation, land
use, air and water quality, and sustainability.

MORPC's Mission

MORPC's mission is to enhance the quality of life and promote the competitive advantages of
the region by working through local governments and other constituents.

Today, as a voluntary association of over 70 local governments MORPC serves many
purposes:

* Providing an intergovernmental forum and process for developing creative
solutions on regional challenges

* Providing planning/programming services which directly impact community and
economic development

* Building public/private partnerships to improve communications and better
serve
a diverse region

* Maintaining a regional database and forecasting economic and demographic
trends
* Working closely with community leaders, volunteer citizens, and partner

organizations on policy advocacy to effectively represent the voice of the region

* Working to implement and maintain eligibility for federal and state programs



The Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act (ISTEA) of 1991 and the Clean Air Act
Amendments of 1990 significantly increased the responsibility of MPOs. In addition to providing
significantly higher levels of funding, ISTEA gave state and local government officials more
opportunity to participate in decisions regarding transportation programs and more flexibility in
deciding where and how to use ISTEA authorizations. The act made the MPO responsible for
coordinating metropolitan planning efforts with state and local governments.

These acts required the addition of nonattainment air quality areas into planning. This
requirement expanded the planning area boundaries to include all of Delaware County. Thus, by
1992 the MPO planning area included Franklin and Delaware counties together with Etna,
Bloom and Violet townships in Licking and Fairfield counties. In 1998, the 1991 act was
reaffirmed with passage of TEA-21, in 2005 with the passage of SAFETEA-LU, in 2012 with the
passage of MAP-21 and most recently in 2015 with the passage of The FAST Act. On
December 4, 2015, President Obama signed the Fixing America’s Surface Transportation
(FAST) Act (Pub. L. No. 114-94) into law—the first federal law in over a decade to provide long-
term funding certainty for surface transportation infrastructure planning and investment. The
FAST Act authorizes $305 billion over fiscal years 2016 through 2020 for highway, highway and
motor vehicle safety, public transportation, motor carrier safety, hazardous materials safety, rail,
and research, technology, and statistics programs. The FAST Act maintains our focus on safety,
keeps intact the established structure of the various highway-related programs we manage,
continues efforts to streamline project delivery and, for the first time, provides a dedicated
source of federal dollars for freight projects. With the enactment of the FAST Act, states and
local governments are now moving forward with critical transportation projects with the
confidence that they will have a federal partner over the long term.

In 2015, the metropolitan planning organization boundary was amended to: Delaware and
Franklin Counties; the Cities of Pataskala, Reynoldsburg and New Albany, Etna Township, and
areas of Jersey Township engulfed within the New Albany boundary in Licking County; Bloom
and Violet Townships in Fairfield County; and Jerome Township in Union County.

The following are included in the remainder of
Appendix A

Staff Organizational Chart

MORPC Pay Grades

MORPC Articles of Agreement

Commission Bylaws (Central Ohio Rural Transportation Planning Committee
within the Commission)

MORPC Code of Ethics


https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/fastact/legislation.cfm
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/fastact/legislation.cfm
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/fastact/legislation.cfm

2

MORPC

Executive
Director

William Murdock

Chief of Staff &
Director of
Operations

Shawn Hufstedler
N,
4 Director,

Communications
& Engagement

Niel Jurist

Director, Data &
Mapping
Aaron Schill

\ Executive
> Assistant

? Director,
Planning &
Sustainability

m ! Director,
Residential

r 1 Services
Robert Williams

Director,
£y Transportation
& Infrastructure &
2 Development

Thea Ewing

Director of
Government Affairs &
Strategic Initiatives

Joe Garrity

January 2021



MORPC

Executive
Director
William Murdock

Executive Management

Executive
Assistant

Director of
— Government Affairs & o mem
Strategic Initiatives

Joe Garrity

N\ Public Policy
y & \relow

Kiley Kinnard



TRANSPORTATION &
INFRASTRUCTURE
DEVELOPMENT

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION

A Director,

Transportation
Infrastructure & ¢

Development

Thea Ewing —|
I/

Executive
Assistant

Melissa Sharp

' : ‘ Modal Systems

Manager

Mary Ann Frantz

Patty Olmsted

Mobility
Coordinator

Lexi Petrella

= o)

¥ ) TID Intern

Alexander Schepflin

Transit Planner

Sr. Business Modal Systems
A Outreach Support
mma ESZZN Coordinator Spe(:lallst

Strategic
Projects
Manager

Infrastructure
Assistant Development

¥ ¢ | Director

Manager
Nate Vogt

Manager, ¢ Transportation
Travel Planning
Forecasting Manager ]

Principal
Planner

Michael Borger

Sr. Planner
Hwashik Jang

Associate Engineer [

Aijin Chen VACANT

Associate Planner

VACANT

Economic
Development &
Infrastructure Officer

Ted Geer




K Director,

i Residential
Services
Robert Williams

RESIDENTIAL
SERVICES

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION

! Residential
Executive
Assistant

Melissa Sharp

| Program
Manager

Steve Garnack

Weatherization
Production Residential Program
Supervisor Specialist

Tim Murphy VACANT

Customer

Service
Specialist

Cindy Hickman

mope

> 7" | Rehab

Inspection

Coordinator Specialist
Jeramy Green Bobby Dick m “ ’L" o T

* Baseload

% Auditor
Michelle Montgomery

Yl s Vo

morp(

1 Service
' M Specialist
" Program

Melanie Ricks
" W Assistant
Rebecca Garrett ‘ Custf)mer
L 41 ¥ Service

1 Representative-
PT

Craig Fowlkes

- Customer
) Service
Representative-

PT
Debbie Brice

. Sr. Energy
)@ Auditor

Jack Wagoner

] 'S Energy Auditor

Kevin Moore

orne s
LL“' N | !
- 1 Sr. Energy

) . .
Energy Auditor / Auditor

oS
Charles Rayburn Randy Dearwester

"\"l"

y iﬁ Sr. Energy

Auditor

Matthew Holman

’ L

Y
g )
y \' Energy Auditor

Aaron Hinkle

Energy Auditor

Darren Robbins




COMMUNICATIONS &
ENGAGEMENT i‘lﬁlun‘ Director.

1ID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION
Communications
y & Engagement

[ Niel Jurist
\'

111] g )T Diversity,

-f-htll‘— Inclusion &

“B Engagement
+ | Officer

Rolanda Hampton

Executive
Assistant

Brand
Management
Coordinator

Amanda McEldowney

Membership
Services Officer

Digital
Communication
Coordinator

-2
, Sr. Public Affairs

{ Coordinator |
Bevan Schneck Hannah Schumick




OPERATIONS

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION

Chief of Staff
& Director of
Operations
Shawn Hufstedler

Operations
Specialist

Holly Dudley

Director of
o) . Finance/Asst
= Executive Director of
Coordinator Operations
Shari Saunders Susan Tsen

Admin
Assistant
(PT)

Renee Sova

0r

e al

-

}

* Accounting .
‘ Manager

Steve Sova

Accountant
Betsy Hunkar

Accounting
Specialist

"q Accountant
Danielle Spencer

Technology

Alex Jokerst

i Services
> . Jll Manager

IT Service
Specialist




PLANNING &
SUSTAINABILITY

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION

Director,
Planning &
Sustainability

Kerstin Carr |

| | l [
o
we Executive

A M) Assistant

) Assistant
4 @ Director
Stephen Patchan

DL
,...J ..: Central Ohio
5 A Greenways

" Coordinator

Melinda Vonstein

Sustainability
Officer

Brandi Whetstone

Principal

W Planner Associate Planner

Vacant

Energy
‘é $ Planner

Jon-Paul d’Aversa

Central Ohio
Greenways
| Intern

1B Water Jasmine Walker R g
. t Resources
. I... Intern Sr. Air Quality
ot | élssomate [’ S El Edwina Teye (D and
’e;r . anner N\ / enior anner V' Sustalnablllty
Tobi Otulana Lauren Cardoni Specialist

Brooke White




DATA &
MAPPING

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION

Director,
Data &

Mapping

Aaron Schill

Senior GIS ——>

Specialist

* GIS Specialist
Kyle Sohner

GIS Intern

Lacey Stevens

Liz Whelan

Data Manager

Data Analyst
VACANT

Intern

Betsy Ehmcke




Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC) Pay Grades

Position Pay Grade MIN

MID

MAX

Customer Service Representative A $31.200

$35,243

$41,140

Electric Baseload Auditor

Energy Auditor

HVAC Service & Installation Technician
Operations Specialist B $32.011
Program Assistant

Public Affairs Specialist

Customer Service Specialist

$39,562

$46,212

Accounting Specialist

Administrative Assistant

Assistant Engineer

Assistant Planner C $34.280
Help Desk Support

IT Service Specialist

Lead Electric Baseload Auditor

$44,566

$54,851




Associate GIS Specialist (formerly GIS Spec. Il)
Associate Planner

Associate Transit Planner

Digital Communications Coordinator

Lead Intake Coordinator

Residential Program Specialist

Residential Technician

Sr HVAC Service Technician (formerly HVAC Crew Lead)

$38,534

$50,052

$61,570

Position Pay Grade

MIN

MID

MAX

Accountant - Accounts Receivable
Accountant - Grants Mgmt & Budget
Administrative Coordinator

Air Quality Program Coordinator

Associate Engineer

Central Ohio Greenways Program Coordinator
Commute Coordinator

Data Analyst

$43,332

$56,291

$69,249




Database Administrator

Senior Energy Auditor

Executive Assistant

Executive Assistant

Executive Assistant

Government Affairs Coordinator

Public Affairs Coordinator

Rehab Specialist

Senior GIS Specialist (formerly GIS Spec. IlI)

$43,332

$56,291

$69,249

Position

Pay Grade

MIN

MID

MAX

Brand Management Coordinator

Energy Planner

Modal System Support Specialist

Network Administrator

Principal GIS Specialist (formerly GIS Spec. IV)

Senior Business Outreach Coordinator

Senior Government Affairs Coordinator

Senior Housing Rehab Specialist

Senior Public Affairs Coordinator

$48,681

$63,286

$77,890




Community Affairs Coordinator

Energy Auditor Supervisor

Energy Coordinator

Executive Coordinator

Inspection Coordinator

Membership Services Coordinator

Program Coordinator

Senior Air Quality & Sustainability Specialist

Senior Engineer

Senior Network Administrator

Senior Energy Planner

Senior Planner

Senior Transit Planner

$54,715

$71,101

$87,487




Position

Pay Grade

MIN

MID

MAX

Active Transportation & Safety Program Manager

Data Manager

GIS Manager

Government Afairs Director

Membership Services Officer

Principal Engineer

Principal Planner

Principal Planner

Diversity Inclusion & Engagement Officer

Sustainability Officer

Strategic Projects Manager

Weatherization Production Supervisor

$61,570

$80,013

$98,456




Economic Development & Infrastructure Officer

(TIP) Program Manager

Accounting Manager

Alternative Transportation Manager

Human Resources Manager

$69,100 $89,882 $110,663
IT Manager
Planning Manager
Residential Program Manager
Transportation Planning Manager
Travel Forecasting Manager
Position Pay Grade MIN MID MAX

Assistant Director, Energy & Air Quality
Assistant Director, Planning & Environment 3 $77.752 $101,063 $124,373
Assistant Director, Transportation Systems & Funding
Director, Finance & Assistant Director of Operations

- K $87,351 $113,542 $139,732
Director, IT
Director, Data & Mapping
Director, Energy & Air Quality
Director, Planning & Environment L $100,100 $132,000 $163,900
Director, Public & Government Affairs
Director, Transportation Systems & Funding
Chief of Staff & Director of Operations M $115,115 $151.800 $188,485




MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION

ARTICLES OF AGREEMENT

ARTICLE | - MISSION & REGION

The Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (hereinafter referred to as the COMMISSION)
shall carry out the following mission:

Improve the ability of local governments or other entities to deal with local or regional
issues.

Assist local governments in making best use of local tax dollars and other resources
through planning, capital improvements programming, shared services and
collaboration, policy advocacy, and management best practices.

Increase the amount of federal and state funds flowing into the region for use in
meeting needs recognized by local governments.

Manage federal, state and in-house rules and regulations associated with grant
programs and operation of local activities.

The region (hereinafter referred to as the REGION) for which the COMMISSION is created and
shall be maintained, is the Central Ohio Regional Planning Area which shall include the
geographic area of Franklin County and other local units of government that are cooperating
in the work of the COMMISSION.

ARTICLE Il - MEMBERSHIP OF THE COMMISSION

There shall be two general classes of membership on the COMMISSION, full membership
with voting rights and associate membership without voting rights.

A. ELIGIBILITY

Any municipality, board of township trustees, or board of county commissioners
representing a local unit of government which is within, contiguous to or near
Franklin County, is eligible for a full membership with the COMMISSION.

Other units of local government (as enabled in O.R.C. 713.21) may become associate
members upon such terms as may be agreed upon by the COMMISSION.

CONDITIONS

To acquire and retain full membership on the COMMISSION, a prospective
participating organization must:

Amended October 18, 1979 by adoption of Resolution 40-79

Amended April 22, 1982 by adoption of Resolution 18-82

Amended November 16, 1989 by adoption of Resolution 33-89

Amended December 19, 1991 by adoption of Resolution 28-91

Amended September 19, 2013 by adoption of Resolution 21-13, effective January 1, 2014



MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION
Articles of Agreement

1. Formally enter into the Articles of Agreement of the COMMISSION by obtaining
approval to join the COMMISSION from the prospective participating
organization’s legislative body including authorization to enter into the Articles of
Agreement of the COMMISSION and submitting a copy of the approved
authorizing legislation to the COMMISSION.

2. Pay the appropriate participation fees as set forth in Article IX of these Articles of
Agreement.

3. Maintain or create, for local planning responsibilities, an appropriate planning
organization such as a municipal planning commission or legislative authority
where it serves as the municipal planning commission.

In the instance of a local unit of government, other than a municipality, township,
or county, such conditions as may be established by the COMMISSION shall be
satisfied.

C. REPRESENTATION

The COMMISSION supports diversity in all of its activities, consequently members are
strongly encouraged to appoint representatives who can speak for diverse groups
including disadvantaged, low income, and minority groups. Additionally, the
COMMISSION can benefit from additional expertise such as housing, financial,
planning, technology, energy, etc., and members are encouraged to consider
appointment of representatives with such relevant expertise.

Further, in order for the COMMISSION to retain its role as a forum for central Ohio’s
local government leaders, each full member shall be represented by at least one
elected or appointed official who has a high degree of decision-making authority.

Additional representation requirements shall be defined in the Bylaws of the
COMMISSION.

D. TERM OF SERVICE

Representatives to the COMMISSION shall serve at the pleasure of their appointing
authority.

E. VACANCIES
A vacancy on the COMMISSION shall be filled by the authority that appointed such

representative in the first instance.

F. VOTING



MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION
Articles of Agreement

Each full member representative to the COMMISSION shall be entitled to vote on all
motions acted upon by the COMMISSION.

. ACCEPTANCE OF NEW MEMBERS

A unit of local government which is eligible by virtue of the Ohio Revised Code and
these Articles of Agreement for full membership and has fulfilled the conditions of
Article 11.B. of these Articles of Agreement, may apply for representation on the
COMMISSION.

Upon acceptance by the COMMISSION as a full member, the unit of local government
shall become a participating organization in cooperative association with the
COMMISSION.

Units of local government eligible for associate membership shall be accepted as
members in a manner as may be established by the COMMISSION.

. WITHDRAWAL OF MEMBERSHIP

The legislative authority of any member may terminate its membership with the
COMMISSION at any time by adopting a resolution to do so, delivering a certified copy
thereof to the Secretary of the COMMISSION, and withdrawing its representatives
from the COMMISSION. So far as active participation is concerned, such withdrawal
shall be effective upon delivery, but shall not relieve the withdrawing party of its
obligation to contribute its share of the cost for the year in which the withdrawal
occurs. However, if any such member shall withdraw at any time within the last six
months of the year in which it became a member, such withdrawing party shall
contribute its share of the cost for the first six months of the year next ensuing. Any
legislative authority or other unit of local government not contributing as provided by
Article IX hereof may, by a determination of the COMMISSION, be deemed to have
withdrawn.

If any member fails to meet the requirements set out in Article II.B., that member
shall receive a notice of such failure from the COMMISSION. If after six months from
the date of the notice the member continues to fail to meet the requirements set out
in Article II.B., the member is deemed to be withdrawn, and a notice from the
COMMISSION to that effect shall be forwarded to the former member.

ARTICLE Ill - POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE COMMISSION



MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION
Articles of Agreement

The COMMISSION shall have all powers, duties and responsibilities pertaining to regional
planning commissions, specified in Section 713.21 to 713.270of the Ohio Revised Code and
as otherwise permitted by federal, state or local law.

The COMMISSION shall provide planning and consultation services concerning local and
regional problems and shall review and report its findings on state and federal grant applica-
tions when requested by members. The COMMISSION may also provide planning assistance
for any member. The cost thereof shall be paid by such member in such a manner and
amount as may be agreed on between the COMMISSION and the member.

Any such work so undertaken and completed by the COMMISSION shall be of an advisory or
recommending nature which, may or may not be adopted by the member's planning
organization. The fact that such planning organization refuses to adopt such work shall not
relieve the member from the obligation to pay the amount specified under the contract.

The COMMISSION, after making a regional plan or any change, supplement or abolition
thereof, shall certify a copy thereof to the planning commission of each municipality, to the
township trustees, and the county commissioners of the REGION.

The planning commission of any municipality to which such a plan, change, supplement or
abolition is certified may adopt the same, and it shall thereupon have the same force and
effect within such municipality as is provided by law or charter for plans prepared and
adopted by said planning commission. The boards of county commissioners may adopt said
plan, change, supplement, or abolition so far as it related to nhon-municipal territory within
their respective jurisdictions. When so adopted, said plan, change, supplement or abolition
shall be certified to the COMMISSION and filed with the county recorder of affected counties
as provided by law.

ARTICLE IV - LOCAL PLANNING RESPONSIBILITIES

Detailed planning within a single political jurisdiction is not the responsibility of the
COMMISSION, but shall remain the responsibility of the planning organization or agency for
that local unit of government.

If a county or only a part of a county becomes a member of the COMMISSION, a mutual
agreement between the COMMISSION and the regional planning commission involved shall
be required to determine how regional planning will be effectuated in that part of the county
within the COMMISSION'S planning area. Regardless of the type, planning organizations of
members may exercise the option of utilizing COMMISSION staff in lieu of maintaining their
own permanent staff by entering into an appropriate agreement with the COMMISSION and
paying the required costs agreed upon by the parties thereto.

ARTICLE V - OFFICERS OF THE COMMISSION

A. OFFICERS



MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION
Articles of Agreement

1. Chair and Vice Chair

The chair and vice chair shall each be members of the COMMISSION and be
elected by representatives of the COMMISSION at its annual meeting each year.
Each shall hold office until the annual meeting next after his or her election and
until his or her successor is elected and qualified. The duties of the chair shall
include the appointment of standing, ad hoc, and other committees as
authorized by Article VII of these Articles, unless other provisions for their
appointment have been adopted. The chair may appoint such special
committees or task forces as may be necessary from time to time in order to
perform the duties set forth in the Articles of Agreement, or as the Commission
may otherwise direct. The chair shall preside at all meetings of the
COMMISSION. The vice chair shall serve as chair during any absence of the chair
and shall assist the chair in performance of duties.

2. Secretary

The COMMISSION at its annual meeting each year shall elect a secretary. The
secretary shall hold office until the annual meeting next after his or her election
and until his or her successor is elected and qualified. It shall be the duty of the
secretary to ensure a full record of the proceedings of the COMMISSION and of
its committees is kept, and he or she shall perform such other duties as the
COMMISSION may from time to time direct.

B. VACANCIES

Should the offices of chair, vice chair or secretary become vacant, the COMMISSION
may at its next regular meeting receive nominations from the Nominating Committee
as well as from the floor and elect a successor; however, such vacancy shall be filled
within a period of five months. When a vacancy occurs, the COMMISSION shall
appoint an interim officer at its next regular meeting. Such interim officer shall
possess all the powers of a regular officer and shall serve until the position is filled by
the COMMISSION.

ARTICLE VI - EMPLOYEES
The COMMISSION or its delegate may authorize the employment of a director, and such
planners, engineers, accountants and others as may be necessary, and determine their
compensation. Personnel shall not be under civil service but shall be eligible for and covered
by the Ohio Public Employees Retirement System.
ARTICLE VIl - COMMITTEES OF THE COMMISSION

5



MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION
Articles of Agreement

The Bylaws adopted by the COMMISSION shall provide for the establishment of standing, ad
hoc, and other committees, at least one of which shall oversee financial, administrative and
personnel matters; a county planning area committee and subcommittee for each county
without a county or regional planning commission; and a transportation policy committee.

The method of selection, term, name, duties and responsibilities of committees shall be
provided in the Bylaws of the COMMISSION.

ARTICLE VIII - ELECTIONS
A. NOMINATING COMMITTEE

There shall be established a Nominating Committee, the members of which shall be
appointed by the chair of the COMMISSION and confirmed by the COMMISSION. Said
Nominating Committee shall be composed of five (5) members of the COMMISSION,
and not more than two (2) of these five shall be appointees from any one type of
jurisdiction (i.e., counties, cities, villages, or townships) in order to provide for a broad
perspective from among the governments represented on the COMMISSION as
indicated in Article 1I.C. of these Articles. The Nominating Committee shall designate
its chair from its members.

B. NOMINATION FOR ELECTION

At least twenty (20) days prior to the annual meeting, the chair shall appoint the
Nominating Committee. Said Nominating Committee having been duly appointed
and confirmed shall, at least ten (10) days prior to the annual meeting of the
COMMISSION, report the names of the candidates so nominated to the secretary.
The secretary shall advise each member of the COMMISSION, in writing, at least five
(D) days prior to the annual meeting as to the nominees so selected. At the annual
meeting, the chair of the Nominating Committee shall report the names so
nominated. After this report is presented, nominations from the floor shall be invited.
Such nominations must be seconded. The secretary then shall prepare ballots
properly identifying the nominees, said ballots shall be distributed and tallied during
the annual meeting by a temporary committee appointed for that purpose.

ARTICLE IX - FINANCIAL PROVISIONS

The cost of maintaining the COMMISSION for regional planning purposes shall be
apportioned in accordance with the Bylaws. Each member shall contribute annually
according to the fee schedule adopted by the COMMISSION.



MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION
Articles of Agreement

ARTICLE X - AMENDMENT

These Articles of Agreement may be amended by resolution adopted by the COMMISSION at
any regular or special meeting and confirmed by a majority of the full members.

ARTICLE XI - TIME OF TAKING EFFECT

These Articles of Agreement shall take effect upon the adoption of the resolution of adoption
of these Articles of Agreement by the COMMISSION at any of its regular or special meetings,
and the confirmation by a majority of the members within one year thereafter.

ARTICLE XII - TAX EXEMPT STATUS AND DISSOLUTION

Notwithstanding any other provision of these articles, the organization shall not carry on any
other activities not permitted to be carried on, (a) by an organization exempt from Federal
Income Tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954 (or the
corresponding provision of any future United States Internal Revenue Law), or (b) by an
organization, contributions to which are deductible under Section 170(c) of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1954 (or the corresponding provision of any future United States Internal
Revenue Law).

Upon the dissolution of the organization, the Members of the COMMISSION shall, after
paying or making provision for the payment of all of the liabilities of the organization, dispose
of all of the assets of the organization in such manner so that they can be used exclusively
for public purposes.



MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION
BYLAWS
SECTION | - COMMISSION

A. PARLIAMENTARY PROCEDURE

On matters not addressed by the Articles of Agreement or Bylaws, Robert’s Rules of Order revised
(current version) shall govern the meetings of MORPC and meetings of all committees included in
these bylaws.

B. REPRESENTATION

Representatives to the COMMISSION must be selected as follows:

1. Representation on the COMMISSION

a)

Representation for municipalities and for the unincorporated portions of townships shall be
based upon the entire population of the municipality or the unincorporated portion of the
township as reported in the most recent U.S. Census or MORPC estimate.

Representation for counties shall be based upon the entire population of the villages and un-
incorporated portions of townships within that county plus 10% of the population of the cities
within that county as reported in the most recent U.S. census or MORPC estimate. In addi-
tion, the county engineer’s office of counties which are entirely within the MORPC Metropoli-
tan Planning Organization boundary shall be represented on the COMMISSION.

Representation on the COMMISSION for full members shall be determined based upon Table
1 Full Member Representation.

Associate members shall have such representation as may be established by the COMMIS-
SION.

Table 1: Full Member Representation
Full Member Population Range
Representatives Minimum Maximum

1 1 10,000

2 10,001 40,000

3 40,001 60,000

4 60,001 80,000

5 80,001 100,000

6 100,001 120,000

7 120,001 140,000

8 140,001 160,000

9 160,001 180,000

10 180,001 200,000

11 200,001 250,000

12 250,001 300,000

13 300,001 400,000

14 400,001 500,000

15 500,001 and up

Amended April 19, 2001 by adoption of Resolution 8-01

Amended November 15, 2001 by adoption of Resolution 29-01

Amended April 21, 2005 by adoption of Resolution 13-05

Amended November 10, 2011 by adoption of Resolution 46-11

Amended September 19, 2013 by adoption of Resolution 21-13
Amended June 12, 2014 by adoption of Resolution 16-14

Amended October 13, 2016 by adoption of Resolution 18-16




MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION
Bylaws

2. Appointing Authority

a) Full member representatives shall be appointed and submitted to MORPC in writing by the
mayor, chief executive officer, council president serving as mayor, or legislative body as de-
termined by the local unit of government.

b) Associate member representatives shall be appointed by such means as may be established
by the COMMISSION.

C. FINANCIAL PROVISIONS AND APPORTIONMENT OF COSTS

Each year the COMMISSION shall adopt a fee schedule by July 31 to be used in assessing members
for the upcoming calendar year. In every year evenly divisible by five, the COMMISSION shall estab-
lish a five-year fee schedule which it shall not exceed when adopting fees for each upcoming year.
Each year the COMMISSION shall provide a non-binding estimate of fees for the next five (5) years for
members to use in their financial planning.

Each participating municipality, participating county and member township shall contribute annually
according to the fee schedule adopted by the COMMISSION. When per-capita fees are used, each
member township shall contribute based on the population used to calculate its representation in
Section I.B.

The contribution for the first year of membership shall be paid during the month following the execu-
tion of an agreement between the member and the COMMISSION, and shall amount to that part of
the appropriate annual participation cost pro-rated on the basis of the balance of the time remaining
in that calendar year.

In addition each participating full member shall contribute not more than seven (7) cents per capita
of its population equal to its population used to calculate its representation in Section I.B. The funds
so contributed shall be set aside in a separate fund to amortize lease payments on the building or
buildings housing the COMMISSION'S offices and shall be used for no other purpose. In the event
that the COMMISSION decides that further capital improvements are needed after this lease is paid
out, the seven cents will continue to be committed to such purpose. If they are not needed, then
these contributions shall cease.

Associate members shall contribute at the rate and in the manner as may be established at the time
they become a participant, but this rate and manner may be revised by the COMMISSION from time to
time.

When per-capita fees are used in assessing annual member fees, all current year population figures
for municipalities, townships and counties shall be based on the latest U.S. Census when available, or
an estimate thereof made by the COMMISSION.
D. QUORUM
1. A quorum shall be defined as those members present and eligible to vote at any COMMISSION
meeting and/or committee meeting. An affirmative vote of a majority of the quorum is necessary
for any action taken.

E. CODE OF ETHICS

All members of the COMMISSION and all committees included within these Bylaws shall be aware of
and governed by the current Code of Ethics adopted by MORPC.



MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION
Bylaws

SECTION Il - EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

A. MEMBERSHIP

1. In 1998, one-half of the members were appointed for a one-year term and one-half of the mem-
bers for a two-year term by the COMMISSION at an annual meeting. Thereafter, members are ap-
pointed for two-year terms by the COMMISSION at the annual meeting. Nominees shall be from
recommendations by the Nominating Committee, with input from the officers and Executive Com-
mittee. Any member may be reappointed to an additional two terms of two years each (maximum

membership of six years).

Additional voting members shall consist of the current officers, the most recent past chair willing
to serve, selected committee chairs and working group chairs during the tenure of their groups.

The Nominating Committee shall attempt to encourage a diversity of membership representation
on the Executive Committee by taking into consideration the following constituency groups:

a)
b)
c)

Representation from Columbus, suburbs, counties, villages and townships
Members who are elected and nonelected
Members who are full-time (career) and part-time public officials

4. The vice chair of the COMMISSION shall chair the Executive Committee.

B. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE DUTIES

1. The Executive Committee shall:

a)

Review, study and approve operational policy and routine financial and administrative mat-
ters as necessary.

With the COMMISSION, develop and recommend public policy matters for discussion, input
and approval.

Develop, monitor and recommend changes to the COMMISSION in the overall strategic direc-
tion of the organization.

Meet monthly as necessary.

Be responsible for other duties as may be delegated or assigned to it by the COMMISSION.

2. The Executive Committee shall act on behalf of the full COMMISSION with regard to personnel
matters. Such authority shall include but not be limited to the following:

Establishing annual compensation limits within amounts budgeted and appropriated by the
COMMISSION for salaries and benefits.

Reviewing and adopting personnel policies to be maintained in an employee guidebook.

Making final and binding decisions on discrimination grievances as required by MORPC’s Af-
firmative Action program.

Subject to the Articles of Agreement, establishing proper level of personnel decision-making
authority for the executive director and directors and monitor staff personnel activities
monthly.

3. The Executive Committee shall periodically review and recommend revisions to the COMMIS-
SION’s general administrative policies and rules.

3



MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION
Bylaws

SECTION Il - FINANCIAL AUTHORIZATIONS

A. The COMMISSION shall at least annually approve an operating and capital budget and authorize ap-
propriations.

B. Subject to an approved budget and appropriation, the authority to enter into agreements shall be:

1.

2.

Executive director for agreements up to $75,000

Executive director plus an Executive Committee resolution for agreements greater than $75,000

C. The following approvals shall be required to authorize the obligations of funds for goods and services
(e.g. purchase order) and for the approval of payments (e.g. invoices):

1.

2.

3.

4.

Finance director shall authorize all obligations and payments.
Chief of staff or director of operations shall authorize all obligations and payments over $10,000.
Executive director shall authorize all obligations and payments greater than $25,000.

COMMISSION chair (or alternate officer) shall authorize all obligations and payments greater than
$50,000.

Executive director shall authorize all payments (e.g. reimbursements) to the chief of staff or direc-
tor of operations, regardless of amount.

Chief of staff or director of operations shall authorize all payments (e.g. reimbursements) to the
finance director, regardless of amount.

The COMMISSION chair shall approve all payments (e.g. reimbursements) to the executive direc-
tor or any MORPC COMMISSION member, regardless of amount. If the COMMISSION chair is una-
vailable, an alternate officer may approve; however, no official may authorize or sign for his/her
own expenditure or payment. Furthermore, no official may be the sole approval authority for any
individual transaction. Another officer shall authorize all payments (e.g. reimbursements) to the
COMMISSION chair.

In the absence of the finance director, the assistant finance director or equivalent staff member serving
as the acting finance director shall have the above authority in this Section Il of the finance director. In
the absence of the chief of staff or director of operations, the staff member serving as the acting chief of
staff or director of operations shall have the above authority in this Section Ill of the acting chief of staff
or director of operations. In the absence of the executive director, the chief of staff or alternately desig-
nated acting executive director shall have the above authority in this Section Ill of the executive director.

SECTION IV - LAND USE PLANNING ADVISORY COMMITTEE (LUPAC)

A. PURPOSE AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE LUPAC

1. a) LUPAC has been delegated the responsibility to review “small” township rezoning cases in

unincorporated areas of Franklin County and make recommendations as required by Section
519.12(E) of the Ohio Revised Code to the township on behalf of the MORPC COMMISSION.

b)  The purpose of the LUPAC is to review rezoning cases in Franklin County for townships with

township zoning.

c) All “large” township rezoning cases shall be forwarded directly to the MORPC COMMISSION

for review and recommendation. (See MORPC COMMISSION Review below.)

4



MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION
Bylaws

d)  Small rezoning cases will be defined as those with less than 100 lots proposed. Large rezon-

ing cases will be defined as those with greater than 100 lots proposed or cases using a
wastewater treatment system other than conventional on-site or central sanitary sewer sys-

tem.

2. LUPAC is also delegated the responsibility to review township zoning text amendments and rec-
ommend action to the MORPC COMMISSION.

3. LUPAC shall also serve as a resource to the MORPC COMMISSION to review and recommend poli-
cies on a wide range of land use issues including, but not limited to, land use related legislative
initiatives, local, county and regional land use plans and development code revisions.

MEETINGS

1. LUPAC shall meet as necessary to hear small township rezoning cases and township zoning text
amendments.

2. Quorum will be met by a simple majority of the members being present.

3. LUPAC recommendations on small township rezoning cases shall be forwarded to the respective
township on behalf of the MORPC COMMISSION as required by Section 519.12(E) of the Ohio Re-
vised Code.

4. LUPAC recommended action on township zoning text amendments shall be forwarded to the

MORPC COMMISSION for consideration.

MORPC COMMISSION REVIEW

1.

Large township rezoning cases shall be reviewed by LUPAC. LUPAC will forward
recommendations to the MORPC COMMISSION for action.

Only MORPC COMMISSION members from within Franklin County shall vote on recommendations
on large township rezoning cases or township zoning text amendments. MORPC COMMISSION
recommendations shall be forwarded to the respective township as required by Section
519.12(E) of the Ohio Revised Code.

The MORPC COMMISSION shall hear large township rezoning cases and make its recommenda-
tion at a regularly scheduled COMMISSION meeting. The MORPC chair shall call a special COM-
MISSION meeting to hear a large township rezoning case if necessary to comply with the town-
ship public hearing date as specified in the Ohio Revised Code.

LUPAC MEMBERS, APPOINTMENTS AND OFFICERS

1.

2.

3.

LUPAC shall be comprised of five (5) MORPC COMMISSION members from within Franklin County
as follows:

Franklin County Engineer

Franklin County at-large representative
Franklin County municipality

Franklin County townships

N R R

The MORPC chair, upon input from the MORPC executive director and LUPAC chair, shall appoint
LUPAC members and alternates annually (no later than May).

LUPAC members shall elect a chair and vice chair annually (no later than July).



MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION
Bylaws

4. Alternates may be used when a majority will not be reached by the LUPAC members or when
members will be unable to attend. Alternates should be from Franklin County and will be ap-
pointed by the chair of the COMMISSION. Alternates will have the ability to vote.

SECTION V - TRANSPORTATION POLICY COMMITTEE
NAME

The name of this committee shall be the Transportation Policy Committee for the Mid-Ohio Regional
Planning COMMISSION.

ORIGIN

The Transportation Policy Committee is provided for in the federally required Prospectus to the an-
nual Planning Work Program.

PURPOSE

The Transportation Policy Committee for the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning COMMISSION is designated
as the "Metropolitan Planning Organization” (MPO) for the Columbus metropolitan planning area as
authorized in federal transportation planning regulations and under agreement with the Ohio Depart-
ment of Transportation. The Transportation Policy Committee is the forum for cooperative decision-
making that will be taking the required approval actions as the MPO. The metropolitan area, per 23
United States Code §134 and 49 United States Code §5303, as amended, must have a continuing,
cooperative, and comprehensive (“3C”) transportation planning process that results in plans and pro-
grams that consider all transportation modes and supports metropolitan community development
and social goals. These plans and programs shall lead to the development and operation of an inte-
grated, intermodal transportation system that facilitates the efficient, economic movement of people
and goods. The MPO, in cooperation with the state and with operators of publicly owned transit ser-
vices, shall be responsible for carrying out the metropolitan transportation planning process.

QUORUM

A quorum shall be defined as those members present and eligible to vote at any meeting. An affirma-
tive vote of a majority of the quorum is necessary for any action taken.

MEMBERSHIP

Representation on the Transportation Policy Committee shall consist of local elected officials or their
representatives, officials of public agencies that administer or operate major modes of transportation
in the transportation study area, and appropriate State transportation officials; and such other local
elected officials, public transportation agencies, or appropriate State officials as determined by the
Transportation Policy Committee. The transportation study area is that portion of central Ohio that
has been identified and mutually agreed to be included in it by the Transportation Policy Committee
and the Governor of Ohio, acting through the Ohio Department of Transportation, subject to the ap-
proval of the United States Department of Transportation.

Representation shall be determined as follows:
1. Full members of the COMMISSION that are located wholly or partially within the boundaries of the

transportation study area. These members will have the same representatives on the Transporta-
tion Policy Committee as they have on the MORPC COMMISSION.

2. The Commissioners of any county which is not a member of the COMMISSION, but which has ter-

6



MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION
Bylaws

ritory within the transportation planning area and which has entered into a commitment to partici-
pate in the 3C process for that territory shall be entitled to one representative on the Transporta-
tion Policy Committee.

3. Cities, villages and townships that are located wholly or partially within the boundaries of the
transportation study area that are dues-paying members of the transportation program but are
not full members of MORPC are entitled to one representative each on the Transportation Policy
Committee, selected by the city, village or township.

4. Transportation Agencies:

In addition to the community representatives detailed above, the Transportation Policy Commit-
tee will offer representation (1 representative per entity) to the following transportation-related
entities:

a) Major authorities or agencies operating per the Ohio Revised Code, whose primary function is
to provide transportation services or operate transportation facilities within the transportation
study area such as, but not limited to:

i. Central Ohio Transit Authority
ii. Columbus Regional Airport Authority
iii. Delaware Area Transit Agency
iv. Licking County Transit Board
v. Lancaster Public Transit System

b) The Ohio Department of Transportation
c) The Ohio Environmental Protection Agency

d) Others, or modifications to the above, as may be required or recommended by the U.S. De-
partment of Transportation or the Ohio Department of Transportation

e) Each transportation agency may designate a primary representative and an alternate repre-
sentative who may be seated at such times as the primary representative is unable to partici-
pate in the Transportation Policy Committee.

f) Other local elected officials or their representatives, public transportation agencies, or appro-
priate state officials as determined by the Transportation Policy Committee including officers
of the COMMISSION in the event that the officer is not already a member of the Transporta-
tion Policy Committee and the current chairperson of the MORPC Community Advisory Com-
mittee.

F. OFFICERS

The officers of the Transportation Policy Committee shall be the same as those of the COMMISSION
and shall serve in the same roles and for the same terms. The chair may appoint such special com-
mittees or task forces as may be necessary from time to time in order to perform the purpose of the
Transportation Policy Committee, or as the Transportation Policy Committee may otherwise direct.
The chair shall preside at all meetings of the Transportation Policy Committee. The vice chair shall
serve as chair during any absence of the Chair and shall assist the Chair in performance of duties. It
shall be the duty of the secretary to ensure that a full record of the proceedings of the Transportation
Policy Committee is prepared and kept, and he or she shall perform such other duties as the Trans-
portation Policy Committee may from time to time direct.

G. SUBCOMMITTEES

The Transportation Policy Committee is advised by three standing subcommittees:

7



MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION
Bylaws

1. The Community Advisory Committee is provided for in the Public Involvement Process (as is re-
quired under federal transportation planning regulations), which sets out participation require-
ments for Metropolitan Transportation Planning and Programming.

2. The Transportation Advisory Committee is to provide technical advice to the Transportation Policy
Committee as defined in the biennial Agreement between the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning COM-
MISSION and the State of Ohio, Department of Transportation, for Urban Transportation Planning
and Transportation Programs.

3. The Attributable Funds Committee is to provide advice to the Transportation Policy Committee,
the Transportation Advisory Committee (TAC), and the Community Advisory Committee (CAC) on
the development and execution of the processes used to allocate MORPC-attributable federal
funds to projects and project sponsors.

The Transportation Policy Committee shall adopt guidelines to govern the subcommittees, the selec-
tion process for subcommittee members, and establish terms to encourage diverse involvement in
subcommittee membership and leadership.

MEETINGS

The Transportation Policy Committee will meet monthly as necessary.

SECTION VI - REGIONAL POLICY ROUNDTABLE
NAME

The name of this committee shall be the Regional Policy Roundtable for the Mid-Ohio Regional Plan-
ning COMMISSION.

ORIGIN

The Regional Policy Roundtable is a standing committee to evaluate and advise the COMMISSION on
legislative issues and public policy matters of regional importance at the local, state, and federal
level.

PURPOSE

The Regional Policy Roundtable seeks to develop a public policy agenda that aims to reflect the objec-
tives and ideals of both MORPC’s members and the greater community. The public policy agenda will
be reviewed and adopted by the COMMISSION. The COMMISSION and MORPC staff will utilize the
public policy agenda to proactively advocate for policies and opportunities to enhance the quality of
life in central Ohio and advance the region.

The Regijonal Policy Roundtable will identify new public policy areas, legislation, and issues of inter-
est. The Roundtable will research and provide recommendations to the COMMISSION on positions on
legislative and executive issues.

QUORUM

A quorum shall be defined as those members present and eligible to vote at any meeting. An affirma-
tive vote of a majority of the quorum is necessary for any action taken.

MEMBERSHIP

Representation on the Regional Policy Roundtable shall consist of members from the COMMISSION,

8



MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION
Bylaws

MORPC subcommittees and working groups, business community, non-profit organizations, education
sector, and residents in the REGION.

The Regjonal Policy Roundtable shall adopt guidelines for membership, the selection process, and
establish terms to encourage diverse involvement in subcommittee membership and leadership.

OFFICERS

The chair of the Regional Policy Roundtable shall be a full member representative of the COMMIS-
SION and is selected and documented by the COMMISSION chair and executive director. He/she will
serve a two-year term at the pleasure of the COMMISSION chair and executive director.

The vice chair of the Regional Policy Roundtable shall be a full member representative of the COM-
MISSION and is selected by the COMMISSION chair and executive director. He/she will serve a two-
year term at the pleasure of the COMMISSION chair and executive director.

MEETINGS

The Regional Policy Roundtable will meet every other month or as necessary.

SECTION VII - SUSTAINABILITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE
NAME

The name of this committee shall be the Sustainability Advisory Committee for the Mid-Ohio Regional
Planning Commission.

ORIGIN

The Sustainability Advisory Committee is a standing committee to evaluate and advise the COMMIS-
SION on matters of regional importance pertaining to environmental and fiscal sustainability. It may
address topics such as air quality, energy, environmental infrastructure, farmland preservation,
greenways, innovative land use regulations and tools, local food, materials management, water qual-
ity, sustainable growth and planning, related transportation research innovations, and regional sys-
tems.

PURPOSE

The Sustainability Advisory Committee’s primary purpose is to advise and guide a diverse community
of local governments and stakeholders along with MORPC working groups and staff on environmen-
tally and economically sustainable practices, opportunities, and tools that support regional growth
and vitality in the Central Ohio region. To do so, the Committee shall regularly adopt goals, objectives
and strategies to further the regional goals outlined in the Metropolitan Transportation Plan and other
plans as appropriate. The objectives and strategies shall be consistent with other MORPC adopted
strategic plans, public policy agenda, and sustainability agreements. The COMMISSION and MORPC
staff will utilize the goals to support existing related agency programs, with a focus on those in the
departments of Energy & Air Quality and Planning & Environment, and to seek out opportunities to
assist local governments, enhance the quality of life in Central Ohio, and advance the region. The
Sustainability Advisory Committee will research and provide recommendations to the Commission as
guided by the annual goals and as determined by the Committee.

QUORUM

A quorum shall be defined as those members present and eligible to vote at any meeting. An affirma-
tive vote of a majority of the quorum is necessary for any action taken.

9



MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION
Bylaws

E. MEMBERSHIP

Membership shall be nominated by the Executive Director, MORPC Department Directors, or commit-
tee members and appointed by the Committee Chair and Executive Director.

To stagger the expiration of terms, one-half of the initial members shall serve for one-year terms and
one-half of the members shall serve for two-year terms. Thereafter, as terms expire, all members
shall serve two year terms with the option to renew upon being nominated and approved by the Com-
mittee Chair and Executive Director. A member may serve a maximum of three consecutive terms.

Representation on the Sustainability Advisory Committee shall include at least 12 members. All mem-
bers shall be located within the MORPC Region. Due consideration shall be given to the make-up of
the Committee to ensure no one entity is over-represented on the Committee. The Sustainability Advi-
sory Committee composition shall consist of the following;:

1. A Chair and Vice Chair from COMMISSION.
2. One appointed representative from each subcommittee established in section H (subcommittees).

3. At least three representatives from the Green Pact (one small community/Township representative,
one large community representative, and one associate/organizational member representative).

4. A minimum of three other seats including representatives from various stakeholder groups in the
region, including but not limited to the business community, non-profit organizations, government,
education sector, and community members.

Under the guidance of the Executive Director and Committee Chair the Sustainability Advisory Com-
mittee shall adopt guidelines to establish the size limit of the Committee, and provisions to encour-
age diverse involvement in subcommittee membership and leadership.

F. OFFICERS

The chair of the Sustainability Advisory Committee must be a full member representative of the COM-
MISSION and is selected and documented by the COMMISSION Chair and Executive Director. He/she
will serve a two-year term at the pleasure of the COMMISSION Chair and Executive Director.

The Vice Chair of the Sustainability Advisory Committee must be a full member representative of the
COMMISSION and is selected by the COMMISSION Chair and Executive Director. He/she will serve a
two-year term at the pleasure of the COMMISSION Chair and Executive Director.

G. SUBCOMMITTEES

The Sustainability Advisory Committee is advised by standing subcommittees or working groups as
established by the Committee Chair and Executive Director to address key regional issue areas such
as energy, air quality, food, materials management, greenways, water quality and resources, or other
working groups as needed.

The Sustainability Advisory Committee may adopt bylaws to govern the subcommittees, the selection
process of subcommittee members, and establish provisions to encourage broad involvement in sub-
committee membership and leadership.

H. MEETINGS

The Sustainability Advisory Committee will meet as necessary. Quarterly meetings are recommended.

SECTION VIl - CENTRAL OHIO RURAL TRANSPORTATION PLANNING COMMITTEE
10



MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION
Bylaws

NAME

The name of this committee shall be the Central Ohio Rural Transportation Planning COMMITTEE for
the Mid-Ohio Regjonal Planning COMMISSION.

ORIGIN

The COMMITTEE is provided for the federally and state sponsored “Rural Transportation Planning Or-
ganization” (RTPO) and is administered by an ODOT approved Planning Work Program at the Mid-Ohio
Regional Planning Commission.

PURPOSE

The COMMITTEE is designated as the RTPO for Fairfield, Knox, Madison, Marion, Morrow, Pickaway
and Union counties surrounding the Columbus metropolitan planning area in the Mid-Ohio Regional
Planning Commission’s area of interest and designated by a COMMISSION agreement with the Ohio
Department of Transportation. The COMMITTEE is the forum for cooperative decision-making that will
be taking the required approval actions as the RTPO. The State of Ohio has designated the RTPO
area, per 23 USC § 135(m), as amended, to enhance the planning, coordination, and implementation
of statewide strategic long-range transportation plans and transportation improvement programs,
with an emphasis on addressing the needs of non-metropolitan areas of the State.

MEMBERSHIP

In order to be a member of the Central Ohio RTPO, each County Board of Commissioners must exe-
cute a Memorandum of Understanding and resolution declaring membership in the COMMITTEE and
the creation of a COUNTY SUBCOMMITTEE. All terms of Central Ohio RTPO Membership are managed
by the Memorandum of Understanding.

QUORUM

A quorum shall be defined as at least one representative from at least two thirds of the member
counties in the RTPO. An affirmative vote of a majority of the quorum is necessary for any action
taken.

MEMBERSHIP REPRESENTATION

Fourteen representatives on the COMMITTEE shall consist of two local elected officials from each
COUNTY SUBCOMMITTEE selected by the County Board of Commissioners for their respective county.
Seven additional representatives on the COMMITTEE shall consist of one member from each COUNTY
SUBCOMMITTEE selected by the members of the COMMITTEE that are selected by the County Boards
of Commissioners. Each member representative may identify a designee to attend COMMITTEE
meetings on their behalf with full member representation privilege. Additional ex-officio representa-
tives shall include appropriate State and Federal transportation officials. The members must be ap-
pointed biannually by their appointing authority. A list of required and suggested members may be
found in line item (J) of this document.

OFFICERS

The officers of the COMMITTEE shall be selected from the COMMITTEE membership annually and an-
nounced at the first official meeting of the COMMITTEE. The committee shall select the following offic-
ers: a Chairperson to preside over meetings, a Vice-Chairperson to act on the Chairperson’s behalf in
his or her absence, and a Secretary to certify all minutes of COMMITTEE business meetings.

MEETINGS

11



MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION
Bylaws

The COMMITTEE will meet at a minimum of once annually. Additional meetings may be called by the
Chairperson or Vice-Chairperson, fulfilling the Chair’s duties, or by any three (3) members of the
COMMITTEE.

NOTICE

Notice of meetings shall be mailed and/or electronically mailed at least one week in advance of the
meeting date, whenever practical.

COUNTY SUBCOMMITTEES

The COMMITTEE is advised by COUNTY SUBCOMMITTEES. One COUNTY SUBCOMMITTEE represents
each county.

Required and suggested representation shall be determined as follows:

1. Required: One member of the County Board of Commissioners

2. Required: The County Engineer

3. Reaquired: A representative of the chief executive officer of the City with the largest number of
people residing within the boundaries of the county, as determined by the decennial census of

the United States.

4. Required: Full members the COMMISSION located wholly or partially within the boundaries of the
subcommittee county.

5. Representation of other municipalities and townships that are located wholly or partially within
the boundaries of the county.

6. Representation of any local or regional planning commission that is serving the county wholly or
partially.

7. Representation of agencies that provide transportation services to the county wholly or partially,
including:
a) Transit Agencies

b) Vehicle for Hire Companies

c) Providers serving individuals with disabilities
d) Providers serving seniors

e) Providers serving at-risk populations

8. Representation of the Ohio Department of Transportation District Office and/ or the County Gar-
age.

9. Representation of business and general citizenry.

10. Any other representative that the Board of County Commissioners invites to participate.

SECTION IX - REGIONAL DATA ADVISORY COMMITTEE
NAME

The name of this committee shall be the Regional Data Advisory Committee for the Mid-Ohio Regional
Planning Commission.

12



MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION
Bylaws

B. ORIGIN

The Regjonal Data Advisory Committee is a standing committee to evaluate and advise the COMMIS-
SION on matters of regional importance pertaining to data analysis. It will evaluate data needs in the
region and prioritize development of tools used for analysis. It will set data standards to enable data
interoperability and assure data credibility. It will explore public/private partnerships and other collab-
oration opportunities around using data.

C. PURPOSE

The Regional Data Advisory Committee seeks to develop and maintain collaboration around data de-
velopment, publishing and usage for the purpose of analysis to reflect the objectives and ideals of
both MORPC’s members and the greater community. The actions shall support other MORPC adopted
strategic plans, and policy agendas. The COMMISSION and MORPC staff will utilize the data to sup-
port existing related agency programs, and seek out opportunities to assist local governments, en-
hance the quality of life in Central Ohio, and advance the region. The Regional Data Advisory Commit-
tee will research and provide recommendations to the Commission as guided by the annual goals and
as determined by the committee.

D. QUORUM

A quorum shall be defined as those members present and eligible to vote at any meeting. An affirma-
tive vote of a majority of the quorum is necessary for any action taken.

E. MEMBERSHIP

Membership shall be nominated by the Executive Director, MORPC Department Directors, or commit-

tee members and appointed by the Committee Chair and Executive Director. All members shall serve
two year terms with the option to renew upon being nominated and approved by the Committee Chair
and Executive Director. A member may serve a maximum of three consecutive terms.

Representation on the Regional Data Advisory Committee shall include at least 15 members. All
members shall be located within the MORPC Region. Due consideration shall be given to the make-up
of the Committee to ensure diverse representation from various entities throughout the region, espe-
cially from MORPC member communities.

The Regional Data Advisory Committee composition shall consist of the following;:

A Chair from the COMMISSION.

A Vice-Chair

Representation from an Associate MORPC Member.

Representation from the Central Ohio GIS User Group.

Representation from the Economic Development Community.

A minimum of five seats from community and business organizations including representatives
from education, health, tech entrepreneurs, transportation, and other data-intensive sectors.

7. A minimum of six other seats including representatives from various stakeholder groups in the
region, including but not limited to business, media, non-profits, and research organizations and
community members.

IECHEN AN

To stagger the expiration of terms, one-half of the initial members shall serve for one-year terms and
one-half of the members shall serve for two-year terms. Thereafter, as terms expire, all members
shall serve two year terms with the option to renew upon being nominated and approved by the Com-
mittee Chair and Executive Director.

Under the guidance of the Executive Director and Committee Chair, the Regional Data Advisory Com-
mittee shall adopt guidelines to establish the size limit of the Committee, and provisions to encour-
age diverse involvement in subcommittee membership and leadership.

13



MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION
Bylaws
F. OFFICERS

The chair of the Regional Data Advisory Committee must be a full member representative of the COM-
MISSION and is selected and documented by the COMMISSION Chair and Executive Director. He/she
will serve a two-year term at the pleasure of the COMMISSION Chair and Executive Director.
The Vice Chair of the Regional Data Advisory Committee is selected by the COMMISSION Chair and
Executive Director. He/she will serve a two-year term at the pleasure of the COMMISSION Chair and
Executive Director.

G. MEETINGS

The Regjonal Data Advisory Committee will meet as necessary. Quarterly meetings are recommended.
SECTION VIII - TIME OF TAKING EFFECT

These Bylaws shall supersede any prior action of the COMMISSION inconsistent with such Bylaws.
These Bylaws shall be effective upon the approval of the COMMISSION.

14



¥morpc

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission
285 East Main Street » Columbus, Ohio 4321 5-5272

Phone (614) 228-2663

FAX {6G14) 621-2401

MEMORANDUM

10: Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission
Administrative Committee
Officers and Board Members

FROM: Charles J. Olimpio, Jr., director
Finance and Administration

DATE: October 6, 1994
RE: Proposed Resolution 45-94: "ADOPTING A REVISED CODE OF ETHICS
FOR THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION"

As part of our systematic review of Commission policies this year, legal counsel has prepared
this revised Code of Ethics to incorporate updates needed due to changes in the law. There
were only two changes to the existing code:

1 Section 2 B - improved language regarding competitive bidding exclusions.

2 Section 2 E - added to prohibit improper influence over investment of public
funds in any security, mortgage, etc.

CJO/cl

Attachment: Resolution



RESOLUTION 45-94

ADOPTING A REVISED CODE OF ETHICS FOR THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL
PLANNING COMMISSION

WHEREAS, the members and employees of the Commission are subject to the Ohio Ethics
Law and related statutes; and

WHEREAS, it has been deemed appropriate that members, committee members and
employees be aware of and abide by ethics appropriate to this Commission; and

WHEREAS, MORPC adopted a revised Code of Ethics on October 19, 1989, by Resolution
27-89:; and

WHEREAS, as a part of our systematic review of Commission policies, this policy has been
updated by legal counsel; now therefore

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION:

Section 1. A. That no member, committee member or employee of the Commission shall
receive or agree to receive directly or indirectly, compensation, anything of
value or the promise of anything of value other than from the Commission
or the governmental unit with which they serve and represents on the
Commission, which compensation or thing of value is of such a character
as to manifest a substantial and improper influence upon them with respect
to their duties.

B.  That it shall not constitute a violation of this section for a member of the
Commission to receive a partnership distributive share of fees for services
rendered by another partner in any case, proceeding, application or other
matter which comes before the Commission, provided that the member
does not render personal services or appear before the Commission on the
matter. The member, committee member or employee also must abstain
from any vote, recommendation or discussion on the matter.

Section 2.  That no member, committee member or employee of the Commission shall:

A. Authorize, or employ the authority or influence of their office to secure
authorization of any public contract in which they, a member of their
family, or any of their business associates has an interest.

B. During their term of office or within one year thereafter, occupy any
position of profit in the prosecution of a public contract authorized by
them or by the Commission, of which they are a member at the time
of authorization, unless the contract was let by competitive bidding to
the lowest and best bidder.



Resolution 45-94

Page 2

Section 3.

Section 4.

Section 3.

C. Have an interest in the profits or benefits of a public contract entered into
by or for the use of the Commission.

D. Have an interest in the profits or benefits of a public contract that is not let
by competitive bidding when required by law, and that involves more than
$150 dollars.

E. Authorize or employ the authority or influence of their office to secure
the investment of public funds in any share, bond, mortgage or other
security, with respect to which they, a member of their family, or any
of their business associates either has an interest, is an underwriter, or
receives any brokerage, organization or servicing fees.

That no member, committee member or employee of the Commission shall take
part in discussion, vote or use the authority or influence of their office on any
case, proceeding, application or other matter which comes before the
Commission in which they, a member of their family, any of their private
business associates, or any private entity of which they are an owner or agent,
has an interest which conflicts with the duties of the member. An interest is
deemed to conflict with the duties of the member if the interest has the direct
aim or purpose of profit or gain for the member, members of their family, their
private business associates, or any private entity of which they are owner or
agent. An interest is deemed not to conflict if there is an overriding public
interest involved and the profit or gain of any private individual or entity is only
incidental.

That no present or former member, committee member or employee of the
Commission shall represent a client, or act in a representative capacity, or any
matter before the Commission or any other government agency in which they
have personally participated while an officer or employee of the Commission.
This prohibition will apply during Commission service and for one year
thereafter.

That if it appears that a member, committee member or employee of the
Commission has violated or is about to violate this resolution, the chair of the
Commission or any committee thereof, upon being apprised of the violation or
potential violation shall rule that the member, committee member or employee in
violation or about to be in violation is out of order and may not participate in
vote, recommendation or discussion. If such violation has already occurred, the
chair may take the matter up for reconsideration if such violation has had an
effect on the recommendation or decision of the staff or any committee or the
Commission.



Resolution 45-94

Page 3

Section 6. A.

That if a complaint is made to the Commission against a member,
committee member or employee, the Commission shall give to the person
against whom the complaint is made 10 days written notice of such
complaint and direct the complaint to the Administrative Committee.

The Administrative Committee shall seek advice from counsel on whether
the member, committee member or employee has a conflict of interest and
should abstain from any vote or recommendation. If necessary, the matter
will be referred to the Ohio Ethics Commission or the appropriate
prosecuting attorney for an advisory opinion or investigation.

Section 7:  That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute
and deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal counsel, he
shall deem necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution.

Section 8:  That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and
actions of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this
resolution were taken in open meetings of this Commission.

Effective date:
Submitted by:
Prepared by:
Authority:

For action date:

1 P

-

Jolin S. Ensign, Chair //
Mid-Ohio Regional IZa'nni'ng Commission

October 20, 1994

Administrative Committee

Baker & Hostetler, legal counsel

Ohio Revised Code 713.21, Chapter 102 and Section 2921.42
October 20, 1994



APPENDIX B

EINANCIAL DOCUMENTATION




INDIRECT COST
ALLOCATION PLAN

CY 2021

MID-OHIO REGIONAL 111 Liberty Street, Suite 100

< Columbus, Ohio 43215
614.228.2663
‘ morpc.org

PLANNING COMMISSION




Between

FRINGE BENEFIT & INDIRECT COST RATE AGREEMENT

The Ohio Department of Transportation and
The Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission

December 11, 2020

The rates approved in this agreement are for use on grants, contracts and other agreements with the Federal and

State Government, subject to the conditions in Section III.

] SECTION I: INDIRECT COST RATES

RATE TYPE: The Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission has adopted the FIXED RATE METHOD of
calculating the Fringe Benefit and Indirect Cost Rates. The rates are calculated based on the most recently audited
Fiscal Year with adjustments for projected changes. Once approved, the provisional rates are billed for the contract
period. At the end of the Fiscal Year, the actual rates are calculated and the difference between the estimated and
actual costs, for the period covered by the rates, are “carried forward” as adjustments to the future rates.

TYPE EFFECTIVE PERIOD RATE (%) APPLICATION

FROM TO ]
PROVISIONAL FIXED 1/1/2019 12/31/2019 59.00 FRINGE BENEFIT RATE
PROVISIONAL FIXED 1/1/2019 12/31/2019 57.20 INDIRECT COST RATE
FINAL FIXED *** 1/1/2019 12/31/2019 62.54 FRINGE BENEFITRATE
FINAL FIXED *** 1/1/2019 12/31/2019 56.28 INDIRECT COST RATE
PROVISIONAL FIXED 1/1/2020 12/31/2020 61.00 FRINGE BENEFIT RATE
PROVISIONAL FIXED 1/1/2020 12/31/2020 59.00 INDIRECT COST RATE |
FINAL FIXED 1/1/2020 12/31/2020 FRINGE BENEFIT RATE
FINAL FIXED 1/1/2020 12/31/2020 INDIRECT COST RATE
PROVISIONAL FIXED 1/1/2021 12/31/2021 58.00 FRINGE BENEFITRATE |
PROVISIONAL FIXED 1/1/2021 12/31/2021 62.00 INDIRECT COST RATE
FINAL FIXED 1/1/2021 12/31/2021 FRINGE BENEFIT RATE
FINAL FIXED 1/1/2021 12/31/2021 INDIRECT COST RATE

BASE: For Fringe Benefits, the base is total direct and indirect labor.
For Indirect Costs, the base is total direct labor (including direct labor fringe benefits).
Fx The FINAL CY2019 rates have not been audited by ODOT.

| SECTION II: SPECIAL REMARKS

A. TREATMENT OF FRINGE BENEFITS:

Fringe benefits include Holiday, Sick and Vacation Leave, PERS, Hospitalization, Workers Compensation,
etc. These expenses are billed to contract(s) based on the applicable fringe benefit rate times the direct
labor expenses incurred for the contract(s).

B. TREATMENT OF INDIRECT COSTS:
Indirect costs are not specifically identified to a cost objective. These include operational and
administrative expenses (e.g., payroll processing, building rent, depreciation, etc.) These expenses are
billed to contract(s) based on the applicable indirect cost rate times the direct labor plus direct labor fringe
benefit expenses incurred for the contract(s).

MORPC - 2021 Rate Agmt

Page 1 of 2



[ SECTION III: GENERAL

A.

LIMITATIONS:

The rates in this Agreement are subject to any statutory or administrative limitations and apply to a given
grant, contract, or other agreement only to the extent that funds are available. Acceptance of the rates is
subject to the following conditions: (1) Only costs incurred by the organization were included in its indirect
cost pool as finally accepted: such costs are legal obligations of the organization and are allowable under
the governing cost principles; (2) The same costs that have been treated as indirect costs are not claimed
as direct costs; (3) Similar types of costs have been accorded consistent accounting treatment; and (4) The
information provided by the organization which was used to establish the rates is not later found to be
materially incomplete or inaccurate by the Federal or State Government. In such situations the rate(s)
would be subject to renegotiation at the discretion of the governmental entity.

ACCOUNTING CHANGES:

This agreement is based on the accounting system purported by the organization to be in effect during the
Agreement period. Changes to the method of accounting for costs which affect the amount of
reimbursement resulting from the use of this Agreement require prior approval of the authorized
representative of the Ohio Department of Transportation. Such changes include, but are not limited to,
changes in the charging of a particular type of cost from indirect to direct. Failure to obtain approval may
result in cost disallowances.

FIXED RATE:

If a fixed rate is in this Agreement, it is based on an estimate of the costs for the period covered by the
rate. When the actual costs for this period are determined, an adjustment will be made to a rate of a future
year(s) to compensate for the difference between the costs used to establish the fixed rate and actual costs.

USE BY OTHER FEDERAL/STATE AGENCIES:

The rates in this Agreement were approved in accordance with the authority in 2 CFR Part 200, and should
be applied to grants, contracts, and other agreement covered by this Regulation, subject to any limitations
in A above. The organization may provide copies of the Agreement to other Federal agencies to give them
early notification of the Agreement.

OTHER:

If any Federal contract, grant or other agreement is reimbursing indirect costs by a means other than the
approved rate(s) in this Agreement, the organization should (1) credit such costs to the affected programs,
and (2) apply the approved rate(s) to the appropriate base to identify the proper amount of indirect costs
allocable to these programs.

BY THE DEPARTMENT/AGENCY: BY THE PASS THROUGH ENTITY ON BEHALF OF

THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT:

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission Ohio Department of Transportation

{(DEPARTMENT/AGENCY) (DEPARTMENT/AGENCY)

—

UJ/&Z Voo Ae G/(Lﬁtu Jrﬂ MM@%}/‘

(SIGNATURE) (SIGIJATURE)

William Murdock Jack Marchbanks as signed by Sara Downs

(NAME) (NAME)

Executive Director Director

(TITLE) (TITLE)

13 /8 /3030

(DATE)

(DATE)

MORPC - 2021 Rate Agmt Page 2 of 2



MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION
NOVEMBER 25, 2020

COST ALLOCATION PLAN
For the Period: January 1, 2021 through December 31, 2021 (CY2021)

Table of Contents

(O =1 I | [ ] SRR 1
EXECULIVE SUMMATIY ..., 2
Detailed Cost Allocation PIan/PropoSal ...........cc.uuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieee et 3
(CT=T o [T = TN @XoT 0] o] 1 F=Tg Lol =T A\ U (o || SO 3
Current Year Indirect Cost Allocations and RaALe............ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee i 3
Proposed CY2021 Indirect Cost Allocations, Rates and Bases............cccccceee e, 3
Indirect Cost Allocation Rates Prior Year Information.............cccooooei e, 3
Indirect Cost AllOCAtioNS AN BASES........coooiiiieiee e 4
Estimated Soft FUNAING/TUIMOVET ..o, 5
INAIreCt COSES DY FUNCHION ......coiiiiiiiiii ettt e e e e e e e e e e e anne 5
o (T U AV AV = VT Vo = 0 0= o | 5
Executive Director and Chief of Staff COSIS ........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 5
HUM@AN RESOUICES ... ittt e e e e e e et e e e e e e e et e e et e e e e e aanes 6
F o [T T IS £tz LAY IS =T Yo 6
Information TEChNOIOQY SEIVICES .....ccvviuiiii i 6
T F=T g (o YT PP POPPRRR 7
Contract and ProPOSal...........eeeiiiiiiiiiiiii et 7
Communications & ENQAGEMENT .......cciiiiiiiieiiiiei e e e e e e e e et s e e e e e e e e et e e e eeeeenees 8
Technical Program SUPEIVISION. .......uuuuuuuiuruieiirrueieereerrrrrrrrrerererrrrrr ... 8
Direct vs. INdireCt CoSt AlIOCALIONS.........ciiiiiiiieiiiie et e e et e e e e eeeeaes 9
Reallocated (User Charge) EXPENSES.....ciii i it eeeee et st e e e e e et s s e e e e e e e eearann e e e eeeeeenes 9
Depreciation Cost AlIOCALION .........ccooiiiii i, 9
Fringe Benefits COSt AIOCALIONS ........cuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie et e e e 10
Paid time Off (PTO) and Sick Leave Cash-Out OPLiON ..........ceiieeiiiiiriiiiiiee e eiiiineeeeee e 10
EXClUdAbIe COSES ... 10
UNAIIOWEADIE COSES ...ooeiiiiieiie ettt e e e e et e e e e e e s ettt e e e e e e e e e nnnnbaneeeeeas 10
Transportation Program INCOME POLICY .........uuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieee et 11
Board Member TraVel.......ooooo oo 11
Development FUNd ... 12
SEIVICE 10 MEIMDEIS .outiiii et e e e e e e et e e e e e e e e sttt eeeeeeeesesbraaaanes 12
Legislation Monitoring, Review and COMMENT...........ooiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeiii e 12
Detail of Total Budgeted EXPENSES .......ccooeeeiiee i, 14
Schedule of Direct Labor, Fringe Benefits and General Overhead............ccccccccovveeen. 15-18
Historical Schedules
Actual Indirect Costs, Allocations, Rates & Carry-forward Variances .............cccccvvvvvvnnnnn. 19
Total Actual Fringe Benefit COSES .....uuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiieesieee e eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeseeeeeeeeeeeeees 20
Direct Labor Fringe BeNETitS.........uuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieee ettt 21

Fringe Benefits History by Calendar Year 2010-2019........cccviiiiiiiiiiirriiiiiiin e, 22



CERTIFICATION
MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION

Certificate of Indirect Costs

This is to certify that | have reviewed the indirect cost rate proposal submitted herewith and to the
best of my knowledge and belief:

(1) All costs included in this proposal for the calendar year ending 12/31/2021 to establish billing or
final indirect costs rates for calendar 2021 are allowable in accordance with the requirements of the
Federal award(s) to which they apply and the provisions of Subpart E—Cost Principles of Part 200.
Unallowable costs have been adjusted for in allocating costs as indicated in the indirect cost
proposal.

(2) All costs included in this proposal are properly allocable to Federal awards on the basis of a
beneficial or causal relationship between the expenses incurred and the agreements to which they
are allocated in accordance with applicable requirements. Further, the same costs that have been
treated as indirect costs have not been claimed as direct costs. Similar types of costs have been
accounted for consistently and the Federal government will be notified of any accounting changes
that would affect the predetermined rate.

| declare that the foregoing is true and correct.

Governmental Unit: Mid-Ohio Regianal Planning Commission
Signature:

Name of Official: Susan Tsen

Title: Einance Director & Assistant Director of Operations
Date of Execution: November 25, 2020

MORPC Cost Allocation Plan CY2021

MORPC

L\




MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION
COST ALLOCATION PLAN/PROPOSAL
For the Period: 1/1/2021 through 12/31/2021

Executive Summary

Because the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC) receives substantial funds from
the federal government, it is required to abide by federal regulations Uniform Grants Guidance,
2CFR, Part 200, which specifies administrative, cost accounting and audit rules, respectively. The
cost accounting rules specify the criteria for classifying costs as direct or indirect. The regulations
also require that MORPC submit and negotiate with the U.S. Department of Transportation
(authority delegated to Ohio Department of Transportation) an "Indirect Cost Allocation Plan”, which
establishes an indirect cost rate for the upcoming fiscal year. The primary purpose of these
regulations and the cost allocation plan is to arrive at and recover the actual total cost of a contract
with no provision for profit. This ensures that all grantors and contractors pay their fair share of
indirect or common costs as well as directly related costs.

Indirect costs are those costs not readily identifiable with a particular grant, contract, project,
function or activity but necessary to the general operation of the organization and the conduct of the
activities it performs. These costs include the common costs of operating and maintaining buildings
and equipment, administrative salaries, general telecommunications expense, general travel, and
supplies.

MORPC's financial statements, including indirect costs, are audited annually. All recent audits,
including 2019, have found MORPC's financial statements and indirect cost rates to be fairly
presented and in compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

MORPC has a formal, signed indirect cost negotiation agreement with the Ohio Department of
Transportation on behalf of the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) for the period January 1,
2020 - December 31, 2020. This agreement is applicable to all grants, contracts and activities of
MORPC. The agreement specifies an indirect cost allocation rate of 59.0 percent of direct salaries
and benefits and a fringe benefit rate of 61.0 percent of salaries for January - December 2020. The
base for allocating fringe benefits is direct and indirect salaries and the base for allocating indirect
costs is direct salaries plus fringe benefits.

The detailed report on the following pages proposes the indirect cost allocation rate for the period
January 1, 2021 - December 31, 2021. The proposed indirect cost allocation rate is 62.0 percent of
direct salaries and fringe benefits. The proposed fringe benefit rate is 58.0 percent of direct and
indirect salaries. Note that the indirect cost allocation rate is not equivalent to a general and
administrative rate typically calculated by nonprofit entities.

MORPC Cost Allocation Plan CY2021

MORPC

L\




Detailed Cost Allocation Plan/Proposal

General Compliance, Audit

This cost allocation plan has been prepared in accordance with the following government
regulations:

a. Uniform Grants Guidance, 2CFR, Part 200

b. Contract Audit Circular No. MPO-1

C. Contract Audit Circular No. MPO-2

MORPC maintains its cost records in conformity with these and other applicable regulations on the
accrual basis. MORPC has its financial statements audited annually in accordance with OMB
Circular A-133 and all applicable federal and state audit guides and "Compliance Supplements."
U.S. DOT has been designated as cognizant over MORPC's indirect cost plan.

Current Year Indirect Cost Allocations and Rates

MORPC's current negotiated indirect cost rate is 59.0 percent. The indirect cost rate for CY2021 is
estimated to be 62.0 percent. MORPC uses a fixed rate with carry forward provision.

Proposed CY2021 Indirect Cost Allocations, Rates and Bases

MORPC proposes to allocate indirect costs at the rate of 62.0 percent of direct labor plus allocable
direct labor fringe benefit dollars. Indirect costs are estimated to be $3,319,433 allocated on a base
of $5,353,916 direct labor plus direct labor fringe benefits. This will be a fixed rate with a carryover
provision. The audited carry forward amount from 12/31/2019 is an under absorbed amount of
$18,029.

In the CY2021 cost allocation plan, an estimate for turnover has been included for direct labor as
shown in the attached Schedule of Direct Labor, Fringe Benefits and General Overhead. Since
turnover occurs on a regular basis, including a turnover factor provides a better estimate for labor
for budgeting purposes.

The attached Schedule of Direct Labor, Fringe Benefits and General Overhead summarizes the
proposed rate calculations. Pages 15 through 18 are supporting schedules.

Indirect Cost Allocation Rates Prior Year Information

MORPC first established a cost allocation plan in August 1972. In 1976 the U.S. Department of
HUD requested that MORPC submit its cost allocation plan to them for negotiation. This resulted in
formal Indirect Cost Negotiation Agreements between HUD and MORPC, for fiscal years 1977
through 1986. FHWA/ODOT was designated as the cognizant agency beginning with FY87 and
indirect cost negotiation agreements have been signed since then. Provisional-Fixed rates were
used from FY87 through FY95. Fixed rates with carry-forward provision were required beginning
FY96. The plan has been audited from its inception through 12/31/2019, found by our auditors to be
reasonable, in conformity with federal regulations, and consistently applied. Other audits and audit
reviews by federal agencies have similarly found no problems with this cost allocation plan.

MORPC Cost Allocation Plan CY2021

MORPC

L\




The historical schedule on page 19 shows actual and audited costs through 12/31/2019, compared
with allocated costs since 1/1/2010. This current plan incorporates final actual audited costs and
variances through December 31, 2019.

Indirect Cost Allocations and Bases

Indirect costs are allocated to the various planning grants, contracts and their cost objectives on the
basis of direct labor dollars inclusive of fringe benefits. Throughout this plan, the term direct labor
means wages plus fringe benefits which is the “base” for allocating indirect costs.

Common indirect costs that benefit all contracts and grants are accumulated in a series of cost
objectives. Indirect labor accounts for 65 percent of all indirect costs and includes salaries and
fringe benefits for the eligible portions of Executive Management, Finance, Human Resources,
Administrative Services & Information Technology, Communication & Engagement, and Contract
and Proposal. Most of these areas also provide services for which there is direct funding from a
billable source and therefore has labor charges to both direct and indirect cost objectives. Labor is
charged to the cost objective receiving services on the basis of individual employee time sheet
records.

The types of services provided to the agency by the various indirect departments are related to
carrying out the administrative and financial requirements of 2CFR Part 200 and other applicable
regulations. Human Resources, Administrative Services & Information Technology handles
personnel, civil rights, EEO programs, property management, disadvantaged business enterprise
programs, and procurement and provides technical assistance, training, network maintenance,
internet and maintains the agency website. Finance handles accounting, budgeting, and risk
management. Communications & Engagement handles general community participation and
dissemination of public information. Contract and proposal development indirect costs cover the
development of proposals for grants and contract administration.

The following general overhead expenses are charged almost exclusively to the indirect cost pools:
telephone, agency insurance, audit fees, and computers and computer network costs.

Unallowable costs and costs of locally requested initiatives are not included in the indirect cost pool.
These costs are charged to program numbers 500XX series and are financed with 100 percent local
funds. These costs are identified as Unallowable (see page 11) or Development Fund or Service to
Members (see page 12).

MORPC Cost Allocation Plan CY2021

MORPC

L\




Estimated Soft Funding/Turnover

Part of the direct and indirect labor base for allocating indirect costs as discussed above includes an
estimate for soft funding and turnover. The following items are taken into effect to calculate the soft
funding/turnover amount:

e Known and estimated staff turnover and rehiring time

e Known and estimated (based on history) extended leave for sickness or injury
(FMLA), maternity/paternity leave

¢ Adjustment for estimated future funding expected, but not yet secured

e Adjustment for historical experience and anticipated staffing trends

Indirect Costs by Function
Executive Management

The executive management staff performs all CEO functions for the organization, beginning
with the coordination and administration of board functions in connection with the
Commission’s officers and committees. The Executive Director (ED) and Chief of Staff work
with the board on organizational development and the development of strategic goals
toward the accomplishment of MORPC’s mission in the community. Within this framework
the ED directs all staff operations through six other departments. The ED is directly
involved in approving human resources policies and actions, authorizing expenditures,
negotiating contracts and the measurement and achievement of strategic goals. The ED is
also the primary external spokesman for the organization and contract officer.

The Executive Management, Chief of Staff, and related administrative support overhead
budget of $459,796 includes salaries and benefits as well as other non-labor costs and
allowable organizational memberships.

Non-Overhead Functions & Activities charged direct by Executive
Management staff:

e Services to members

e Development activities

Executive Director and Chief of Staff Costs

The Executive Director and Chief of Staff, like all other employees, keep a daily time sheet,
accounting for their labor costs in one-quarter hour increments related to cost objective
(program) numbers. Executive Director and Chief of Staff activities of a general
administrative nature which benefit the entire organization and its entire work program are
charged to the indirect project number 050XX. This is budgeted at approximately 65 percent
of the Executive Director's time and 35 percent of the Chief of Staff’s time for CY2021. Only
actual time spent is recorded on the daily time sheet.

MORPC Cost Allocation Plan CY2021

MORPC

L\




When the Executive Director works on a service to member, developmental, marketing or
community project and when such an activity is not of common benefit to all other activities,
the time is charged to a cost objective that is part of the development fund or service to
members fund. These funds come from member governments’ per-capita membership fees
and are 100 percent local funds. All travel costs of the Executive Director are charged to
the local development funds unless travel is directly related to a direct program. No
Executive Director travel costs are charged to the indirect cost objectives. The Chief of Staff
generally does not have similar activities that are not of common benefit.

Human Resources

The Human Resources (HR) section provides an outstanding work environment with
incentives for highly successful careers at MORPC. Human Resources accomplishes that
goal by providing the following services to staff: recruitment and selection, orientation,
employee relations, personnel policies and procedures, strategic and succession planning,
wage and salary administration and training and development.

The Human Resources overhead budget of $269,213 includes salaries and benefits as
well as employment advertising, salary survey, general training, and staff development
for the entire agency.

Non-Overhead Functions & Activities charged direct by HR
e Consulting to members

Administrative Services (Facilities)

The Administrative Services section is responsible for purchasing of agency supplies, office
equipment, records retention, storage, and some fleet management activities.

The administrative services overhead budget of $549,938 includes salaries and benefits as
well as rent, utilities, maintenance, supplies, and depreciation.

Information Technology Services

Information Technology (IT) is responsible for overseeing and coordinating all computerized
data and information processing services for the agency. IT performs the planning,
installing and servicing of over one hundred computers and mobile devices, all agency
printers and all computer software applications. IT performs the network planning, installing
and managing of multiple servers comprising more than 78 terabytes worth of data. The
team oversees the coordination of the agency’s Geographic Information System (GIS),
Internet/Intranet access and the technical portion of the MORPC website. The team
performs all administration of the telephone system and telephone services along with
computer telephony integration (CTI) applications. IT also supports software applications
that are used by the agency. IT works with the Finance section in overseeing the computer-
related portion of the agency’s capital expenditures budget.

Beginning in 2019, IT has been responsible for the planning and managing of MORPC
computer resources (PC, desktop or laptop) which are expensed through IT in order to
better maintain all computers and to more efficiently and effectively manage the computer

MORPC Cost Allocation Plan CY2021

MORPC

L\




needs of the agency. The estimated useful life of a computer is 4 years. It is estimated that
approximately one-fourth of agency computers will be replaced annually.

One of IT’s most important goals is to ensure that all of MORPC’s data processing,
communication equipment and software are secure and compatible, allowing for better
sharing of information, improved interdepartmental communication, plus easy migration to
newer and more powerful equipment and software.

The IT overhead budget is $736,656 including salaries and benefits and Internet ISP
charges, non-capitalized (under $5,000) computers, supplies and equipment, service
agreements and computer and telephone services for the entire agency.

Non-Overhead Functions & Activities charged direct by IT:

e Writing and supporting program specific software applications for the agency
(e.g., weatherization programs)

e GIS Support Services

Finance

The Finance Team performs all financial management functions including accounting,
auditing, budgeting, payroll, reporting, cash management, risk management, internal and
budgetary control and compliance with federal and state regulations. The Finance team
interfaces with the county auditor and treasurer, which perform the treasury and
disbursement functions per the ORC. The accounting records use “activity based costing”.
MORPC accounts for the actual cost of all activities of the Commission with no provision for
profit, assuring that all members and contractors are billed fairly. In the past, Finance
coordinated the legal and contractual function of the agency, butin CY2019 this activity was
moved to Contract and Proposal to better track the actual costs of contract management.

The Finance team’s overhead budget of $785,461 includes salaries and benefits, as well
as costs for audit fees, legal fees, and software maintenance and liability insurance
premiums for the agency as a whole.

Non-Overhead Functions & Activities charged direct by Finance

staff:

e Staff services to Mid-Ohio Finance Administrators, an educational networking
forum of members and the Ohio Association of Regional Councils

MORPC has added an administrative support function to assist with standard administrative
duties consistent across all programs which includes contract processing assistance,
processing of purchase orders, travel requests, travel reimbursements, etc. Additional
administrative support specific to assisting program activities is still charged to the
applicable program.

Contract and Proposal

Contact and proposal costs cover the costs of preparing bids, proposals or applications on
potential grants and contracts. In CY2019 the cost of contract management was moved

MORPC Cost Allocation Plan CY2021

MORPC

L\




from Finance to Contract and Proposal to better track costs associated with contract
management.

The Contract and Proposal overhead budget of $86,045 includes salaries and benefits, as
well as legal services.

Communications & Engagement

Communication, outreach and education are essential to MORPC'’s programs and services
as the region’s Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO), Central Ohio Rural Planning
Organization (CORPO) and a regional collaborator. Communication & Engagement
provides the link from our internal program work to the outside community, including local
leaders, MORPC members, state and federal legislators, opinion leaders, residents and
businesses. The department is responsible for producing and coordinating all forms of
communications related to our transportation, data, planning and sustainability services and
regional growth strategies programs.

In its role as agency spokesperson, it is the primary contact for media requests for
information about our programs and services. It also operates proactively, by generating
press releases and meeting with editors and media producers to explain MORPC'’s
programs. The department serves as “quality control” for all agency communications. It
produces or edits all reports, brochures, presentation materials and other written material
used to explain programs.

MORPC uses its website and social media as its primary vehicle for getting timely
information to the general public. Communications & Engagement updates the site
regularly with new information about MORPC programs. New projects get primary
placement on the site to educate and keep the community informed about MORPC’s work.

Communications & Engagement operates with an annual overhead budget of $456,644.
This figure represents salaries and benefits and costs for production, printing and postage
for MORPC general communication pieces.

Non-Overhead Functions & Activities Charged Direct by Communications & Engagement
staff:

Services to members

Program communication

Development activities

Assisting with regionalism

Diversity and Inclusion

Event Management

Technical supervision includes establishing priorities, monitoring goals, delegating
responsibility and attendance at meetings, etc. Technical supervision by the technical
directors, department managers and their principal assistants is charged directly to each
grant. Technical program supervision is thereby consistently accounted for as a direct
labor cost in all grants and contracts.

MORPC Cost Allocation Plan CY2021

MORPC

L\




Direct vs. Indirect Cost Allocations

The following expenses are charged to direct or indirect cost objectives solely on the basis of
benefit received: services, printing, postage, copying, travel and registrations, subscriptions and
publications, and meeting expenses. No generalization can be made that these expenses are
mostly direct or indirect.

With regard to items of expense which are charged to both direct and indirect cost objectives,
MORPC's policy is as follows:

1. The basis for classifying costs to direct or indirect cost objectives is benefit received.

2. Classification of similar items of cost is consistent among the grants, contracts,
and cost objectives.

The chart of accounts describes the nature and classification of costs as it generally occurs in our
accounting system. Below are two examples (not exhaustive explicit definitions) of how the policy is
applied in determining whether a cost should be classified as direct or indirect.

1. Legal Fees

A. Direct: Legal fees to prepare subcontract to planning grant would be charged to
same cost objective as the contract.
B. Indirect: Legal fees to prepare and review leases for computer equipment and office

space.
2. Advertising
A. Direct: Notice of public hearing required for a project or program.

B. Indirect: Employment advertising and notice to bidders for computer equipment.

Reallocated (User Charge) Expenses

User charge systems have been set-up to reallocate the following expenses which are accumulated
in special cost objectives (sub-cost allocation pools) and then reallocated to the benefiting cost
objectives, either direct or indirect as follows:

Bases For

Expense Allocation Documentation Frequency
Labor Hours worked Time sheets Every two weeks
Fringe benefits Labor dollars Analysis Every two weeks
Photocopies Number of copies Detail log Monthly

Postage Postage Report Detail log Monthly

Mileage Miles driven Detail log Monthly

Depreciation Cost Allocation

Beginning in 2015, MORPC capitalizes at cost all purchased property and equipment costing
$5,000 and greater and with a useful life greater than one year; in prior years the capitalization

MORPC Cost Allocation Plan CY2021

MORPC

L\




threshold was $1,000. Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the assets ranging from four to ten years. Depreciation follows the Direct vs. Indirect
Cost Allocation as noted above.

Depreciation expense for 2019 totaled $33,462 and is split between direct and indirect as follows.

Actual CY 2019
Direct $ 10,991
Indirect $ 22.471
Total Actual $ 33,462

Budget $ 103,672

Difference $ 70,210

Fringe Benefits Cost Allocations

Fringe benefit costs are distributed as an integral part of the labor distribution to the program level
as a percentage of labor costs per hour worked. A rate of 58.0 percent will be used for the period
1/1/2021 through 12/31/2021 for time actually worked. MORPC uses fixed rates with carry-forward
provision to allocate fringe benefits. The historical schedule on page 21 shows the actual audited
costs since 1/1/2010.

MORPC employees share in the cost for health insurance. See the attached Schedule of Direct
Labor, Fringe Benefits and General Overhead (pages 15-18) for more information on fringe benefit
cost allocations.

Paid Time Off (PTO) and Sick Leave Cash-Out Option

Annually MORPC offers eligible employees the option to cash-out up to 80 hours of accumulated
sick leave at 33.33 percent of full value. Employees can cash-out up to one year’s worth of earned
PTO leave at 100 percent of full value. MORPC is required to pay OPERS and Medicare Tax on
the annual cash-outs of both PTO and sick leave in a manner consistent with OPERS requirements.
MORPC’s liability for accrued PTO and sick leave was $560,212 on 12/31/20109.

Excludable Costs
The excludable costs totaling $5,453,108 shown on page 14 are as follows:

Subcontracts $5,453,108 - This includes subcontracts for weatherization, energy audits,
furnace retrofits, housing repairs, and transportation and other consulting services.

Unallowable Costs

The total unallowable cost is $378,793 of which $2,500 represents executive director and board
member travel not chargeable as an indirect cost per FHWA/ODOT policies. The balance of
$376,293 is for unallowable legislative related costs.

MORPC Cost Allocation Plan CY2021

MORPC

10

L\




Transportation Program Income Policy

There was no net transportation program income during calendar years 1984 to 2019.

Policy Guidelines for Charging to the Information Assistance Work Program Element vs. the

Transportation Miscellaneous Sales Account

Requests for transportation specific documents/materials such as copies of the TIP, Transportation

Plan, special studies/reports, etc., are given out free of charge.

Staff time and other costs

associated with providing the information is charged to the information assistance work element.
This is intended to be a general guideline and there will be occasions when it is deemed appropriate
to charge for the cost of reproducing certain reports. In these instances, the costs will be charged

to the transportation miscellaneous sales account number.

Staff time and associated costs with providing other transportation related information or data such
as economic/demographic type data, maps, aerial photos, etc., is charged to the transportation

miscellaneous sales account number.

It is recognized that numerous requests only involve the exchange of verbal information or the
review of materials at MORPC's office but do involve a considerable amount of staff time and
assistance. Ininstances where a fee is inappropriate or where the fee (e.g., copying costs only) is
insufficient to recoup the full cost of staff time, it is appropriate to charge staff time and associated
costs to the information assistance work element except for any fees that are charged and credited
to the miscellaneous sales account numbers.

Important Note: Member jurisdictions and consultants working on behalf of a member jurisdiction

receive some information assistance and materials free of charge unless extensive special analysis
is necessary in which case the relevant department director is consulted before charging.

To ensure the proper accounting and monitoring of the revenues/expenses relating to request for
information, the following charge numbers are to be used:

Revenues - transportation misc. sales (Funding Source) 3401 - 75200
Transportation misc. sales (expenses) Program 3003X
Information assistance - expenses Program 6102X

Revenues - transportation program (Federal Funding Source) 3001-600XX

Board Member Travel

All of these costs are charged to the development fund. No board member travel costs are charged
to the indirect cost objectives. Listed below are the board member travel costs totaled by year.

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
$9,066 $8,785 $10,752 $5,889 $3,409
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
$5,193 $9,337 $7,160 $5,956 $6,238
MORPC Cost Allocation Plan CY2021 V<
" NP MORPC




Development Fund
A group of task numbers in the 5003X program series has been established to account for the use
of a portion, $86,185 in CY2021, of member government’s per-capita membership fees, which are
100 percent local funds. The purposes for which these funds are used include:
e Executive director labor charges for developmental purposes
e Travel for the executive director and board members
e New member recruitment and development
e Regionalism
e Strategic initiatives identified by the board including:
- Regionalism development
- Regional planning

- Regional collaboration

e Business development

Service to Members

A group of task numbers in the 5002X program series has been established to account for the
use of a portion, $692,532 in CY2021 of member government’s per-capita membership fees,
which are 100 percent local funds. The purposes for which these funds are used include:

e Legislative activities of a proactive nature that is ineligible according to federal cost
regulations

e Multi-jurisdictional issues and public policy
e Member Service Coordination

e Regional networking and intergovernmental forums such as Mid-Ohio Finance
Administrators

e Grantsmanship for members
e General mediation and facilitation

e Intergovernmental information center on web

Legislation Monitoring, Review and Comment

A small amount of staff work is devoted to monitoring activities of the general assembly related
to the work of the planning commission and its member governments. The majority of the costs
of such monitoring and the analysis, review and technical staff comment on relevant bills in the

MORPC Cost Allocation Plan CY2021

MORPC

12

L\




legislature are charged to program number, 5002X. Such costs, when directly related to a
program in the federal work program or a local contract, are charged as a direct cost to those
grants or contracts.

When staff comment becomes more proactive because of the greater importance of a particular bill,
the costs are ineligible or unallowable for either direct or indirect federal funding participation, these
ineligible legislative costs are charged to Services to Members, which is 100 percent locally funded.
Such costs are projected to be approximately $177,000 in CY 2021.

MORPC Cost Allocation Plan CY2021

MORPC

13

L\




MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISION

Indirect Cost Allocation Plan
January 1, 2021 to December 31, 2021

Detail of Total Budgeted Expenses

Total Budgeted | Excludable | Unallowable | Direct Labor | Other Direct |Indirect Cost
Costs Costs Costs & Fringe Costs Allocation
Grants and Programs
Transportation & Infrastructure Development
FTA/ODOT/MORPC $1,326,529 $0 $765,779 $85,968 $474,783
CORPO CORE SFY20 $172,337 $0 $105,222 $1,878 $65,237
Infrastructure $180,000 $0 $109,763 $2,185 $68,053
Competitive Advantage 5307 (COTA/NTD Reporting) $391,760 $0 $226,781 $24,375 $140,604
TID $54,930 $0 $33,904 $6 $21,020
Regional Supplemental Planning $184,127 $80,000 $63,402 $1,415 $39,309
Gohio SFY20 $722,301 $0 $362,997 $134,246 $225,058
5310 Designated Recipient $392,300 $0 $70,759 $277,671 $43,870
5310 Mobility Management $158,346 $0 $97,704 $65 $60,577
AIMS Grant (NUC) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Maglev Grant (NUC) $315,000 $315,000 $0 $0 $0
USEDA Grant (NUC) $380,000 $0 $0 $380,000 $0
SMRT CBUS (NUC) $240,000 $0 $0 $240,000 $0
Hyperloop Certification (NUC) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Transportation (NUC) $397,402 $250,000 $90,989 $0 $56,413
Subtotal Transportation & Investment $4,915,033 $645,000 $0 $1,927,300 $1,147,809 $1,194,924
Data & Mapping
FTA/ODOT/MORPC $972,784 $0 $580,729 $32,003 $360,052
Paving the Way CY20 $88,999 $50,000 $23,201 $1,414 $14,384
Regional Supplemental Planning $94,208 $0 $58,095 $94 $36,019
Regional Broadband $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
ArcGIS Urban $1,500 $0 $0 $1,500 $0
Data and Mapping (NUC) $113,130 $0 $38,969 $50,000 $24,161
Subtotal Data & Mapping $1,270,621 $50,000 $0 $700,994 $85,011 $434,616
Planning & Sustainability
FTA/ODOT/MORPC $675,868 $0 $403,527 $22,154 $250,187
Bike Maps $15,000 $0 $0 $15,000 $0
Greenways Funding $109,000 $0 $47,844 $31,493 $29,663
Impact Trails Study $47,523 $20,000 $4,644 $20,000 $2,879
Sustaining Scioto $85,000 $0 $52,437 $52 $32,511
Ohio EPA $134,692 $0 $81,909 $2,000 $50,783
Columbus GHG Inventory $19,500 $0 $11,953 $137 $7,411
Clean Ohio Fund Conservation $29,000 $0 $17,424 $773 $10,803
Greenways Planning $229,763 $0 $138,143 $5,972 $85,648
Regional Supplemental Planning $105,591 $0 $59,007 $10,000 $36,584
Technical Assistance $204,456 $0 $121,891 $6,993 $75,572
Air Quality Awareness $547,595 $77,310 $266,369 $38,767 $165,149
Local Government Energy Partnership AEP $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Insight 2050 Academy $4,000 $0 $0 $4,000 $0
Regional Housing Strategy $143,217 $143,217 $0 $0 $0
Local Government Energy Partnership (NUC) COH $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Safety Implementation (NUC) $25,000 $0 $0 $25,000 $0
COG & Rapid Five (NUC) $250,000 $250,000 $0 $0 $0
Greenways Branding ULI (NUC) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Brownfield Grant (NUC) $200,200 $190,000 $6,292 $8 $3,901
Planning & Sustainability (NUC) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Subtotal Planning & Sustainability $2,825,406 $680,527 $0 $1,211,438 $182,349 $751,092
Residential Services
Columbia Gas Warm Choice $3,628,068 $2,280,000 $673,429 $69,830 $604,809
HWAP DOE/HHS $599,016 $211,912 $324,914 $40,652 $21,538
HWAP Enhancement 2019-2020 $120,461 $102,237 $15,860 $0 $2,364
WDBCO Workforce Wx Training $16,000 $0 $0 $16,000 $0
Columbus Showerhead Program $3,235 $0 $1,997 $0 $1,238
Potential Home Energy Funding (NUC) $156,643 $0 $0 $156,643 $0
FC Urgent Home Repair $966,757 $632,488 $183,613 $36,815 $113,840
FHLB Grant $753,600 $534,394 $96,982 $62,095 $60,129
Franklin County HAB $7,788 $0 $4,190 $1,000 $2,598
Issuer Fees $7,254 $0 $4,478 $0 $2,776
COCIC Home Repair for Wx deferrals $379,809 $316,550 $8,184 $50,000 $5,074
NSP Mortgages Forgiven $7,925 $0 $0 $7,925 $0
Potential Housing Funding (NUC $25,000 $0 $0 $25,000 $0
Subtotal Residential Services $6,671,556 $4,077,581 $0 $1,313,648 $465,960 $814,367
Dues & Other Grants & Programs
Dues $990,714 $0 $378,793 $160,364 $188,598 $262,959
All Other $1,742,301 $0 $33,611 $428,851 $1,279,839
Subtotal Dues & Other Grants & Programs $2,733,015 $0 $378,793 $193,975 $617,449 $1,542,798
Less estimated turnover
Total Grants and Programs $18,415,630] $5,453,108| $378,793| $5,347,355| $2,498,578| $4,737,797

14




Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission
SCHEDULE OF DIRECT LABOR, FRINGE BENEFITS, AND GENERAL OVERHEAD
January 1, 2021 - December 31, 2021

ESTIMATED ACTUAL VARIANCE ESTIMATED
FY 2019 FY 2019 (OVER BUDGET) FY 2021
UNDER BUDGET
EMPLOYEE WAGES
Indirect Labor
Acct. # Acct. Name
4102 Executive Management $266,596 $264,877 $1,719 $284,131
4102 Finance $379,857 $364,166 $15,691 $374,011
4102 Information Systems $298,378 $262,241 $36,137 $287,551
4102 Human Resources & Admin. $123,753 $165,663 ($41,910) $128,626
4102 Communications & Engagement $318,383 $272,432 $45,951 $266,512
4102 Contracts & Proposal $41,891 $6,560 $35,331 $44,402
4102 Agency Administratives SO SO SO $19,196
Estimated Turnover/ Soft Funding (55,612) S0 (55,612) (46,097)
Subtotal - Indirect Labor $1,423,246 $1,335,939 $87,307 $1,358,334
Direct Labor
Acct. # Acct. Name
4101 Residential Services $1,021,956 $850,168 $171,788 $831,422
4101 Transportation & Infrastructure $1,282,538 $1,281,038 $1,500 $1,219,809
4101 Planning & Sustainability $828,109 $659,149 $168,960 $766,734
4101 Data & Mapping $453,865 $369,075 $84,790 $443,668
4101 Member Dues $200,229 $216,585 (516,356) $268,435
4101 Other Grants & Programs $16,625 $27,148 ($10,523) $21,273
Estimated Turnover/Soft Funding (5283,777) SO (5283,777) (162,787)
Subtotal - Direct Labor $3,519,545 $3,403,163 $116,382 $3,388,553
TOTAL EMPLOYEE WAGES $4,942,791 $4,739,102 $203,689 $4,746,887

ODOT ICAP Schedule CY2021.xlsx

15

DATE PRINTED: 11/24/2020




Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission
SCHEDULE OF DIRECT LABOR, FRINGE BENEFITS, AND GENERAL OVERHEAD
January 1, 2021 - December 31, 2021

ESTIMATED ACTUAL VARIANCE ESTIMATED
FY 2019 FY 2019 (OVER BUDGET) FY 2021
UNDER BUDGET
FRINGE BENEFITS COST CENTER
Paid Leave
Acct. # Acct. Name
4104 PTO $275,297 $336,600 (561,303) S 215,067
4105-4108 Holiday, Military, Jury, Maternity, etc. $240,584 $210,674 $29,910 S 222,377
4103 Serious lliness $7,500 SO $7,500 S 5,000
4103 Sick $32,250 $35,668 ($3,418) S 15,000
4103 Termination Sick Leave $8,114 (56,193) $14,307 S 5,500
4121 Change in Annual Leave Carryover $183,531 $179,314 $4,217 S 232,232
Subtotal - Paid Leave $747,276 $756,063 (58,787) $695,175
Other Fringe Benefits
Acct. # Acct. Name
4305 OPERS $777,335 $756,467 $20,868 693,808
4320 Workers' Compensation $69,419 $62,061 $7,358 64,646
4310 Unemployment Compensation $17,712 $8,880 $8,832 19,440
4315 Medicare Taxes $80,510 $74,295 $6,215 71,859
4201 Group Medical Insurance $1,192,948 $1,180,681 $12,267 1,112,448
4220 Group Life Insurance S2,414 $2,465 ($51) 2,251
4205 Group Dental Insurance $60,508 $59,874 $634 56,425
4210 Group Optical Insurance $11,104 $11,034 $70 10,355
4215 Group Prescription Insurance $225,619 $223,275 $2,344 210,394
4225 Group EAP Insurance $42,967 $44,726 ($1,759) 40,068
4230 Employee Cost Share (5368,881) ($350,309) (518,572) (352,652)
4131 Healthcare Incentives Earned $20,000 $6,837 $13,163 5,000
4325 Other Insurance - ST & LT Disability $45,000 $48,152 ($3,152) 48,000
4202 Benefits Administrative Fee | $73,704 $73,098 $606 68,731
Fringe Benefit Consultant for HC Explor, $5,000 S0 $5,000 -
Estimated Turnover Reduction of Fringg ($92,759) SO ($92,759) ($113,324)
|
Prior Year Rate Adjustment $6,373 $6,373 SO $120,574
Subtotal - Other Fringe $2,168,973 $2,207,909 (538,936) $2,058,023
TOTAL FRINGE BENEFITS $2,916,249 $2,963,972 (547,723) $2,753,198
ODOT ICAP Schedule CY2021.xlIsx 16 DATE PRINTED: 11/24/2020




Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission
SCHEDULE OF DIRECT LABOR, FRINGE BENEFITS, AND GENERAL OVERHEAD
January 1, 2021 - December 31, 2021

ESTIMATED ACTUAL VARIANCE ESTIMATED
FY 2019 FY 2019 (OVER BUDGET) FY 2021
UNDER BUDGET
INDIRECT COST CENTER - NON-LABOR
Acct. # Acct. Name
5001-5009 Materials and Supplies $80,320 $101,618 ($21,298) $60,860
5015-5115 Services and Charges $503,298 $557,467 (554,169) $577,692
5205-5225 Rent, Utilities & Operating Lease $416,815 $320,810 $96,005 $464,479
various Other General Overhead $48,582 $72,791 ($24,209) $52,205
Prior Year Rate Adjustment (5111,018) (5111,018) SO $18,029
TOTAL INDIRECT COSTS - NON-LABOR $937,997 $941,668 ($3,671) $1,173,265

ODOT ICAP Schedule CY2021.xIsx 17 DATE PRINTED: 11/24/2020



Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission

SCHEDULE OF DIRECT LABOR, FRINGE BENEFITS, AND GENERAL OVERHEAD

January 1, 2021 - December 31, 2021

ESTIMATED ACTUAL VARIANCE ESTIMATED
FY 2019 FY 2019 (OVER BUDGET) FY 2021
UNDER BUDGET
FRINGE BENEFIT COST RATE CALCULATION
TOTAL FRINGE BENEFITS $2,916,249 $2,963,972 $2,753,198
TOTAL EMPLOYEE WAGES $4,942,791 $4,739,102 $4,746,887
FRINGE BENEFIT COST RATE 59.00% 62.54% A:B 58.00%
FRINGE BENEFIT COST RECOVERY COMPARISON
FY 2019
Should have recovered in fiscal year $2,128,437 Actual DL * Actual Fringe Rate
Amount actually recovered in fiscal year $2,007,868 Actual DL * Estimated Fringe Rate
Prior Year Net (Over) / Under Recovery $6,373
Prior Year (Over) / Under Recovery Posted to Cost Cente $6,373
(Over) / Under Recovery of Fringe Benefits $120,569
FRINGE BENEFITS COST DISTRIBUTION
INDIRECT LABOR FRINGE BENEFITS $839,716 $835,535 $787,835
DIRECT LABOR FRINGE BENEFITS $2,076,533 $2,128,437 $1,965,363
TOTAL FRINGE BENEFITS $2,916,249 $2,963,972 $2,753,198
INDIRECT COST RATE CALCULATION
INDIRECT LABOR $1,423,246 $1,335,939 $1,358,334
INDIRECT FRINGE BENEFITS $839,716 $835,535 $787,835
OTHER INDIRECT COSTS $937,997 $941,668 $1,173,265
TOTAL INDIRECT COSTS $3,200,959 $3,113,142 $3,319,433
DIRECT LABOR $3,519,545 $3,403,163 $3,388,553
DIRECT LABOR FRINGE BENEFITS $2,076,533 $2,128,437 $1,965,363
TOTAL DIRECT LABOR + DL FRINGE BENEFITS $5,596,078 $5,531,600 $5,353,916
INDIRECT COST RATE 57.20% 56.28% A:B 62.00%
INDIRECT COST RECOVERY COMPARISON
FY 2019
Should have recovered in fiscal year $3,113,142 Actual DLFB * Actual Indirect Rate
Amount actually recovered in fiscal year $3,095,112 [ Actual DL + (DL * Estimated Fringe Rate) ] *
Prior Year Net (Over) / Under Recovery (5111,018) Estimated Indirect Rate
Prior Year (Over) / Under Recovery Posted to Cost Cente (5111,018)
(Over) / Under Recovery of Indirect Costs $18,030
SUMMARY
ESTIMATED ACTUAL ESTIMATED
FY 2019 FY 2019 FY 2021
FRINGE BENEFIT COST RATE 59.00% 62.54% 58.00%
INDIRECT COST RATE 57.20% 56.28% 62.00%
ODOT ICAP Schedule CY2021.xlIsx 18 DATE PRINTED: 11/24/2020



Actual Indirect Costs, Allocations, Rates & Carry-forward Variances

2010 - 2019
Period Allocation (Under)/Over | Actual Actual D|r_ect
Erom To Rate Allocated Cost Actual Cost Allocated Rate Labor + F_rmge
Benefit

CY 10 01/01- 12/31/10 49.00% 2,010,662 1,935,366 75,296 46.70% 4,143,837
Cy 11 01/01- 12/31/11 49.95% 2,105,663 2,108,689 (3,026) 48.78% 4,322,652
CY 12 01/01- 12/31/12 52.00% 2,218,676 2,260,993 (42,317) 52.24% 4,328,490
CY 13 01/01- 12/31/13 53.00% 2,323,730 2,381,756 (58,026) 53.73% 4,433,116
Cy 14 01/01- 12/31/14 53.00% 2,426,109 2,607,727 (181,618) 54.18% 4,813,465
CY 15 01/01- 12/31/15 55.50% 2,446,875 2,447,079 (204) 56.29% 4,347,113
CY 16 01/01- 12/31/16 55.50% 2,656,828 2,563,961 92,867 54.97% 4,664,289
CY 17 01/01- 12/31/17 54.50% 2,645,585 2,534,567 111,018 52.14% 4,860,655
Underabsorption of Indirect Costs 18,834,128 18,840,138 (6,010) 35,913,617
From CY10 through CY17
Unamortized:
CY 18 01/01- 12/31/18 55.00% 2,719,557 2,696,146 23,411 54.58% 4,939,915
CY 19 01/01- 12/31/19 57.20% 3,095,110 3,113,139 (18,029) 56.28% 5,531,603
Total Unamortized, prior to adjustment $5,814,667 $5,809,285 $5,382 55.48%  $10,471,518
Total $24,648,795 $24,649,423 ($628) 53.14% $46,385,135
Total (Under)/Over Absorbed through 12/31/2019, prior to adjustment (628)
Adjustment (1) 3,026
Total (Under)/Over Absorbed through 12/31/2019, prior to adjustment $2,398

(1) Indirect Costs absorbed by MORPC local funds for CY11 under allocation.

19




Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission

Total Actual Fringe Benefit Costs

2010 - 2019
Period
From To Direct Indirect Total (1)
01/01- 12/31/2010 1,479,310 469,786 1,949,096
01/01- 12/31/2011 1,602,878 511,374 2,114,252
01/01- 12/31/2012 1,628,053 507,533 2,135,586
01/01- 12/31/2013 1,675,582 588,241 2,263,823
01/01- 12/31/2014 1,934,485 670,462 2,604,947
01/01- 12/31/2015 1,730,624 588,763 2,319,387
01/01- 12/31/2016 1,823,294 588,152 2,411,446
01/01- 12/31/2017 1,882,568 592,752 2,475,320
01/01- 12/31/2018 1,868,707 685,194 2,553,901
01/01- 12/31/2019 2,128,440 835,532 2,963,972
Totals 17,753,941 6,037,789 23,791,730

(1) Per Audited Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports

20




Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission
Direct Labor Fringe Benefits

2010 - 2019
Fixed (Under) FINAL Actual DL
Period Allocation Allocated Actual Over Actual Wages

Cy 10 01/01- 12/31/2010 54.00% 1,438,844 1,479,310 (40,466) 55.52% 2,664,527
Cy 1 01/01- 12/31/2011 55.00% 1,495,764 1,602,878 (107,114) 58.93% 2,719,774
Cy 12 01/01- 12/31/2012 58.00% 1,566,221 1,628,053 (61,832) 60.29% 2,700,437
CY 13 01/01- 12/31/2013 59.00% 1,626,817 1,675,582 (48,765) 60.76% 2,757,535
Cy 14 01/01-  12/31/2014 59.00% 1,698,594 1,934,485 (235,891) 67.19% 2,878,970
CY 15 01/01- 12/31/2015 68.50% 1,792,295 1,730,624 61,671 66.14% 2,616,489
CY 16 01/01-  12/31/2016 68.50% 1,946,082 1,823,294 122,788 64.18% 2,840,995
Cy 17 01/01-  12/31/2017 63.00% 1,876,195 1,882,568 (6,373) 63.21% 2,978,087
Underabsorption of Fringe Benefits Costs 13,440,812 13,756,794 (315,982) 62.09% 22,156,814
From CY10 through CY17
Unamortized:
CY 18 01/01- 12/31/2018 61.00% 1,873,437 1,868,707 4,730 60.85% 3,071,208
CYy 19 01/01- 12/31/2019 59.00% 2,007,866 2,128,440 (120,574) 62.54% 3,403,163
Total Unamortized, prior to adjustment $3,881,303 $3,997,147 ($115,844) 61.74% $6,474,371
Total $17,322,115 $17,753,941 (431,826) 62.01%  $28,631,185
Total (Under)/Over Absorbed through 12/31/2019, prior to adjustment ($431,826)
Adjustment (1) 107,114
Total (Under)/Over Absorbed through 12/31/2019, prior to adjustment ($324,712)

(1) Fringe Benefits absorbed by MORPC local funds for CY11 under allocation.

21




Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission
Fringe Benefits History by Calendar Year

2010 - 2019

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Wages Paid for Time Worked $3,510,704 | $3,587,482 | $3,542,273 | $3,725,614 | $3,876,774 | $3,506,650 | $3,757,453 | $3,915,760 | $4,197,293
Group & Disability Insurance,
Contribution in Lieu of Medical | $884,001 $970,208 $991,423 | $1,090,881 | $1,224,600 | $1,073,072 | $1,338,318 | $1,259,215 | $1,351,053
Insurance
Fringe Rate 25.18% 27.04% 27.99% 29.28% 31.59% 30.60% 35.62% 32.16% 32.19%
Workers' Compensation $28,298 $27,643 $31,256 $5,644 $40,544 $59,791 $38,627 $141,459 $44,388
Fringe Rate 0.81% 0.77% 0.88% 0.15% 1.05% 1.71% 1.03% 3.61% 1.06%
PERS, Unemploy. & Medicare $703,032 $699,883 $634,694 $669,021 $701,013 $636,863 $670,151 $702,265 $751,164
Fringe Rate 20.03% 19.51% 17.92% 17.96% 18.08% 18.16% 17.84% 17.93% 17.90%
PTO (Vacation) $246,212 $263,499 $254,683 $268,396 $284,026 $248,577 $228,041 $240,475 $288,716
Fringe Rate 7.01% 7.34% 7.19% 7.20% 7.33% 7.09% 6.07% 6.14% 6.88%
PTO (Vacation) Carryover $45,440 $56,561 $51,815 $67,770 $88,982 $90,334 $80,989 $170,042 $163,057
Fringe Rate 1.29% 1.58% 1.46% 1.82% 2.30% 2.58% 2.16% 4.34% 3.88%
Sick Leave $86,856 $92,481 $103,539 $110,955 $126,308 $121,342 $77,800 $37,840 $45,905
Fringe Rate 2.47% 2.58% 2.92% 2.98% 3.26% 3.46% 2.07% 0.97% 1.09%
Separation Sick Leave $24,312 $29,429 $31,410 $24,934 $23,066 $9,944 $0 ($5,620) ($9,610)
Fringe Rate 0.69% 0.82% 0.89% 0.67% 0.59% 0.28% 0.00% -0.14% -0.23%
Holidays & Other $55,536 $109,203 $170,313 $171,562 $201,836 $187,700 $192,288 $194,198 $213,382
Fringe Rate 1.58% 3.04% 4.81% 4.60% 5.21% 5.35% 5.12% 4.96% 5.08%
Cost Sharing ($124,591) | ($134,655) | ($133,547) | ($145,340) | ($147,260) | ($157,001) | ($214,768) | ($264,555) | ($294,154)
Fringe Rate -3.55% -3.75% 3.77% -3.90% -3.80% -4.48% -5.72% -6.76% -7.01%
Subtotal $1,949,096 | $2,114,252 | $2,135,586 | $2,263,823 | $2,543,114 | $2,270,622 | $2,411,446 | $2,475,319 | $2,553,901
Actual Fringe Rate 55.52% 58.93% 60.29% 60.76% 65.60% 64.75% 64.18% 63.21% 60.85%

22




>

111 Liberty Street, Suite 100
Columbus, Ohio 43215

‘\/} ] }-€ 30410 J BCi={if JING 20\ G
AERR™ "E IR F%d P8 Sd | €I
91 ARNIRIIRIES SAARAICCIAN
1 LA TNINEE 4 L. .4 7% Vit ii WA

T 614.228.2663
TTY 1.800.750.0750

morpc.org




APPENDIX C

FINANCIAL INFORMATION




03/03/2021

CENTRAL OHIO RURAL PLANNING ORGANIZATION

FISCAL YEAR 2022 PLANNING WORK PROGRAM*
SUBCATEGORY BUDGETS
Excluding 665, 667 and 674 - Special Studies

Other Direct Cost Categories
FHWA OoDOT MORPC TOTAL Other Printing/ Capital
SUBCATEGORIES 80.00% 10.00% 10.00% 100.00% Direct Mkting Purch. Consult.
601 Short Range Planning
60192-3000 Short Range Planning $32,000 $4,000 $4,000 $40,000 $1,400 $0 $0 $0
Wages $12,064 $1,508 $1,508 $15,080
Fringes $6,997 $875 $875 $8,747
Other Direct $1,120 $140 $140 $1,400
Indirect $11,818 $1,477 $1,477 $14,773
Total $32,000 $4,000 $4,000 $40,000
602  Transportation Improvement Program
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) &
60292-3000 Implementation $24,000 $3,000 $3,000 $30,000 $1,100 $0 $0 $0
Wages $9,033 $1,129 $1,129 $11,291
Fringes $5,239 $655 $655 $6,549
Other Direct $880 $110 $110 $1,100
Indirect $8,848 $1,106 $1,106 $11,060
Total $24,000 $3,000 $3,000 $30,000
605 Continuing Planning - Surveillance
60592-3000 Data and Analysis $30,887 $3,861 $3,861 $38,609 $1,400 $0 $0 $0
Wages $11,630 $1,454 $1,454 $14,537
Fringes $6,745 $843 $843 $8,431
Other Direct $1,120 $140 $140 $1,400
Indirect $11,392 $1,424 $1,424 $14,240
Total $30,887 $3,861 $3,861 $38,609
610 Long Range Planning
61092-3000 Long-Range Multimodal Transportation Planning $56,000 $7,000 $7,000 $70,000 $2,500 $0 $0 $0
Wages $21,097 $2,637 $2,637 $26,371
Fringes $12,236 $1,530 $1,530 $15,295
Other Direct $2,000 $250 $250 $2,500
Indirect $20,667 $2,583 $2,583 $25,833
Total $56,000 $7,000 $7,000 $70,000
SUMMARY
Wages $53,824 $6,728 $6,728 $67,280
Fringes $31,218 $3,902 $3,902 $39,022
Other Direct $5,120 $640 $640 $6,400
Indirect $52,726 $6,591 $6,591 $65,907
TOTAL PROGRAM BUDGET $142,887 $17,861 $17,861 $178,609 $6,400 $0 $0 $0
*Some totals may not be exact due to rounding
**Eringe benefits are calculated at 58% of wages.
SFY 2021 Carryover $ -
SFY 2022 Planning Funds $178,609

TOTAL

$ 178,609




APPENDIX E

RESOLUTIONS ACCEPTING THE PLANNING
WORK PROGRAM FOR 2022

Resolution 1-21: “Addoption of the CORPO
Fiscal Year 2022 Planning Work Program”

TO BE INCLUDED IN FINAL VERSION



APPENDIX F

TITLE VI PROGRAM
ODOT COMPLIANCE REVIEW RESPONSE




OHIO DEPARTMENT OF TITLE VI COMPLIANCE
TRANSPORTATION

OFFICE OF EQUAL OPPORTUNITY Q U EST I ON NAI RE

Metropolitan Planning Organizations (MPOs) &
Regional Transportation Planning Organizations (RTPOs)

General

1. Which office within your organization has lead responsibility for Title VI compliance?
Communications & Engagement
2. Who is your designated Title VI Coordinator? Please provide the person’s name, title and contact

information.

Niel Jurist

Director of Communications & Engagement
njurist@morpc.org

614-233-4126

3. Does your organization have a Title VI Program Plan? If so, please provide the website link or attach a
copy. Yes.

http://www.morpc.org/title-vi/

4. Does your organization have a Title VI policy? If so, please provide the website link or attach a copy. Yes

http://www.morpc.org/title-vi/

5. Does your organization have written Title VI complaint procedures? If so, please provide the website link
or attach a copy. Yes

http://www.morpc.org/title-vi/

6. Does your organization have a Title VI complaint form? If so, please provide the website link or attach a
copy. Yes

http://www.morpc.org/title-vi/

7. Does your organization make the public aware of the right to file a complaint? If so, describe how this is
accomplished.

Yes. MORPC utilizes the website and public notices to post Title VI information and the public’s right
to file a complaint.

8. In the past three years, has your organization been named in any Title VI and/or other discrimination



http://www.morpc.org/title-vi/
http://www.morpc.org/title-vi/
http://www.morpc.org/title-vi/
http://www.morpc.org/title-vi/

Title VI Compliance Questionnaire

10.

11.

complaints or lawsuits? If so, please provide the date the action was filed, a brief description of the
allegations and the current status of the complaint or lawsuit. Describe any Title VI-related deficiencies
that were identified and the efforts taken to resolve those deficiencies.

None

Has your organization provided written Title VI Assurances to ODOT? Is the Title VI Assurance included in
the MPO self-certification resolution (Note, this only applies to MPOs, RTPOs do not approve self-
certification resolutions)? If so, please provide a copy as an attachment.

Yes, to both questions. The written assurances were last provided in the 2020 self-certification
resolution and will be included in the 2021 self certification. http://www.morpc.org/title-vi/

Does your contract language include Title VI and other non-discrimination assurances?

Yes - While the agency does not include 49 CFR 26.13 (a) and (b) verbatim (and the regulations do
not state the language must be included verbatim), language is included that we will comply with
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 78 Stat.252, 42 U.S.C. 2000d to 2000d-4 and Title 49, Code
of Federal Regulations, Department of Transportation, Subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, Part 21,

Nondiscrimination in Federally-Assisted Programs of the Department of Transportation. See the
attached contract template.

Do you use any of the following methods to disseminate Title VI information to the public (select all that
apply):

i. Title VI posters in public buildings - Yes Title VI Notices in MORPC building, foyer and lounge.

ii. Title VI brochures at public events - Title VI language included on brochures.

iii. Title VI complaint forms in public buildings - No

iv. Title VI complaint forms at public events - No

v. Title VI policy posted on your website - Notice is posted on website.

vi. Title VI Program Plan posted on your website - Yes

vii. Other (Please explain)

Public Involvement

12.

Does your organization have a Public Participation Plan? If so, please provide the website link or attach
a copy. When was the Public Participation Plan most recently updated?

Yes - 2015 Transportation Public Involvement Plan



http://www.morpc.org/title-vi/
http://www.morpc.org/wordpress/wp-content/uploads/2018/01/2015TransportationPublicInvolvementPlan.pdf

Title VI Compliance Questionnaire

13. Please select which of the following outlets your organization uses to provide notices to different

population groups (select all that apply):

i. Neighborhood and community paper advertisements - We provide notices directly through U.S.
mail and emails to neighborhood, community, and civic associations.

i. Community radio station announcements - Paid radio announcements are typically featured on
a project basis, specifically, air quality alerts and Gohio.

ii. Church and community event outreach - Programs are typically featured at community events.
The programs are usually air quality alerts and Gohio, but also TIP and MTP if a process is in
progress.

iv. Targeted fliers distributed in particular neighborhoods -

We work with the City of Columbus, Department of Neighborhoods to distribute information
and fliers to particular neighborhoods.

v. Other (Please explain)

14. Do you coordinate with local community groups to facilitate outreach to minorities and low-income

15.

populations? If so, please list groups.
Yes - Impact Community Action, Franklin County Jobs and Family Services, The Columbus Urban
League, the NAACP, St. Stephens Community Center, Area Commissions, Civic Associations &
Neighborhood groups, Community Shelter Board, Community Refugee & Immigration Services and
more.
Do you take the following into consideration when identifying a public meeting location (select all that
apply):

i. Parking - Yes

ii. Accessibility by public transportation - Yes

ii. Meeting times - Yes

iv. Existence of ADA ramps - A site review is conducted on all meetings located outside of MORPC.

v. Familiarity of community with meeting location - This occurs in coordination with the project

location or boundaries.




Title VI Compliance Questionnaire

16.

Have meeting participants requested special assistance (e.g., interpretation services) ahead of any

public event in the past year? If so, describe how the request was addressed. None at this time.

Limited English Proficiency (LEP) and Language Assistance

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

Are you familiar with the LEP four-factor analysis methodology? Yes.
Are you familiar with the LEP language assistance Safe Harbor threshold? Yes.
Does your organization have an LEP Plan and/or a Language Assistance Plan (LAP)? If so, please provide

the website link or attach a copy. Yes - http://www.morpc.org/title-vi/

Has your organization identified vital documents that need to be made available in languages other than
English? If so, describe how that need is being addressed. Yes - Newsletters/brochures, applications for
service, executive summaries are translated into Spanish and Somali.

Do you have a list of staff who speak languages other than English? Yes.

Do you provide free translation services in languages other than English to the public upon request? We
cover the cost to have information translated and interpreters if needed.

How often do you receive requests for language assistance? Our Weatherization service receives

requests several times a year.

Title VI Training

24,

25.

206.

Who provides Title VI training to your staff?
i. ODOT staff - Yes
ii. Title VI Coordinator- Not exclusively on Title VI - included in diversity trainings. See below.
ii. Other (Please explain) - We provide Diversity, Equity & Inclusion (DE&I) trainings, and
elements from Title VI are included.
How often are Title VI trainings conducted? Annually, as part of our diversity trainings.
How many staff were trained on Title VI this year? Included with the implicit bias training, 80

employees. Included with our DE&I trainings, 65 employees.

Transportation Planning Program - Data Collection and Analysis



http://www.morpc.org/title-vi/

Title VI Compliance Questionnaire

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

Does your agency maintain documentation describing its procedures for incorporating Title VI
requirements into the region’s transportation planning program?

MORPC’s documentation for incorporating Title VI into the metropolitan transportation planning
program is included in the “Environmental Justice Report™ and the “Environmental Justice
Technical Analysis™ prepared in conjunction with the Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP) and
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP), respectively. Title VI considerations in public
involvement are documented in the “Transportation Public Involvement Plan” and in the appendix
of the MTP and the appendix to the TIP.

Does your organization maintain socio-demographic data and mapping for the transportation planning
region? Yes.

Does your organization use data to identify protected groups for consideration in the planning process?
Yes.

Does your organization conduct Transportation Plan and Transportation Improvement Program
environmental justice analyses of the impacts that planned transportation system investments will have
on both minority (including low-income status populations) and non-minority areas? Discuss the
assessment methodology and resulting documentation.

Yes - There is an EJ appendix included for each TIP and MTP. Full methodologies are included in

them. TIP webpage: http://www.morpc.org/program-service/transportation-improvement-program/.
MTP webpage: http://www.morpc.org/program-service/metropolitan-transportation-plan

Does your organization track demographic information of participants in its transportation planning

program public involvement events? Only our Community Advisory Committee.

Technical Assistance

32.

Provide the name, title, and contact information for the person who completed this questionnaire and
the date the questionnaire was completed. Is this the person who should be contacted with follow-up

questions? If not, please provide the name, title, and contact information for that individual.

Ralonda Hampton, Diversity, Inclusion and Engagement Officer, rhampton@morpc.org. 614-233-4157

(2/16/21)

Nick Gill, Assistant Director, Transportation & Infrastructure Development, ngill@morpc.org. 614-

233-4151



http://www.morpc.org/program-service/transportation-improvement-program/
http://www.morpc.org/program-service/metropolitan-transportation-plan
mailto:rhampton@morpc.org
mailto:ngill@morpc.org

Title VI Compliance Questionnaire

33. Do you have any questions regarding this questionnaire? If so, please include them here along with your
email address or telephone number and an ODOT representative will respond. No

34. Would your organization like Title VI training or other Civil Rights technical assistance from ODOT? If
yes, please explain. Yes - We have a new employee who would be interested in the Title VI Training. Her

name is Ralonda Hampton and e-mail is rhampton@morpc.org.



mailto:rhampton@morpc.org

MORPC CONTRACT NO.

AGREEMENT
for
NAME OF PROJECT/CONTRACT
CEDA NO. XX. XXXX

This Agreement for NAME OF PROJECT/CONTRACT (“PROJECT") is made as of the ## day of
Month, Year, between the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (“MORPC”) and
CONSULTANT NAME (“CONSULTANT").

The background of this Agreement is as follows:

A. Pursuant to the FAST Act of 2016, the Federal Highway Administration (“FHWA”) made
certain funds available to the State of Ohio for surface transportation planning programs.
MORPC is the sub-recipient of some of these funds (“GRANT").

B. The Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (hereinafter referred to as the
“SUBRECIPIENT") HEREBY AGREES THAT as a condition to receiving any Federal
financial assistance it will comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 78 Stat. 252,
42 U.S.C. 2000d-42 U.S.C. 2000d-4 (hereinafter referred to as the Act), and all
requirements imposed by or pursuant to Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations,
Department of Transportation, Subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, Part 21,
nondiscrimination in Federally-Assisted Programs of the Department of Transportation-
Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (hereinafter referred to as the
Regulations) and other pertinent directives, to the end that in accordance with the Act,
Regulations, and other pertinent directives, no persons the United States shall, on the
grounds of race, color, creed, religion, ancestry, national origin, gender or sex (including
pregnancy, gender identification or expression, and sexual orientation), gender identity or
expression, age (including federally protected 40 years or older), disability or other
handicap, genetic information, marital/familial status, military status (past, present or
future), limited English proficiency, medical conditions, or income or status with regard to
public assistance, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be
otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program or activity for which the
SUBRECIPIENT receives Federal financial assistance including the Ohio Department of
Transportation, and HEREBY GIVES ASSURANCE THAT it will promptly take any
measures necessary to effectuate this agreement. This assurance is required by
subsection 21.71(a) of the regulations.

C. MORPC requested proposals to [DESCRIBE PROJECTED SCOPE] and MORPC
selected CONSULTANT to undertake the SCOPE OF SERVICES following a process
consistent with its policies and procedures and as authorized by Resolution ##-##.

D. CONSULTANT is an experienced and well known consulting firm in the areas of

[DESCRIBE SERVICES: EX. transportation planning and engineering services] required to
perform the PROJECT and is familiar with the assurances required by FHWA and ODOT.

STATEMENT OF AGREEMENT

MORPC and CONSULTANT (collectively “PARTIES”) hereby acknowledge the accuracy of the
foregoing background information and agree as follows:

Name/Title of Project 1

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (www.morpc.org) @ MORPC
e



81. Consulting Services.

MORPC hereby retains CONSULTANT to complete the consultant services in accordance with the
“SCOPE OF SERVICES” (attached hereto as “Appendix A”). CONSULTANT will not begin work
on the SCOPE OF SERVICES until it receives a notice to proceed from MORPC.

CONSULTANT shall exercise the same degree of care, skill and diligence in its performance of the
services as is ordinarily possessed and exercised by a member of the same profession, currently
practicing under similar circumstances. CONSULTANT shall commence, carry out and complete
the SCOPE OF SERVICES in a manner satisfactory to MORPC and with all practicable dispatch,
in a sound, economical and efficient manner and in accordance with the provisions of this
Agreement, the GRANT and all applicable federal, state and local laws, regulations, directives,
schedules and policies, now in effect or hereafter promulgated.

Such regulations and directives include, but are not limited to:

o Office of Management and Budget "Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards,” 2 C.F.R. Part 200;

e Department of Transportation “Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and
Cooperative Agreements to State and Local Governments,” 49 C.F.R. Part 18;

e FHWA “Highway Planning and Research Program Administration,” 23 C.F.R. Part 420;

e FHWA “Administration of Engineering and Design Related Services Contracts,” 23 C.F.R.
Part 172;

¢ The National Environmental Policy Act of 1969, as amended 42 U.S. C §84321, et. seq.;

e Section 14 of the Urban Mass Transportation Act of 1964, as amended, 49, U.S.C. §81601
et. seq., as amended from time to time;

e Council on Environmental Quality regulations, 40 C.F.R. Part 1500 et. seq., as amended
from time to time;

o FTA/FHWA, “Environmental Impact and Related Procedures,” 23 C.F.R. Part 771, as
amended from time to time;

e Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended from time to time;

e Energy Policy and Conservation Act, 42 U.S.C. 886321, et seq., as amended from time to
time;

e Section 165 of the Surface Transportation Assistance Act of 1982, as amended by Section
337 of the Surface Transportation and Uniform Relocation of 49 C.F.R. Part 661, as all are
amended from time to time;

e Department of Transportation regulations, “Government Wide Debarment and Suspension
(Nonprocurement),” 48 C.F.R. Part 29, as amended from time to time; and,

e Department of Transportation regulations, “Program Fraud Civil Remedies,” 49 C.F.R Part
31, as amended from time to time.

82. Incorporated by Reference.

The Ohio Department of Transportation’s (ODOT) Specifications for Consulting Services (2016
Edition) is hereby incorporated into and made a part of this Agreement as though expressly
rewritten herein. Within the Specifications for Consulting Services, “MORPC” shall be substituted
for the term “State”, “department”, “ODOT”, and “ODOT Central Office” as appropriate.

83. Term.

CONSULTANT'’S SERVICES shall commence upon written authorization by MORPC to proceed
and shall be completed with all results, conclusions and supporting documentation required by the
SCOPE OF SERVICES submitted to MORPC in a form usable and reasonably acceptable to
MORPC. All services will be performed and completed and submitted to MORPC by DATE. [Only
if requested by consultant -- CONSULTANT shall not be considered in default hereunder for
delays in performance caused by circumstances beyond its reasonable control.]

Name/Title of Project 2

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (www.morpc.org) @ MORPC
e



84, Compensation and Payment.

MORPC agrees to compensate CONSULTANT for its actual costs, for complete and satisfactory
performance of the SCOPE OF SERVICES described in 81, a sum not to exceed SAMOUNT for
actual costs and a maximum, not to exceed, fixed fee of SAMOUNT, for a total amount not to
exceed SAMOUNT. A detailed breakout of these costs is presented in Appendix B.

A portion of CONSULTANT compensation budgeted, but not used in the completion of certain
tasks, may be reassigned to other tasks by mutual agreement of MORPC and CONSULTANT.

Compensation shall be in accordance with the following payment terms:

a) Within 15 calendar days following the end of each month, CONSULTANT shall submit to
MORPC an invoice for its actual costs incurred in connection with the SCOPE OF
SERVICES during such month. The invoice must show the total costs incurred for the
month by task and by budget line item, cumulative costs incurred from the contract start by
task and by budget line item and budget balance by task, subcontractor payments made
during the month for each subcontractor, and cumulative payment from contract start for
each subcontractor. See Appendix F for an acceptable invoice template.

b) All services and goods included on any invoice shall be in accordance with
CONSULTANT'S SCOPE OF SERVICES,; shall be directly related to the services
performed; shall be reasonable in amount; shall be based upon actual billable hours and
costs incurred by CONSULTANT; shall be incurred after the date of the notice to proceed;
and shall be satisfactorily documented including proof of payment.

c) CONSULTANT shall include a certification on each invoice, in a form acceptable to
MORPC, that the payment sought by such invoice for costs incurred is equal to the
percentage of the SCOPE OF SERVICES completed as of the date of certification.

d) CONSULTANT shall include with each invoice a progress report describing the progress of
the SCOPE OF SERVICES during the invoice period.

If the progress reports demonstrate CONSULTANT is not satisfactorily advancing a work
product or activity, MORPC will notify CONSULTANT in writing and work with
CONSULTANT to identify corrective actions. CONSULTANT will have fifteen (15) business
days from the date of MORPC's written notification to begin good faith efforts to correct the
deficiency.

e) If MORPC, in its judgment, finds CONSULTANT’S performance or invoice not to be
acceptable, MORPC shall inform CONSULTANT of the specific deficiencies within fifteen
(15) business days following receipt of such invoice. CONSULTANT agrees to correct the
deficiencies.

f) Whenever MORPC and CONSULTANT are unable to agree on corrective actions, and the
situation is such, in the opinion of MORPC or ODOT, that it indicates there has been gross
malfeasance, misfeasance, or nonfeasance by CONSULTANT, MORPC may withhold
funds until CONSULTANT takes corrective actions deemed acceptable to MORPC and
ODOT.

g) CONSULTANT acknowledges that the foregoing payment procedures are necessitated by
the GRANT and require 45-60 calendar days or longer to complete.

h) No payment hereunder shall constitute acceptance of unsatisfactorily performed or
documented services.

Name/Title of Project 3

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (www.morpc.org) @ MORPC
e



i) [If applicable.] CONSULTANT agrees to return retainage payments to each subcontractor
within thirty (30) days after the subcontractor’s services are satisfactorily completed.

j) [If applicable.] CONSULTANT is required to maintain records and documents of invoices
from and payments to subcontractors for three (3) years following the performance of the
contract. These records are to be made available for inspection upon request by any
authorized representative of MORPC, ODOT, or the USDOT. This requirement also
applies to subcontractors.

k) [If applicable.] Add additional requirements per funder contract.

85. Relationship of PARTIES; Subcontracts.

The relationship between CONSULTANT and MORPC is and shall be that of independent
contractors. This Agreement does not establish a partnership or joint venture between the parties.
Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, CONSULTANT shall have no power or authority
to bind MORPC to any obligation or liability to any other person, entity or organization.

CONSULTANT may subcontract for portions of the services described under the SCOPE OF
SERVICES. CONSULTANT shall not make any changes in the subcontract portions of the services
described under the SCOPE OF SERVICES without prior written approval of MORPC. MORPC
shall review and approve by a written document all subcontractors prior to the subcontractor
commencing services. MORPC's approval of any subcontractor does not relieve CONSULTANT of
sole and primary responsibility for performance pursuant to this Agreement. Further, no contractual
relationship whatsoever shall exist between MORPC and any subcontractor.

All personnel provided under this Agreement are under the direct and exclusive supervision and
control of CONSULTANT. As such, the employees of CONSULTANT are its employees only and
are not the employees of MORPC. CONSULTANT shall be solely responsible for the payment of
all wages and the provision of any benefits to its employees and the withholding and/or payment of
all federal, state, and local taxes, deposits and other similar items relating to such employees,
including without limitation all social security, workers’ compensation, and federal and state
unemployment taxes or payments. Neither the rights nor obligations of CONSULTANT may be
assigned without the written consent of MORPC.

86. Modification of Agreement.

The PARTIES hereto shall modify this Agreement only by a written amendment signed by the
PARTIES. Any modifications to the SCOPE OF SERVICES shall be in writing and subject to the
written approval of MORPC and CONSULTANT. MORPC and CONSULTANT shall not modify this
Agreement if such modification would invalidate the GRANT.

87. Termination of Agreement for Cause.
Either party shall have the right to terminate this Agreement with 24 hours’ notice to the other party
upon the happening of any of the following events:

a) Failure by either party to perform any of its obligations under this Agreement or the GRANT,
which failure the failing party does not correct within five (5) calendar days after receiving
notice of such failure from other party;

b) Repeated failure by either party to perform its obligations under this Agreement irrespective
of whether the failing party corrects such failures in a timely manner;

c) Failure by CONSULTANT to make reasonable progress toward timely completion of the
SCOPE OF SERVICES;

Name/Title of Project 4

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (www.morpc.org) @ MORPC
e



d) Breach by either party of any covenant of this Agreement;

e) Filing by CONSULTANT of a petition in bankruptcy; if a petition in bankruptcy is filed
against CONSULTANT by a third party and not dismissed within sixty (60) calendar days
after filing; or if CONSULTANT becomes insolvent, makes a general assignment for the
benefit of its creditors, or has a receiver appointed for it, its property or its business;

f) Any of the covenants of CONSULTANT pursuant to 811 hereof is or becomes materially
incorrect; or

g) Failure by CONSULTANT to comply with the provisions of §14 of this Agreement.
88. Termination of Agreement without Cause.

MORPC shall have the right to terminate this Agreement without cause by giving CONSULTANT
ten (10) calendar days written notice of such termination.

89. Rights and Obligations of Parties Following Termination.

Upon termination, all finished and unfinished material and any goods and supplies purchased with
funds provided pursuant to this Agreement shall, at the option of MORPC, become MORPC'’s
property. CONSULTANT shall make such material available to MORPC within 30 calendar days
after termination in a usable form and at a mutually acceptable location.

Upon termination for cause by either party, MORPC may complete the PROJECT either through its
own personnel or by use of a third party contractor and MORPC shall be entitled to recover
reasonable damages resulting from any termination. The total damages recovered from the
CONSULTANT shall not exceed the total value of this Agreement, as specified in 84.

Upon termination, with or without cause by MORPC, MORPC shall pay CONSULTANT for all
services satisfactorily provided and costs incurred to the date of such termination, including a pro-
rata portion of services and costs. Such payment shall be conditioned upon MORPC's receipt of
GRANT funds for these services and costs. Such payment shall be in full and will represent final
satisfaction of CONSULTANT’s rights under this Agreement.

Termination of this Agreement shall not change CONSULTANT’s obligations pursuant to 8§15, §16,
817, and §18.

810. Assignability.
CONSULTANT shall not assign any interest in this contract (whether by assignment or notation),

without prior written consent of MORPC, except that monies due or to become due under this
contract may be assigned to a bank or other financial institution with proper notice to MORPC.

811. Covenants of Consultant.
CONSULTANT covenants and warrants as follows:

a) CONSULTANT does not knowingly have, nor will it knowingly acquire, any interest, direct or
indirect, which would conflict with its performance required by this Agreement or the
GRANT;

b) CONSULTANT will not admit any member of or delegate to the Congress of the United
States or member, officer or employee of MORPC or any other local public body, during his
tenure or for one year thereafter, to any share or part of the SCOPE OF SERVICES or to
any benefit under this Agreement;

Name/Title of Project 5

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (www.morpc.org) @ MORPC
e



c¢) CONSULTANT is not debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
involuntarily excluded from covered transactions by any federal department or agency;

d) CONSULTANT has not within a three (3) year period immediately preceding the date on
which this Agreement was executed, been convicted of or had a civil judgment against it for
commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain,
or performing a public transaction or contract under public transaction; violation of federal or
state antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification
or destruction of records, making false statements or receiving stolen property;

e) CONSULTANT is not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a
government entity with commission of any of any felony;

f) CONSULTANT has not within a three (3) year period immediately preceding the date on
which this Agreement was executed, had one or more public transactions terminated for
cause or default;

g) CONSULTANT has the personnel necessary to complete the SCOPE OF SERVICES
pursuant to this Agreement;

h) CONSULTANT has not retained any person or company, other than a bona fide employee
working solely for CONSULTANT, to solicit or secure this Agreement;

i) CONSULTANT has not paid, nor agreed to pay, any company or person, other than a bona
fide employee working solely for CONSULTANT, any fee, gift or other compensation,
contingent upon or resulting from the entering into of this Agreement;

j) CONSULTANT will not use any compensation received under this Agreement for publicity
or propaganda purposes designed to support or defeat legislation pending before
Congress;

k) CONSULTANT will comply with the provisions of Section 1352, Title 31 of the U.S. Code,
which prohibits the use of federal funds to lobby any official or employee of any federal
agency, or member or employee of Congress; and to disclose any lobbying activities in
connection with federal funds;

[) No funds appropriated by the United States have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf
of CONSULTANT, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or
employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an
employee of a member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any federal contract,
making any federal grant, making any federal loan, entering into any cooperative
agreement, and extending, continuing, renewing, amending or modifying any federal
contract, grant, loan or cooperative agreement;

m) If funds, other than those appropriated by the United States have been paid or will be paid
to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any
agency, a member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a
member of Congress in connection with this federal contract, grant, loan or cooperative
agreement, CONSULTANT shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, “Disclosure
Form to Report Lobbying,” to MORPC and to the appropriate federal agency in accordance
with the instructions for Form LLL; and

n) CONSULTANT shall require that the language of paragraphs (k), (I), and (m) be included in
the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and

Name/Title of Project 6

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (www.morpc.org) @ MORPC
e



contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) under this agreement and that
all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

Regarding subsections (c), (d), (e), and (f) of this section, CONSULTANT certifies or affirms the
truthfulness and accuracy of the contents of the statements submitted by this certification and
understands the provisions of 31 U.S.C. Sections 3801 et seq., are applicable thereto.

CONSULTANT acknowledges that this section constitutes a material representation of fact upon
which reliance is placed when this transaction was made or entered into, and that CONSULTANT’s
certification is a prerequisite for entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31,
U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of
not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

812. Drug-Free Workplace.

CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all applicable state and federal laws regarding drug-free
workplace. CONSULTANT shall make a good faith effort to ensure that all CONSULTANT
employees, while working will not purchase, transfer, use or possess illegal drugs or alcohol or
abuse prescription drugs in any way.

813. OQutstanding Liabilities.

CONSULTANT affirmatively covenants that it does not owe (1) any delinquent taxes to the State of
Ohio (the “State”) or a political subdivision of the State; (2) any monies to the State or a state
agency for the administration or enforcement of any environmental laws of the State; and (3) any
other moneys to the State, a state agency or a political subdivision of the State that are past due,
whether the amounts owed are being contested in a court of law or not.

814. Indemnification and Insurance.

To the fullest extent permitted by law, the CONSULTANT shall indemnify, defend, and hold
harmless MORPC, its members, officers, directors, employees and agents (“Indemnified Parties”)
from and against all claims, damages, demands, losses, expenses, fines, causes of action, suits or
other liabilities, (including all costs reasonable attorneys' fees, consequential damages, and
punitive damages), arising out of or resulting from, or alleged to arise out of or arise from, the
performance of CONSULTANT and subcontractors of CONSULTANT work under the subcontract,
and any Work Order whether such claim, damage, demand, loss or expense is attributable to
bodily injury, personal injury, sickness, disease or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible
property, including the loss of use resulting therefrom; but only to the extent attributable to the
negligence of the CONSULTANT and subcontractor or any entity for which it is legally responsible
or vicariously liable: regardless of whether the claim is presented by an employee of subcontractor.

Insurance obtained by MORPC is deemed excess, non-contributory and not co-primary in relation
to the coverage(s) procured by the CONSULTANT, any subcontractor or any of their respective
consultants, officers, agents, subcontractors, employees or anyone directly or indirectly employed
by any of them, or by anyone for whose acts any of the aforementioned may be liable by operation
of statute, government regulation or applicable case law.

This indemnification shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or type of
damages, compensation or benefits payable by or for the CONSULTANT or subcontractor under
any workers' compensation acts, disability benefits acts or other employee benefits acts. This
indemnification shall be in addition to any indemnity liability imposed by the contract documents,
and shall survive the completion of the work or the termination of the subcontract.

Prior to commencing the SCOPE OF SERVICES, CONSULTANT shall procure, and thereafter
maintain, at its own expense, until final acceptance of the work performed during the completion of
the SCOPE OF SERVICES or later as required by the terms of the Agreement or any individual
Name/Title of Project 7

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (www.morpc.org) @ MORPC
e




work order, insurance coverage required by this Agreement. At a minimum, and subject to
modification in individual work orders, the types of insurance and minimum policy limits specified in
Appendix C shall be maintained in a form and from insurers acceptable to MORPC. All insurers
shall have at least an A- (excellent) rating by A.M. Best and be qualified to do business in the State
of Ohio.

815. Inspection of Work.

CONSULTANT shall permit ODOT, U.S. DOT, MORPC, or any of their duly authorized
representatives, upon reasonable notice, full access to and the right to examine any pertinent
books, documents, papers, and records of any contractor or consultant involving transactions
related to this Agreement for three (3) years from the final payment under this Agreement.

§16. Documents.

MORPC will retain the copyright for all documents, data, materials, information, processes, studies,
reports, surveys, proposals, plans, codes, scientific information, technological information,
regulations, maps, equipment, charts, schedules, photographs, exhibits, software, software source
code, documentation, and other materials and property that are prepared, developed or created
under or in connection with this Agreement. All materials completed as part of this Agreement
shall become the absolute property of MORPC, on payment of all compensation due to
CONSULTANT under this Agreement, to be used as MORPC desires, without restriction.

All such documents, and any other PROJECT documents, data, reports, and accounting
documents, shall be clearly identified, readily accessible, and, to the extent feasible, kept separate
and apart from all other documents. CONSULTANT shall retain and submit to MORPC, ODOT,
and/or FHWA, if requested, all such data, reports, records, contracts and other documents relating
to the PROJECT, during the course of the PROJECT without additional costs. CONSULTANT
shall retain such documents three (3) years following completion of the PROJECT, but shall not be
required to provide additional copies not within the original scope of the budget for the PROJECT
unless MORPC reimburses CONSULTANT for its current cost of providing such copies.
CONSULTANT shall provide all documents necessary for MORPC to comply with the reporting and
record-keeping requirements set forth in 49 C.F.R. Part 18.

817. Rights of Data.
The PARTIES agree as follows:

a) The term “subject data” as used herein means recorded information, whether or not
copyrighted, that is delivered or specified to be delivered under this Agreement. The term
includes graphic or pictorial delineations in media such as drawings and photographs; text
in specification or related performance of design-type documents; machine forms such as
punched cards, magnetic tape, disks or CDs, or computer memory printouts; and
information retained in computer memory. Examples include, but are not limited to:
computer software, engineering drawings and associated lists, specifications, standards,
process sheets, manuals, technical reports, catalog item identifications, and related
information. The term does not include financial reports, cost analyses, and similar
information incidental to the administration of this agreement.

b) The following restrictions apply to all subject data first produced in the performance of this
Agreement:

i.  Except for its own internal use, CONSULTANT shall not publish or reproduce such
data in whole or in part, or in any manner or form, nor shall CONSULTANT
authorize others to do so, without the written consent of MORPC, until such time as
MORPC may have either released or approved the release of such data to the

Name/Title of Project 8

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (www.morpc.org) @ MORPC
e



public; this restriction on publication, however, does not apply to agreements with
academic institutions; and

ii. Asauthorized by 49 C.F.R. Part 18.34, MORPC and FHWA reserve a royalty-free,
non-exclusive and irrevocable license to reproduce, publish or otherwise use, and to
authorize others to use, for federal government purposes:

(@) Any work developed under this Agreement irrespective of whether or
not a copyright has been obtained; and

(b) Any rights of copyright to which CONSULTANT purchases ownership
with GRANT funds.

(© With certain limited exceptions, all data and other information
prepared as part of this study will become a public record and will be
made available to anyone who requests it.

c) CONSULTANT shall be entitled to utilize the data given its public domain status.

d) CONSULTANT understands and agrees that, in addition to the rights set forth in Subsection
(b) ii of 817 of this Agreement, FHWA may make available to any recipient, sub grantee,
sub recipient, third party contractor, or third party subcontractor, either FHWA's license in
the copyright to the “subject data” derived under this Agreement or a copy of the “subject
data” first produced under this Agreement. Any use by MORPC, FHWA, or others of the
subject data for purposes other than as intended by this Agreement shall be without risk of
liability to CONSULTANT.

e) CONSULTANT shall indemnify, save and hold harmless FHWA, ODOT and MORPC, their
officers, agents, and employees acting within the scope of their official duties against all
liability, including costs and expenses, resulting from any willful or intentional violation by
CONSULTANT of proprietary rights, copyrights, or right of privacy, arising out of the
publication, translation, reproduction, delivery, use, or disposition of any data furnished
under this Agreement.

f)  Nothing contained in this section shall imply a license to the FHWA or MORPC under any
patent or be construed as affecting the scope of any license or other right otherwise granted
to the FHWA under any patent.

g) Subsections (b), (c) and (d) of this section are not applicable to material furnished to
CONSULTANT by the FHWA or MORPC and incorporated in the work furnished under this
Agreement; provided such incorporated material is identified by the CONSULTANT at the
time of delivery of such work.

h) Inthe event that the SCOPE OF SERVICES is not completed, for any reason whatsoever,
all data developed under the SCOPE OF SERVICES shall become subject data as defined
in Subsection (a) and shall be delivered as MORPC may direct.

i) MORPC shall not be liable for, or billed for, costs associated with software development by
CONSULTANT in support of this PROJECT. Thus, CONSULTANT shall retain intellectual
property rights to all software, support data and related materials that have not been
developed with funds from this Agreement.

818. Patent Rights.
CONSULTANT shall immediately notify MORPC of any invention, improvement or discovery which

is conceived or first actually reduced to practice in the PROJECT and which may be patentable

Name/Title of Project 9

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (www.morpc.org) @ MORPC
e



under the laws of the United States of America or any such foreign country. The rights of
CONSULTANT with respect to such invention, improvement or discovery will be determined in
accordance with applicable federal laws, regulations and policies.

819. Non-Discrimination.

CONSULTANT shall carry out the applicable requirements of 49 CFR part 26 in the award and
administration of DOT-assisted contracts. Failure by CONSULTANT to carry out these
requirements is a material breach of this contract, which may result in the termination of this
contract or such other remedy as MORPC deems appropriate.

To effectuate compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d et
seq.) as amended, the following notice to the CONSULTANT regarding federal aid recipients
applies. MORPC has made similar notice of compliance via the GRANT agreement. During the
performance of this Agreement, CONSULTANT for itself, its assignees and successors in interest
agrees as follows:

a) CONSULTANT will ensure that applicants are hired and that employees are treated during
employment without regard to their race, religion, color, gender or sex (including pregnancy,
gender identification or expression, and sexual orientation), national origin (ancestry),
disability or other handicap, genetic information, age (including federally protected 40 years
or older), military status (past, present, or future), creed, gender identification,
marital/familial status, limited English proficiency, medical conditions, or status with regard
to public assistance. Such action shall include, but not be limited to, the following:
Employment, Upgrading, Demotion, or Transfer; Recruitment or Recruitment Advertising;
Layoff or Termination; Rates of Pay or other forms of Compensation; and Selection for
Training including Apprenticeship.

b) CONSULTANT agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and
applicants for employment, notices setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination
clause. CONSULTANT will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or
on behalf of CONSULTANT, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for
employment without regard to race, religion, color, gender or sex (including pregnancy,
gender identification or expression, and sexual orientation), national origin (ancestry),
disability or other handicap, genetic information, age (including federally protected 40 years
or older), military status (past, present, or future), creed, gender identification,
marital/familial status, limited English proficiency, medical conditions, or status with regard
to public assistance.

¢) Compliance with Regulations: CONSULTANT will comply with the regulations relative to
nondiscrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the U.S. DOT Title 49, Code of Federal
Regulations, Part 21, as amended, (hereinafter referred to as “Regulations”), which are
herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement.

d) Nondiscrimination: CONSULTANT, with regard to the work performed by it after the
execution of this Agreement, will not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, national
origin, gender or sex (including pregnancy, gender identification or expression, and sexual
orientation), age (including federally protected 40 years or older), disability or other
handicap, low-income status, limited English proficiency, religion, genetic information,
gender identification, creed, military status (past, present, or future), medical conditions, or
marital/familial status in the selection and retention of contractors and consultants, including
in the procurement of materials and leases of equipment. The CONSULTANT will not
participate either directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by Section 21.5 of the
Regulations, including employment practices when the contract covers a program set forth
in Appendix B to Part 21 of the Regulations.

Name/Title of Project 10

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (www.morpc.org) @ MORPC
e



e) Solicitations for Contracts, including Procurement of Materials and Equipment: In all
solicitations either by competitive bidding or negotiation made by CONSULTANT for work to
be performed under a contract, including procurement of materials or equipment, each
potential contractor or supplier will be notified by CONSULTANT of the CONSULTANT’s
obligations under this Agreement and the Regulations relative to nondiscrimination on the
grounds of race, religion, color, national origin, gender or sex (including pregnancy, gender
identification or expression, and sexual orientation), age (including federally protected 40
years or older), disability or other handicap, low-income status, limited English proficiency,
genetic information, gender identification, creed, military status (past, present, or future),
medical conditions, or marital/familial status.

f) Information and Reports: CONSULTANT will provide all information and reports required by
the Regulations or directives issued pursuant thereto, and will permit access to its books,
records, accounts, other sources of information and its facilities as may be determined by
ODOT, FHWA, or FTA to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Regulations or
directives. Where any information required of CONSULTANT is in the exclusive
possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish this information, the CONSULTANT
will so certify to ODOT, FHWA or FTA as appropriate, and will set forth what efforts it has
made to obtain the information.

g) Sanctions for Noncompliance: In the event of CONSULTANT’S noncompliance with the
nondiscrimination provisions of this Agreement, ODOT will impose such Agreement
sanctions as ODOT, FHWA, or FTA may determine to be appropriate, including, but not
limited to:

i.  Withholding of payments to CONSULTANT under this Agreement until
CONSULTANT complies, and/or;

ii.  Cancellation, termination, or suspension of this Agreement, in whole or in part.

h) Incorporation of Provisions: CONSULTANT will include the provisions of paragraphs a)
through g) in every contract, including procurement of materials and leases of equipment,
unless exempt by the Regulations, or directives issued pursuant thereto. CONSULTANT
will take such action with respect to any contracts or procurement as ODOT, FHWA, or FTA
may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance;
provided, however, that, in the event CONSULTANT becomes involved in, or is threatened
with, litigation with a contractor, consultant, or supplier as a result of such direction,
MORPC may request ODOT to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of ODOT,
and, in addition, MORPC may request the United States to enter into such litigation to
protect the interest of the United States.

i) Pertinent Non-Discrimination Authorities:

o Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 8§ 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252)
(prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin); and 49 CFR Part 21

o The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970
(42 U.S.C. 8§ 4601) (prohibits unfair treatment of persons displaced or whose property
has been acquired because of Federal or Federal-aid programs and projects)

o Federal-Aid Highway Act of 1973 (23 U.S.C. § 324 et seq.,) (prohibits discrimination on
the basis of sex)

e Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. § 794 et seq.), as amended
(prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability) and 49 CFR Part 27

e The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C. § 6101 et seq.) (prohibits

Name/Title of Project 11

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (www.morpc.org) @ MORPC
e



discrimination on the basis of age)

e Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 1982 (49 U.S.C. 8§ 471, Section 47123), as
amended (prohibits discrimination based on race, creed, color, national origin, or sex)

¢ The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 (PL 100-209) (broadened the scope, coverage,
and applicability of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Age Discrimination Act of
1975, and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, by expanding the definition of
the terms “programs or activities” to include all of the programs or activities of Federal-
Aid recipients, sub-recipients, and contractors, whether such programs or activities are
Federally funded or not)

e Titles Il and Il of the Americans with Disabilities Act (42 U.S.C. 88 12131-12189), as
implemented by Department of Transportation regulations at 49 CFR parts 37 and 38
(prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability in the operation of public entities,
public and private transportation systems, places of public accommodation, and certain
testing entities)

e The Federal Aviation Administration’s Non-Discrimination Statute (49 U.S.C. § 47123)
(prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, and sex)

o Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority
Populations and Low-Income Populations (ensures non-discrimination against minority
populations by discouraging programs, policies, and activities with disproportionately
high and adverse human health or environmental effects on minority or low-income
populations)

e Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for People with Limited English
Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin discrimination includes
discrimination because of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure compliance with
Title VI, you must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have meaningful
access to your programs (70 Fed. Reg. at 74087 to 74100)

o Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (Fair Housing Act), as amended (prohibits
discrimination in the sale, rental, and financing of dwellings on the basis of race, color,
religion, sex, national origin, disability, or familial status (presence of child under the age
of 18 and pregnant women)

e Title IX of the Education Amendments Act of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C. 1682 et
seq.) (prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex in education programs or activities)

¢ Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act (USERRA) (38 U.S.C.
4301-4333) (prohibits discrimination ont the basis of present, past or future military
service)

e Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act (GINA) (42 U.S.C. 2000 ff)

[Note: ODOT provides the DBE goal for each contract funded by federal transportation
dollars. The project manager should work with the DBE Coordinator, Nick Gill, to contact
the Administrator of the Office of Outreach at ODOT for the goal.]

§20. Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Goal.

Working in cooperation with the Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT), a ___percent
disadvantaged business enterprise (DBE) goal has been established for this contract per
requirements of the U.S. Department of Transportation (U.S. DOT). CONSULTANTS are strongly
encouraged to meet or exceed this goal. Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) firms must
be certified through the Ohio Unified Certification Program. The CONSULTANT is responsible for
making this sub-allocation. CONSULTANT will provide information on how they plan to meet this
goal by completing Appendix D. MORPC is to be notified in writing immediately if CONSULTANT is
having problems meeting the ____ percent DBE goal. Failure by CONSULTANT to carry out the
requirements set forth in 49 C.F.R. 823.43(a) shall constitute a breach of this Agreement.

Name/Title of Project 12

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (www.morpc.org) @ MORPC
e



[Note: If a 0% goal is determined by ODOT, delete the paragraph below:]

Failure to meetthe __ percent DBE contract goal will be considered a violation of the contract
agreement and subject to withholding of any remaining funds needed to meet the ___ percent
goal. MORPC will determine, in consultation with CONSULTANT, and per procedures in the
current MORPC DBE Program and per federal guidelines, if CONSULTANT has made “good faith
efforts” to meet the DBE goal. CONSULTANT must meet the DBE goals or satisfactorily
demonstrate to MORPC “good faith efforts,” in order to receive payment from MORPC for the DBE
portion of the contract.

§21. Ethics.

CONSULTANT agrees that they are currently in compliance and will continue to adhere to the
requirements of Ohio Ethics law as provided by Section 102.03 and 102.04 of the Ohio Revised
Code.

[Use the following paragraph for contracts where the money flows through the state or any
contracts with the state.]

In accordance with the Executive Order 2011-03K, Client, by its signature on this document,
certifies: (1) it has reviewed and understands Executive Order 2019-11D, (2) has reviewed and
understands the Ohio ethics and conflict of interest laws including, without limitation, Ohio Revised
Code §102.03 and §102.04, and (3) will take no action inconsistent with those laws and the order,
as any of them may be amended or supplemented from time to time. Client understands that
failure to comply with Executive Order 2011-03K and subsequent similar orders is, in itself,
grounds for termination of this Agreement.

822. Waiver.

CONSULTANT agrees that reimbursement of any cost under 84 of this Agreement does not
constitute a final decision by MORPC about the allowability of the cost and does not constitute a
waiver of any violations of the terms of this Agreement. No failure by either party to insist upon
strict compliance with any term of this Agreement by the other party shall constitute a waiver by
either party of its right to demand strict compliance with all provisions of this Agreement.

823. Applicable Law.

This Agreement shall be a contract to be performed and enforced in the State of Ohio, and shall be
constructed in accordance with the laws of the State of Ohio. The PARTIES agree that this
Agreement is enforceable in the Court of Common Pleas of Ohio and that appropriate venue for
such action is in Franklin County, Ohio.

824. Unresolved Finding for Recovery

The CONSULTANT affirmatively represents and warrants to MORPC that it is not subject to an
unresolved Finding for Recovery under ORC 9.24 or that it has taken appropriate remedial steps
required under ORC 9.24 or otherwise qualifies under that section. The CONSULTANT agrees that
if this representation or warranty is deemed to be false, the Agreement shall be void ab initio as
between the parties to this Agreement, and any funds paid by MORPC to the CONSULTANT
hereunder shall be repaid to MORPC immediately, or an action for recovery may be commenced
immediately by MORPC for recovery of said funds.

§25. Complete Agreement.

This document (including its exhibits and the terms of the GRANT) contains the entire Agreement
between the PARTIES and supersedes any prior discussions, negotiations, representations, or
agreements between CONSULTANT and MORPC. Furthermore, this Agreement is a subcontract
to the agreement No. 32971 between MORPC and ODOT (MORPC Contract No. R60110).
CONSULTANT also agrees to comply with the provisions of the agreement as they may be

Name/Title of Project 13

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (www.morpc.org) @ MORPC
e



applicable to this Agreement. No additions or other changes to this Agreement shall be made or be
binding on either party unless made in writing and signed by each party to this Agreement.

826. Severability.
The intention of the PARTIES is to comply fully with the GRANT and with laws and public policies,

and this Agreement shall be constructed consistently with the same to the extent possible. If and
to the extent that any court of competent jurisdiction determines that it is impossible to construe
any provision of this Agreement consistently with the GRANT, any law or public policy and
consequently holds that provision to be invalid, such holding shall in no way affect the validity of
the other provisions of this Agreement which shall remain in full force and effect, unless such
invalidity makes performance by the PARTIES impossible.

§27. Captions.
The captions of the various sections of this Agreement are not part of the context of this

Agreement, but are only labels to assist in locating those sections, and shall be ignored in
construing this Agreement.

828. Notices.

All statements, notices and other communications to be given to either party hereunder will be in
writing and, unless otherwise provided, will be deemed to have been duly given when delivered in
person or when mailed by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested to the address for
such party set forth below, or to such address or addresses as may be designated in writing by
notice given to the other party pursuant to this section.

Address: CONSULTANT
Consultant Name
Consultant Address
City, ST ZIP
Attn: Contact Name, Title

MORPC

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission
111 Liberty St, Ste. 100

Columbus, Ohio 43215

Attn: William Murdock, Executive Director

Name/Title of Project 14

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (www.morpc.org) ﬁ MORPC
e



§28. Signatures.
Any person executing this Agreement in a representative capacity hereby represents that he/she

has been duly authorized by his/her principal to execute this Agreement on such principal’s behalf.

Any party hereto may deliver a copy of its counterpart signature page to this Agreement via fax or
email. Each party hereto shall be entitled to rely upon a facsimile signature of any other party
delivered in such a manner as if such signature were an original.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, MORPC and CONSULTANT have executed this Agreement as of the
date written above.

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission

DATE:
William Murdock, AICP
Executive Director
Company Name
DATE:
Name
Title
MORPC Chief of Staff &
Director of Operations
Shawn P. Hufstedler
Name/Title of Project 15

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (www.morpc.org) ﬂ
MORPC
u




Appendix A: Name/Title of Project

SCOPE OF SERVICES

It is the intent of this agreement that CONSULTANT, employing qualified, competent, and
experienced personnel, shall perform the engineering set forth herein providing services equal to the
practices prevalent by consultants practicing within the subject area of work, and commensurate with
the magnitude and intricacy of the work under consideration. MORPC, however, reserves the right
to make such reviews from time to time, as it may deem necessary or desirable and to maintain
proper liaison. The items which follow set forth the general outline of the work that is expected.

This agreement covers the tasks to be performed by CONSULTANT to provide the professional
services necessary to study the Name/Title of Project. Final product shall be a final study report
including summary reports, cost estimates, and recommended course of action and implementation
for the regional system initiative.

SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY THE CONSULTANT

The following are major items of work which are to be performed by CONSULTANT during the period
of this Agreement:

A. General Provisions

Provide the necessary expertise for project management and control throughout the entire life of this
Cost Plus Fixed Fee Agreement. CONSULTANT will be required to maintain only those records
necessary and appropriate for the Cost Plus Fixed Fee Agreement. This work shall include the
following:

a) Maintain a master file of all project documentation.

b) Prepare monthly progress reports which will accompany CONSULTANT'S invoices for the
services accomplished to date. The progress reports shall be brief memoranda which shall
outline those tasks enumerated in the project schedule that have been completed, those that
are currently underway, and those anticipated in the next month.

c) Develop a framework for project coordination with MORPC and the Steering Committee. This
liaison will keep all agencies informed of the project status and gain their input as needed.

d) As scheduled by MORPC and called for in the individual tasks of the SCOPE OF SERVICES
attend Project Advisory Committee meetings in Columbus during the performance of
agreement. The meetings will be held to coordinate and review project documentation.
CONSULTANT will prepare and provide to MORPC minutes of the meetings.

OR ATTACH RFP

Name/Title of Project 16

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (www.morpc.org) @ MORPC
e



Appendix B
COST ESTIMATE

ATTACH BUDGET HERE

Name/Title of Project 17
Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (www.morpc.org)




APPENDIX C:

INSURANCE PROVISIONS CONSULTANT'S INSURANCE

Before commencing the work on the SCOPE OF SERVICES on any individual CONSULTANT
Project, and as a condition precedent to any payment, the CONSULTANT shall purchase and
maintain insurance in conformance with the provisions contained in this Appendix C. This
insurance will provide a defense and indemnify MORPC, but only with respect to liability for bodily
injury, property damage and personal and advertising injury caused in whole or in part by the
CONSULTANT acts or omissions or the acts or omissions of those acting on the CONSULTANT’'S
behalf.

Proof of this insurance shall be provided to MORPC before the work on the SCOPE OF
SERVICES commences, as set forth below. To the extent that the CONSULTANT subcontracts
with any other entity or individual to perform all or part of the work, the CONSULTANT shall require
any other Subcontractors to furnish evidence of equivalent insurance coverage, in all respects,
terms and conditions as set forth herein, prior to the commencement of the work by any other
Subcontractor. In no event shall the failure to provide this proof, prior to the commencement of the
work, be deemed a waiver by MORPC of CONSULTANT'’S or any other Subcontractor’s insurance
obligations set forth herein.

In the event that the insurance company(ies) issuing the policy(ies) required by this appendix deny
coverage to MORPC, the CONSULTANT or any other Subcontractors will, upon demand by
MORPC, defend and indemnify MORPC at the CONSULTANT’S or any other Subcontractor’s
expense.

MINIMUM LIMITS OF LIABILITY

The CONSULTANT must maintain the required insurance with a carrier rated A-, or better by A.M.
Best. The CONSULTANT shall maintain at least the limits of liability as set forth below:

Commercial General Liability Insurance

$1,000,000 Each Occurrence Limit (Bodily Injury and Property Damage)
$2,000,000 General Aggregate per Project

$2,000,000 Products & Completed Operations Aggregate

$1,000,000 Personal and Advertising Injury Limit

Business or Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance
$1,000,000 combined single limit per accident

Workers’ Compensation and Employers’ Liability Insurance
$100,000 Each Accident

$100,000 Each Employee for Injury by Disease

$500,000 Aggregate for Injury by Disease

Excess or Umbrella Liability (to overlay Employers’ Liability, Automobile Liability and
Commercial Liability Coverages)
$1,000,000 occurrence/aggregate

Additional Insured Status and Certificate of Insurance

MORPC and Owner, along with their respective officers, agents and employees, shall be named as
additional insureds for Ongoing Operations and Products/Completed Operations on the
CONSULTANT’S and any Subcontractors’ Commercial General Liability Policy, which must be
primary and noncontributory with respect to the additional insureds. This insurance shall remain in
effect as set forth below, in the “Continuation of Coverage” provision.

Name/Title of Project 18

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (www.morpc.org) @ MORPC
e



It is expressly understood by the PARTIES to this Agreement that it is the intent of the PARTIES
that any insurance obtained by MORPC is deemed excess, non-contributory and not co-primary in
relation to the coverage(s) procured by the CONSULTANT, any other Subcontractor or any of their
respective consultants, officers, agents, subcontractors, employees or anyone directly or indirectly
employed by any of them, or by anyone for whose acts any of the aforementioned may be liable by
operation of statue, government regulation or applicable case law.

To the fullest extent permitted by applicable state law, a Waiver of Subrogation Clause shall be
added to the General Liability, Automobile and Workers’ Compensation Policies in favor of MORPC
and Owner, and this clause shall apply to MORPC and Owner’s officers, agents and employees,
with respect to all Projects during the policy term.

Prior to commencement of work on any individual project, CONSULTANT shall submit a Certificate
of Insurance in favor of MORPC and an Additional Insured Endorsement (in a form acceptable to
MORPC) as required hereunder. The Certificate shall provide for thirty (30) days’ notice to MORPC
of any change in coverage or ten (10) days’ notice if the policy is not renewed. Copies of insurance
policies shall promptly be made available to MORPC upon request.

CONSULTANT agrees that if any of its employees, or its subcontractors, engaged in the
performance of this Agreement, reside in a state other than the State of Ohio, CONSULTANT will
furnish MORPC with a Certificate of Insurance for an all-state endorsement which shall be for at
least $100,000.

NO LIMITATION ON LIABILITY

With regard to any and all claims against any additional insured by any employee of the
CONSULTANT, anyone directly or indirectly employed by the CONSULTANT or anyone for whose
acts the CONSULTANT may be liable, the indemnification obligation shall not be limited by any
limitation on the amount or type of damages, compensation or benefits payable by or for the
CONSULTANT under workers’ compensation acts, disability benefit acts or other employee benefit
acts.

CANCELLATION, RENEWAL, AND MODIFICATION

The CONSULTANT shall maintain in effect all insurance coverages required under this Agreement
at the CONSULTANT'S sole expanse, underwritten by insurance companies acceptable to
MORPC, until final completion and acceptance of the entirety of the Agreement's SCOPE OF
SERVICES, or longer if so provided in the work order such as with respect to completed operations
coverage. Certificates of Insurance showing required coverage to be in force must be delivered to
MORPC prior to commencement of the Agreement's SCOPE OF SERVICES for an individual
project. In the event the CONSULTANT fails to obtain or maintain any insurance coverage required
under this Agreement, this shall be considered a material breach of the Agreement, entitling
MORPC, at its sole discretion, to purchase such equivalent coverage as desired for MORPC's
benefit and charge the expense to the CONSULTANT, or, in the alternative, exercise all remedies
otherwise provided in the Agreement, the work order, or as permitted by law or equity.

CONTINUATION OF COVERAGE

The CONSULTANT shall continue to carry Completed Operations Liability Insurance for at least
three (3) years after either ninety (90) days following Substantial Completion of the SCOPE OF
SERVICES or final payment to MORPC on any individual project, whichever is later. The

Name/Title of Project 19

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (www.morpc.org) @ MORPC
e



CONSULTANT shall furnish MORPC evidence of such insurance at final payment and in each
successive year during which the insurance coverage must remain in effect.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF REFERRAL OF THIS PROVISION OT THE CONSULTANT'S
INSURANCE AGENT OR BROKER

The CONSULTANT represents that it has provided a copy of the “Insurance Provisions” to his
insurance agent and/or broker, and the the CONSULTANT has instructed the agent/broker to
provide insurance in full compliance with the terms and conditions herein.

MORPC and CONSULTANT hereby acknowledge that this Appendix C is considered a material
term of the Agreement.

Name/Title of Project 20
Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (www.morpc.org)

N MORPC




Appendix D:
DBE COMMITMENTS/AWARDS AND PAYMENTS

CONSULTANT NAME:

CONTRACT NAME:

TOTAL AMOUNT: $
Is consultant a DBE — Disadvantaged Business Enterprise? o Yes o No
If YES, Owner’s Gender: o Male o Female
Owner’s Ethnicity: o Black American
o Hispanic American
o Native American
o Asian-Pacific American
O
O

Subcontinent Asian American
Non-Minority*

NAME OF SUBCONTRACTOR -1

DBE: % CONTRACT AMOUNT: $

Is subcontractor a DBE — Disadvantaged Business Enterprise? o Yes o No
If YES, Owner’s Gender: o Male o Female
Owner’s Ethnicity: o Black American
o Hispanic American
o Native American
o Asian-Pacific American
o Subcontinent Asian American
o Non-Minority*

NAME OF SUBCONTRACTOR - 2

DBE: % CONTRACT AMOUNT: $

Is subcontractor a DBE — Disadvantaged Business Enterprise? o Yes o No
If YES, Owner’s Gender: o Male o Female
Owner’s Ethnicity: o Black American
o Hispanic American
o Native American
o Asian-Pacific American
o Subcontinent Asian American
o Non-Minority*

If no DBE SUBCONTRACTOR selected, describe the “good faith efforts” used to reach DBE
goal:

*Non —Minority any firm whose owners are not members of the presumptively disadvantaged groups listed,
but who are either “women” OR eligible for the DBE program on an individual basis.

Name/Title of Project 21

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (www.morpc.org) ﬁ
MORPC
u




Appendix E:

DBE CERTIFICATIONS

Attach DBE Certifications*
For

Consultant and/or All Subcontractors

*All DBE- Disadvantaged Business Enterprises must be certified through a USDOT-authorized
certification process. The Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program (DBE) is a legislatively
mandated USDOT program that applies to federal-aid highway dollars expended on federally-
assisted contracts issued by USDOT recipients. For more information on the Ohio DBE program or
to get certified go to http://www.dot.state.oh.us/Divisions/ODI/SDBE/Pages/UCP.aspx or contact
ODOT at 800-459-3778 or email DOT.SDBE @dot.state.oh.us.

Name/Title of Project 22

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (www.morpc.org) ﬁ
MORPC
u



http://www.dot.state.oh.us/Divisions/ODI/SDBE/Pages/UCP.aspx
mailto:DOT.SDBE@dot.state.oh.us

Appendix F:

MORPC INVOICE
(Include all items on invoice)

[Include MORPC Invoice Template from mic.morpc.org]

Name/Title of Project 23
Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (www.morpc.org)




Invoice #

Company Name and Billing Address or Print on Company Letterhead

Invoice Date

Bill to: Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission Invoice Period:

111 Liberty Street Suite 100 From:
Columbus, OH 43215 To:
Attention:
(Contact person in contract) MORPC Contract #:
Project Name
PROJECT COSTS
Consultant:
Current Cumulative A. B. C. D. E. F.
Hours Hours Project Current Total Prior | Cumulative Budget % Spent
Worked Worked Budget Billing Billing Billing Remaining (D+A)
$0.00 $0.00( #DIv/0!
Other Direct Costs $0.00 $0.00| #DIV/0!
Consultant Description of Work Completed this Invoice Period:
Subcontractors
Current Cumulative A. B. C. D. E. F.
Hours Hours Project Current Total Prior | Cumulative Budget % Spent
Worked Worked Budget Billing Billing Billing Remaining (D+A)
1. Subcontractor Name:
| $0.00] $0.00]  #DIV/0!
2. Subcontractor Name:
| $0.00] $0.00]  #DIV/0!
3. Subcontractor Name:
| $0.00] $0.00] #DIV/0!
Description of Work Completed this Invoice Period by Subcontractors:
Total for Subcontractor(s):
$0.00 $0.00| $0.00| $0.00[  $0.00] #DIv/0!
Total for Consultant & Subcontractor(s):
$0.00| $0.00| $0.00| $0.00| $0.00|  #DIV/0!

o Final Payment Request?




***This page intentionally left blank.***





